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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Basic earnings per shareearnings applicable to common stock for a periddddd by the average number of shares of commumekst
actually outstanding during that period.
Bcf: one hillion cubic feet, a volumetric measure ofunak gas, roughly equal to 10 million therms.

Btu: British thermal unit, a basic unit of thermal enengeasurement. One Btu equals the energy requireadse one pound of water one
degree Fahrenheit. One hundred thousand Btu’'s eaqeatherm.

Bypass:a direct connection to the interstate gas pipeliriéch circumvents the pipes of the local distribotcompany; usually considered
only by large industrial users.

Core utility customers: residential, commercial and industrial firm servicestomers on the Company’s distribution system.

Decoupling: a rate mechanism approved by the OPUC, which igaed to break the link between NW Natural’'s eagsiand the quantity of
natural gas consumed by its customers. The deigmsaNW Natural to encourage customers to consengrgy while not adversely
affecting its earnings due to losses in sales vekim

Degree-daysunits of measure that reflect temperature-sensitivesumption of natural gas, calculated by sulitrgd¢he average of a day’s
high and low temperature from 65 degrees Fahrenheit

Demand charge:a component in all core utility gas rates that estke cost of securing pipeline capacity to mestkpdemand, whether that
full capacity is used or not.

Design day:a design day is the maximum anticipated demandh@matural gas distribution system during ahdd+ period assuming weatt
at an average temperature of 12° F, the coldesinddne last 20 years in NW Natural’s service ters.

Diluted earnings per share:earnings applicable to common stock for a periddddd by the average number of shares of stodkvtioald
be outstanding if all securities convertible intaranon stock were converted and all options to paseltommon stock at prices lower than
the average price for the period were exercised.

Firm service: natural gas service offered to customers underactstor rate schedules that provide for no sefviszruptions.

General rate casea periodic filing with state regulators to estalblexjuitable rates and balance the interests ofesses of customers with
those of the Company and its shareholders. NW ldBsumost recent general rate cases were conclind®degon in 2003 and Washington in
2004.

Interruptible service: service offered to customers (usually large comiakor industrial) under contracts or rate schesltifet allow for
interruptions during times of peak demand.

Liguefied natural gas (LNG): the cryogenic liquid form of natural gas. At tenmggeres below minus 258 degrees Fahrenheit, najasatan
be stored in a liquid form, which is 600 times mdemse than its gaseous form.

Margin: in NW Natural's case, the difference between geadss revenue and the cost of gas included indllee s

Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA)purchased gas adjustment, also know as the g&®tras a mechanism for adjusting rates due to
changes in gas costs and recovering from custodedesred gas cost imbalances caused by fluctugisg.ommodity costs.

Return on equity (ROE): a measure of corporate profitability, calculateshesincome divided by average common stock eqgaityhorized
ROE refers to the rate approved by a regulatory@gér company investments funded by common seapkty.

Storage:a means of maintaining gas in reserve for futureatel, either through injection into a storage fieldstoring it in the form of
liquefied natural gas, or by holding it within thgeline (known as line packing).

Therm: the basic unit of natural gas measurement, equed@000 Btu's. An average residential custome\ii Natural’'s service area uses
about 700 therms in an average-weather year.

Transportation service: service provided to a customer that secures itsrmatural gas supply and pays only for use of th&itution syster
to transport it.

Underground storage:storage of natural gas by injection into undergobrotk formations for withdrawal during the wintegating season,
such as at NW Natural’'s Mist storage field.

Weather normalization: a rate mechanism that allows a utility to adjusttemers’ bills during the winter heating seasorettuce variations
in margin recovery due to fluctuations from avertagaperatures.

Winter heating seasongenerally considered to be the period from Noventtnerugh March.
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Northwest Natural Gas Company (NW Natural or thenPany) was incorporated under the laws of Oregd®itD. The Company
and its predecessors have supplied gas servibe foublic since 1859. Since September 1997, ibkas doing business as NW Natural.

Business Segments

Local Gas Distribution

NW Natural is principally engaged in the distrilmrtiof natural gas in Oregon and southwest Washmdtothis report this princip
business segment is referred to as local gashiisivh (LDC) or utility. Local gas distribution imlwes purchasing gas from producers,
transporting the gas over interstate pipelines flloensupply basins to the Company’s service teyritand reselling the gas to customers at
rates and terms approved by the Public Utility Cassion of Oregon (OPUC) or by the Washington Uéitand Transportation Commission
(WUTC). Gas distribution also includes transportijag owned by large customers from the interstgidipe connection, or city gate, to the
customers’ facilities for a fee, also approvedliy ©PUC or WUTC. Approximately 97 percent of therPany’s consolidated assets are
related to the local gas distribution segment. OF&JC has allocated to NW Natural as its exclusergise area a major portion of western
Oregon, including the Portland metropolitan areastof the Willamette Valley and the coastal areanfAstoria to Coos Bay. NW Natural
also holds certificates from the WUTC grantingxtlesive rights to serve portions of three south&fashington counties bordering the
Columbia River. Gas service is provided in 120esitand neighboring communities, in 15 Oregon cesntind in 14 cities and neighboring
communities, in three Washington counties. The @itiortland is the principal retail and manufaittgrcenter in the Columbia River Basin,
and is a major port for trade with Asia.

At year-end 2004, NW Natural had 537,152 residéntiatomers, 58,548 commercial customers and XB&sinial customers.
Approximately 90 percent of the Company’s custonaeeslocated in Oregon and 10 percent reside irhiigon. Industries served include
pulp, paper and other forest products; the manufecif electronic, electrochemical and electronfgtgical products; the processing of farm
and food products; the production of various mihpraducts; metal fabrication and casting; the piatgbn of machine tools, machinery and
textiles; the manufacture of asphalt, concreterabber; printing and publishing; nurseries; goveentrand educational institutions; and
electric generation.

Interstate Gas Storage

The Interstate Gas Storage business segment isricaahf interstate storage services and thirdypgstimization services.
Approximately 2 percent of the Compasyonsolidated assets are related to the InteiG&deStorage business segment. For each of the
ended Dec. 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, this busimggeent derived a majority of its revenues from fethian five customers. The largest of
these customers is served under a long-term cantrac
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I nterstate Storage Services . NW Natural is engaged in providing natural gasage and related transportation services to itatiers
customers using storage capacity that has beetogeekin advance of core utility customers’ (resiifd, commercial and industrial firm)
requirements. These services began in 2001 wherettieral Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) grhMe/ Natural a limited
jurisdiction blanket certificate permitting it toqvide firm and interruptible gas storage serviod eelated transportation service to and fi
the Mist gas storage facility to customers in istate commerce. The FERC limited jurisdiction diedie enables NW Natural to provide
these services while retaining its exemption frathFERC jurisdiction under the Natural Gas Actsuant to an order of the Federal Power
Commission (now the FERC). Under agreements wghQRUC and WUTC, NW Natural shares with its coi@ytustomers a portion of i
net income before tax from interstate storage sesvi

Third Party Optimization Services. NW Natural has a contract with an independentg@nemarketing company that optimizes the
value of NW Natural's assets by engaging in tradiotyvities using temporarily unused portions efuiipstream pipeline transportation
capacity and gas storage capacity (optimizationices).

Core Utility Customer Sharing. In Oregon, NW Natural retains 80 percent of thetaseincome from interstate storage services and
optimization of storage and pipeline transportatiapacity when the costs of such capacity havéeen included in core utility rates, and 33
percent of the pre-tax income from such optimizatiden the capacity costs have been included im atility rates. The remaining 20
percent and 67 percent, respectively, are cretliteddeferred regulatory account for refund to NVAtuxal’s core utility customers. NW
Natural has a similar sharing mechanism in Wasbimfir revenue derived from interstate storageisesvand third party optimizatic
services.

Other

NW Natural has non-regulated subsidiary investmaenidNG Financial Corporation (Financial Corporafi@and Northwest Energy
Corporation (Northwest Energy) (see “Subsidiariéglow), a Boeing 737-300 aircraft leased to Canttal Airlines and miscellaneous other
non-regulated activities. Less than 1 percent @f@bmpany’s consolidated assets are related tatagiin the Other business segment.

Subsidiaries

Financial Corporation

The Company operated only one direct, active sidrgidluring 2004, Financial Corporation. Finan&arporation, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated ingdne holds financial investments including limiteartnership interests in two wind
power electric generation projects located in @atifa and two low-income housing projects in PodlaOregon. On Jan. 31, 2005, Financial
Corporation sold its limited partnership interastthree solar electric generating plants locate@alifornia. Financial Corporation also has
one active, wholly-owned subsidiary, KB Pipelinengmany (KB Pipeline), which owns a 10 percent irdeie an 18-mile interstate natural
gas pipeline. KB Pipeline operated the pipelingl iec. 1, 2004, when a third party gas distribotemmpany assumed responsibilities as
operator. KB Pipeline resigned as pipeline operatopart, because of anticipated increased olitigatresulting from FERC's final
regulations implementing Standards of Conduct fangmission Providers (Standards of Conduct). Thegelations govern the relationship
between interstate natural gas pipelines and émargy affiliates or marketing functions and impose
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obligations previously not applicable to KB Pipeliwith regard to separation of duties and relatatters. FERC granted KB Pipeline an
exemption from most of the requirements of the &atis of Conduct; however, the remainder of thelegpns continue to be applicable to
KB Pipeline as a co-owner of the pipeline.

Northwest Energy Corporation

A second direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Qamy, Northwest Energy, also an Oregon corporati@s, formed in 2001 to
serve as the holding company of NW Natural andl®uwdtGeneral Electric Company (PGE) if the propaseglisition of PGE had been
completed. The Company’s agreement to purchaseWwasHEerminated in 2002. Northwest Energy had neatjpsas in 2004 or 2003.

Gas Supply and Transportation

General

NW Natural meets the needs of its core utility oostrs through natural gas purchases from a vasfetyppliers. NW Natural has
diverse portfolio of short-, medium- and loteym firm gas supply contracts that it supplemethiising periods of peak demand, with gas f
storage facilities either owned by or contractuatlynmitted to NW Natural.

Gas Acquisition Strategy

NW Natural’s goals in purchasing gas for its catibtyy market consist of:

. Reliability —Ensuring a gas resource portfolio that is suffiti® satisfy core utility customer requirementsiemn
design-year weather conditions, as defined in ¢ Matural Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) (see “Reigm and
Rate—Integrated Resource PI” below);

. Lowest reasonable cost —Acquiring gas supplies at the lowest reasonabd¢ twocustomers;

. Price stability —Making use of physical assets (e.g. gas storaggtfinancial instruments (e.g. derivatives) to ngma
price variability; anc

. Cost recovery —Managing gas purchase costs prudently to minirtieaisk associated with the regulatory disalloveanc

of recovery of gas acquisition cos

To achieve those goals, NW Natural employs a gashpsing strategy based upon (i) diversity of syp) liquidity, (iii) price
risk management, (iv) asset optimization and (gutatory alignment.

Diversity of Supply . NW Natural's supply and capacity plan is basedooecasted system requirements, and takes intmatc
estimated load growth by type of customer, attniticonservation, distribution system constraimtgristate pipeline capacity and contractual
limitations, and the forecasted movement of custsrhetween bundled sales and transportation-omiycee

There are three means by which NW Natural diversifis gas supply acquisitions: (i) regional suggasgin, (ii) contract types and
(iii) contract duration.
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The following table represents the actual and tesgarces of regional supply:

Regional Supply Basin

2004 Actua
Region 200409 Targel
Alberta 26% 45%
British Columbia 46% 30%
U.S. Rockies 27% 25%
Mist gas field 1% <1%
Total 100%

NW Natural believes that gas supplies availablenfeuppliers in the western United States and Caassladequate to serve its ¢
utility customers for the foreseeable future, amat fts cost of gas generally will track marketps.

NW Natural typically enters into gas purchase axts for (i) year-round baseload, (i) November—dhafwinter heating season)
baseload, (iii) winter heating season contractsre/tdV Natural has the option to call on all, som@ane of the supplies on a daily basis,
(iv) spot purchases, taking into account forecastesiomer requirements, storage injections anddnatlials and seasonal weather
fluctuations. Other less frequent types of congr@mtiude April-October baseload contracts, A@rdtober contracts where the supplier ha:
option to supply gas to NW Natural on a daily baaisl seasonal exchange purchase and sale contt¥¢tatural seeks to minimize
amounts to be purchased on the spot market durengvinter heating season to less than 10 percevaridty of multi-year contract durations
are used to avoid having to re-contract all sugpeery year. NW Natural recently transitioned frammajority of long-term contracts to
medium-term contracts, as the long-term contraqtged. See “Core Market Basic Supply,” below.

Liquidity . NW Natural purchases its gas supplies at ligudihg points to facilitate competition and trargpé pricing. These
trading points include NOVA Inventory Transfer (Nlifi Alberta, Sumas and Station 2 in British Coluajtand receipt points in the Rocky
Mountains.

Price Risk Management. There are four general methods that NW Naturalesily uses for managing gas commodity price rigk: (
negotiating fixed prices directly with gas supmig(ii) negotiating financial instruments that “qVanto a fixed price from a floating price
contract, (iii) negotiating financial instrumenkst set a ceiling price on a floating price corit(aag. call option) and (iv) buying gas and
injecting it into storage. See “Cost of Gas,” below

Asset Optimization . NW Natural uses its gas supply flexibility to taqe opportunities that emerge during the courdgbefyear for
gas purchases, sales, exchanges or other meamsmémennet gas costs. In particular, the Mist sofagility provides flexibility in this
regard. In addition to NW Natural’s own activitimseconomically manage its gas supply costs, thegamy contracts with an independent
energy marketing company to more fully capturerojtation opportunities.

Regulatory Alignment . Mechanisms for gas cost recovery are designed fair and balanced for customers and shareholders
Because NW Natural does not earn a return on thegamodity acquisition, risks associated with cesbvery are minimized through:

. the use of purchased gas cost adjustment mechaajgmnsved by regulatory authorities (see “Reguiaind Rates—Rate
Mechanism¢” below);
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. aligning customer and shareholder interests thraingiing in the structure of cost recovery andnoiataition mechanisms; at
. openness in sharing information with the state lagty commissions and key customer groups.

Cost of Gas

NW Natural’s cost of gas to supply its core utilibarket primarily consists of the purchase priciel pasuppliers plus charges paid
to pipelines to transport the gas to NW Natwalistribution system. While the rates for pipelirensportation and storage services are su
to federal regulation, the purchase price of gamts Although pipeline rates have been relatiwapble in recent years, natural gas comm
prices have increased dramatically due to growsmahd for natural gas, especially for power ger@rastagnant North American gas
production, and surging alternate fuel prices. N@fuxal is in a favorable position with respect & groduction because of the proximity of
the Pacific Northwest to supply basins in westean#&tia and the Rocky Mountains, where some growgasrproduction is expected to
continue for the foreseeable future. Managemerng¢ves growth in gas commaodity supply into the Nd@ktherican market is needed to
alleviate price pressures. NW Natural seeks togaiiti the effects of higher gas commaodity pricesmaimb volatility on core utility customers
through the use of its underground storage faedljtby entering into gas commodtigsed financial hedge contracts, and by creditasjopst
with margin revenues derived from off-system salesommodity and released transportation capanifyeriods when core utility customers
do not fully utilize firm pipeline capacity and gsispplies.

Managing the Cost of Gas

NW Natural has an active natural gas commaodityephiedge program that is intended to reduce comsnpdite risk. Under this
program, the Company typically enters into commposiwap and call option agreements for the comirag gad up to three years into the
future, when natural gas prices may be lower. G@asses) from commodity hedges are treated foswatting and rate purposes as reduct
(increases) to the cost of gas. The intended effietttis program is to lock in prices for betwednprcent and 95 percent of NW Natural's
gas supply portfolio for the following year, at padling market prices at the time the swap andaation agreements are entered into. Fixed
prices have been secured for lesser amounts gfigabases for the subsequent two years, which belgsbilize costs and reduce variations
in annual rate changes.

Source of Supplk-Design Day

The effectiveness of NW Natural's gas supply progrslargely dependent on the sources from whieldésign day requirement is
satisfied. A design day is the maximum anticipatethand on the natural gas distribution system dui@4-hour period assuming weather at
an average temperature of 12° F, the coldest déneitast 20 years in NW Natural’'s service tersitddW Natural assumes that all
interruptible customers will be curtailed on theida day. NW Natural’s projected sources of dejier design day firm utility customer
sendout is 8.9 million therms. NW Natural is cuthecapable of meeting 63 percent of its firm cmséw design day requirements with stor
and peaking capabilities. Optimal utilization adrstge and peaking facilities on NW Natural’'s desigy reduces the dependency on firm
transportation. On Jan. 5, 2004, NW Natural expegd a record firm customer sendout of 7.2 miltleerms, and a total sendout of 8.9
million therms, on a day that was approximately @armer than the design day temperature. Thataiara004 cold weather event

8
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lasted about ten days, and the actual firm custaeedout each day provided data indicating that foeecasting models required very little
re-calibration. Accordingly, NW Natural believestlits supplies would be sufficient to meet firnstamer demand if the Company were to
experience design day conditions.

The following table reflects the sources of supthlt are projected to be used to satisfy the detagrsendout for the 2004-2005
winter heating season:

Projected Sources of Supply for Design Day Sendout

Therms Percent

Sources of Supply (in millions)
Firm contracts 3.2t 37
Off-system storag 1.0¢ 12
Mist underground storac 2.3C 26
Compan-owned liquefied natural gas store 1.8C 20
Recall agreemen 0.4t 5
Total 8.8¢ 10C

NW Natural believes the combination of the natgas supply it can purchase under contract, itsipgakipplies and the capacity
held under contract on the interstate pipelineshelsufficient to satisfy the needs of existingtamers and allow for growth in future years.

Core Utility Market Basic Supply

NW Natural purchases gas for its core utility castes from a variety of suppliers located in theteasUnited States and Canada.
About 75 percent of its annual supply comes fromaca, with the balance coming primarily from th&LRocky Mountain region. At Jan.
2005, NW Natural had 28 firm contracts with 14 digyp with remaining terms ranging from three mant five years, which provide for a
maximum of 3.1 million therms of firm gas per dayridg the peak winter heating season and 1.3 milli@rms per day during the remainder
of the year. These contracts have a variety ofmgyistructures and purchase obligations. Duringd200V Natural purchased 756 million
therms of gas under the following contract duragion

Percent of Purchase
Contract Duration

Long-term (10 years or longe 20
Mediun-term (1 to 10 years 39
Shor-term (less than one yes 33
Spot (up to 30 day: 8

Total 10C

The Company regularly renews or replaces its expilong-term and medium-term contracts with neweagrents with a variety of
existing and new suppliers. No single contract am®to more than 200,000 therms per day or 10 pecfehe Company’s average daily
contract volumes. Firm year-round supply contraetge terms ranging from one to ten years. All ef¢bntracts use price formulas tied to
monthly index prices, primarily at the NIT tradipgint in Alberta. NW Natural hedges a majority t3f ¢ontracts each year using financial
instruments as part of its gas purchasing strateesy “Managing the Cost of Gas,” above).

9
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In addition to the yeareund contracts, NW Natural continues to contra@dvance for firm gas supplies to be delivereg daking
the winter heating season primarily under shomteontracts. During 2003 and 2004, new short-teunclpase agreements were entered into
with eight suppliers. These agreements have atyafericing structures and provide for a totalupfto 1.8 million therms per day during
2004-2005 heating season. Two of these contraats, groviding up to 100,000 therms per day, alserekto the 2005-2006 heating season.
NW Natural intends to enter into new purchase agesds in 2005 for equivalent volumes of gas wiheixisting or other similar suppliers
needed to replace short-term and one-year contizattsvill expire during 2005.

NW Natural also buys gas on the spot market asategdmeet demand. NW Natural has flexibility untdher terms of some of its
firm supply contracts enabling it to purchase sja# in lieu of firm contract volumes, thereby aliogvit to take advantage of favorable
pricing on the spot market from time to time.

NW Natural continues to purchase gas from a noitisaéfd producer in the Mist gas field in OregomeTproduction area is situated
near NW Natural's underground gas storage facilitye price for this gas is tied to NW Natural's glgied average cost of gas. Current
production is approximately 13,000 therms per dagnfabout 18 wells, supplying less than 1 percéhMW Natural’s total annual purchase
requirements. Production from these wells variesxasting wells are depleted and new wells ardedril

Core Utility Market Peaking Supply

NW Natural supplements its firm gas supplies wils fom Company-owned or contracted ®fstem storage facilities in which ¢
is stored during periods of low demand for usemuperiods of peak demand. In addition to enaliklg Natural to meet its peak demand,
these facilities make it possible to lower the airaverage cost of gas by allowing NW Natural toimize its pipeline transportation contr
demand and to purchase gas for storage duringuthenser months when prices are generally at theiesw

NW Natural has contracts with Williams Gas Pipelvest, also known as Northwest Pipeline, for firns giorage services from
underground storage facility at Jackson Prairie @=antralia, Washington, and a liquefied natura @aNG) facility at Plymouth,
Washington. Together, these facilities provide N\atidal with daily firm deliverability of about 1rillion therms and total seasonal cape
of about 16 million therms. Separate contracts Witihthwest Pipeline provide for the transportatidnhese storage supplies to NW Natwsal’
service territory. All of these contracts have reatthe end of their primary terms but NW Natuis Bxercised its renewal rights that allow
for annual extensions at its option.

NW Natural owns and operates two LNG plants tlptdfy gas during the summer months for storage thatipeak winter heating
season. These two plants provide a maximum comfdagy deliverability of 1.8 million therms and atal seasonal capacity of 17 million
therms.

NW Natural also provides daily and seasonal peakimg its underground gas storage facility in thist\yas field. This facility has
a maximum daily deliverability of 3.9 million thesrand a total seasonal working gas capacity of R2f9In September 2004, NW Natural
completed and placed into service its South Mipekie Extension (SMPE) project, which completegl tifansmission pipeline from its Mist
gas storage field to growing portions of its distition service area. Also in 2004, a total of 400,€herms per day of Mist storage capacity
that had been available for interstate storage

10
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services was recalled and committed to use for eblisy customers. This is the first instance efurning capacity that had been developed in
advance of core utility customers needs for inédesstorage services to core utility customers utigeregulatory agreement with the OPUC.
Under this agreement, storage capacity is recabeteeded and added to retail utility rate bagie atiginal cost less accumulated
depreciation. The core utility market now has 2iBion therms per day of deliverability and 8.9 Baffworking gas committed from the Mist
storage facility.

In December 2004, NW Natural completed its latgpaasion of the Mist gas storage facility. Thisaetment of approximately
$9.9 million increased the facility’s incrementapacity and total daily delivery capacity by appneately 22 percent to a total of 3.9 million
therms per day. A little over half of the expansieplaced the capacity recalled to the core maketescribed above, and the remainder is
used to serve growth in the interstate storagdErwarket. Ultimately, this expansion is alsoilabée to serve the needs of NW Natural's
core utility customers. The expansion increasedingrgas capacity at Mist to 12.9 Bcf, with 4.0 Bdlbcated to interstate storage services.
As the needs of core utility customers grow, ergsinterstate gas storage capacity will be transfefor use by core utility customers and
tracked into retail rates. Newly developed intdestgas storage capacity can then be developedsatdieplace this recalled storage.

NW Natural also has contracts with one electricegator and two industrial customers that togethevide an additional 102,000
therms per day of year-round upstream capacity, 440,000 therms per day of recallable capacitysapgly. Two of these three contracts
renew from year to year, while the third will ex@in 2010.

Transportation

Dependence on a Single Pipeline. NW Natural is directly connected to a single intates pipeline, Northwest Pipeline. Although the
Company is dependent on a single pipeline, thdipgés bi-directional as it transports gas inte tortland metropolitan market from two
directions: (i) the north, which brings suppliesrfr British Columbia and Alberta supply basins aijdlfe east, which brings supplies from
Alberta and the Rocky Mountain supply basins. Tbhen@any is investigating options to further diversif pipeline transportation paths. The
need for pipeline transportation diversity has baederscored by recent Northwest Pipeline ruptanesthe resulting federal order in 2003
that requires Northwest Pipeline to replace it$n2& mainline from the Canadian border to NW Naltwsraervice territory by December 20

Rates. Rates for pipeline transportation are establisheBERC for service under long-term transportatigreaments between NW
Natural and the U.S. interstate pipelines, and agadian federal or provincial authorities for seevilnder agreements with the Canau
pipelines over which NW Natural ships gas.

Transportation Agreements . The largest of the transportation agreements Mdtthwest Pipeline extends through 2013 and
provides for firm transportation capacity of up2d million therms per day. This agreement provigesess to natural gas supplies in British
Columbia and the U.S. Rocky Mountains.

The Company’s second largest transportation agreewith Northwest Pipeline extends through 201prdvides 1.0 million
therms per day of firm transportation capacity fritv@ point of interconnection of the Northwest Bipeand Gas Transmission Northwest
(GTN) systems in eastern Oregon to NW Natural'siserterritory. GTN's pipeline runs from the U.Sali@adian border through
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northern Idaho, southeastern Washington and cedtegon to the California/Oregon border. NW Natsradtal capacity on GTN and two
upstream pipelines in Canada (Alberta Natural Gamgany and NOVA Corporation of Alberta, which, wi8TN, are all now units of
TransCanada PipeLines Limited) matches this amoluNbrthwest Pipeline capacity northward into AltagiCanada.

NW Natural also has an agreement with Northwestlip that extends through 2013 for 351,550 thgrerday of firm
transportation capacity. This agreement accessesugmlies in the U.S. Rocky Mountain region.

NW Natural also has four long-term pipeline tramsgibon contracts with other interstate transparté@he contract with Duke
Energy Gas Transmission (formerly Westcoast Endrgy) (Duke Energy GT) extends through Octoberf8id provides approximately
600,000 therms per day of firm gas transportatiomfnorthern British Columbia to a connection witbrthwest Pipeline at the U.S.-
Canadian border. The contract with Terasen Gam@dy BC Gas) extends through October 2020 andigesvapproximately 470,000 ther
per day of firm gas transportation from southeasBaitish Columbia to the same connection with Nestst Pipeline at the U.S.-Canadian
border. NW Natural’s capacity with Terasen Gas &ahned with companion contracts for pipeline cayamn systems of Alberta Natural Gas
Company and NOVA Corporation of Alberta that cortrteche gas fields of Alberta, Canada.

Since Northwest Pipeline opened its system tortesportation of customer-owned gas in the lat®498any of NW Natural’s
non-core customers (larger industrial interruptitistomers with full or partial dual fuel capalidg) have switched from sales service to
transportation service whereby they purchase gastti from suppliers and ship the gas on NW Nawidistribution system, and those of its
upstream pipeline suppliers for a fee. The abdityndustrial customers to switch between salegiseland transportation service has made it
possible for NW Natural to retain some of thesaamers. Periodic switching between sales and tateion service by these customers has
had an adverse effect on NW Natural's results efations in certain years, and a positive effecitiver years, as industrial customers have
sought to find the most economical and reliable lioattion of gas supply and delivery services (s@empetition and Marketing,” below). In
2003 and 2004, NW Natural redesigned its industaitds in Oregon and Washington, and as a resipicts less switching from higher-
margin to lower-margin service contracts than & baperienced in the past.

Regulation and Rates

NW Natural is subject to regulation with respegtamong other matters, rates, systems of accondtsauance of securities by the
OPUC and the WUTC. In 2004, 93 percent of NW Natsitility gas deliveries and 92 percent of itdityt operating revenues were derived
from Oregon customers and the balance from Washingistomers.

NW Natural is exempt from the provisions of the iWat Gas Act (Hinshaw exemption) by order of FER&;ept with respect to t
terms and conditions associated with its interggatestorage and related transportation serviees‘(sterstate Gas Storage,” above).

General Rate Cases

NW Natural's most recent general rate increasereg@n, which was effective Sept. 1, 2003, authdrizées designed to produce a
return on shareholders’ equity (ROE) of 10.2 percéhe OPUC approved a revenue increase of $13l@mper year, of which $6.2 million
went into effect on Sept. 1, 2003, and $2.7 milleent into effect on a deferred basis on Nov. T®®as the first
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11.7 miles of the Company’s southern portion of EMfent into service. The remaining $3.8 million fbe southern portion of the SMPE
went into effect on Oct. 1, 2004, upon the completind placement into service of the last segmietiteoSMPE project. Recovery for the
Company’s Coos County distribution system projéc&2 million went into effect on Nov. 1, 2004, ardeferred basis. While not included
in the rate case result, an additional annualretevery of $7.5 million associated with the northportion of the SMPE project became
effective October 1, 2004.

In November 2003, NW Natural filed a general ratsecin Washington that proposed a revenue inca&&&9 million per year
from Washington operations through rate increasesaging 15 percent. In June 2004, the WUTC appravsettiement agreement entered
into by the parties to NW Natural's Washington gaheate case, which became effective on July 042@uthorizing a revenue increase of
$3.5 million per year, or 6.5 percent. In additithe settlement authorized NW Natural to include $MPE cost of service in rates, subject to
audit, concurrent with the annual Washington PwsetaGas Adjustment (PGA) filing, which became affecon Nov. 1, 2004. See “Rate
Mechanisms,” below and Part II, Item 7., “Resuk©perations—Regulatory Matters—General Rate Cases.

In January 2005, the Company filed a rate case tw@hFERC proposing an update of maximum rateth®Company'’s interstate
storage services operation and new service offeriflge requested rate increase is designed tateflsts related to the further development
of the Mist gas storage facilities and costs asdediwith the SMPE project. This filing was madeatisfy FERC’s requirement that there be
a cost and revenue review in three years follovitmgriginal storage service rate authorization.

Rate Mechanisms

Weather normalization . In November 2003, NW Natural implemented a weatitemalization mechanism in Oregon that is
designed to stabilize margins from weather-seresitasidential and commercial customers by adjustimgent billings based on temperature
variances from average weather. The weather nazatan mechanism approved by the OPUC is applié¢dMbNatural’s Oregon residential
and commercial customers’ bills between Nov. 15 Miag 15 of each heating season. The mechanismtadhesmargin component of
customers’ rates to reflect “normal” weather using 25-year average temperature for each day dfiiveg period. The mechanism is
intended to stabilize the recovery of fixed costd to reduce fluctuations in customers’ bills doedlder- or warmer-thaaverage weather.
October 2004, the mechanism was modified to littapward or downward adjustments to individudshio certain specified ranges, with
any excess amounts being deferred.

Purchased Gas Adjustment. In Oregon, NW Natural has a PGA tariff under whigh income derived from Oregon operations may
be affected within defined limits by changes inghased gas costs. The PGA tariff provides for pieicevisions in rates resulting from
changes in the Company’s cost of purchased gass @muded in the PGA adjustments are based onNéi\ral's projected gas
requirements and negotiated gas prices for themjpgpgas supply contract year. Under its Washing@@#, NW Natural is permitted to
track 100 percent of increases and decreases icogasodity costs, with the result that net incomaat directly affected by changes in
commodity costs. In both Oregon and WashingtonPtBé& mechanism permits NW Natural to recover 10@¢mt of FERC-approved
pipeline transportation costs. During the fourtlager of 2004, the staff of the OPUC initiated @ew of gas purchasing strategies for all
three local gas distribution companies serving Onedhe schedule, scope and potential findingsudicg whether the review will lead to
formal proceedings before the OPUC, remain ungertai
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The Oregon PGA tariff provides that 67 percentrof difference between actual purchased gas codtestimated purchased gas
costs incorporated into rates will be deferreddimortization in subsequent periods. If actual gasroodity costs exceed those incorporated
in rates, NW Natural subsequently will adjust étes upward to recover 67 percent of the deficidraay core utility customers. Similarly, if
actual gas commodity costs are lower than thosectefl in rates, rates will be adjusted downwardistribute to core utility customers 67
percent of such gas commodity cost savings.

The OPUC has a formalized process that tests fiesskve earnings in connection with gas utilitesfual filings under their PGA
mechanisms. The OPUC has confirmed NW Natural’talbd pass through 100 percent of its prudentiguirred gas costs into rates. Under
this requirement, NW Natural is authorized to me@i of its earnings up to a threshold level edaats authorized ROE plus 300 basis poi
One-third of any earnings above that level willrbinded to customers. The excess earnings thk&hslbject to adjustment up or down
each year depending on movements in interest rates.

Conservation Tariff . Effective Oct. 1, 2002, the OPUC authorized NWuUxal to implement a “conservation tariff,” which a
mechanism designed to recover lost margin dueaagds in residential and commercial customers’wopsion patterns. The tariff is a
partial decoupling mechanism that is intended &mkithe link between the Company’s earnings andtlaatity of energy consumed by its
customers, so the Company does not have an inediotidiscourage customers’ conservation efforts.

The conservation tariff contains two components fitst, a “price elasticity” factor, adjusts farcreases or decreases in
consumption attributable to annual changes in coditpoosts or periodic changes in the Company’sgairates. The second is a
conservation adjustment calculated on a monthlisliasaccount for deviations between actual ancetgul volumes. Additional revenues or
credits to customers produced by the conservatiprsament are booked to a deferral account thegdgnciled as part of the Company’s
annual PGA. Baseline consumption is based on cwestoonsumption patterns as determined in the Orggogral rate case, adjusted for
consumption resulting from new customers. The gladicoupling mechanism will expire at the end gft8mber 2005 unless the OPUC
approves an extension based on the results ofd@pémdent study to measure the mechanism’s eféaetss. Work on the independent study,
which involves interested parties, is in processiarexpected to be completed by the end of Ma@b2The study is expected to provide the
basis for the Company’s filing to renew the tariff.

As part of the proceeding approving the consermatoiff, NW Natural agreed to adopt certain sesvieiality measures that
establish the Company’s performance goal for miging complaints by customers where the Compangtierchined to be at fault. If NW
Natural exceeds the prescribed level ~fault complaints, it will be subject to penalti&nce inception, NW Natural has not incurred any
penalties under these service quality measures.

Pipeline I ntegrity Cost Recovery . In July 2004, the OPUC approved NW Natural's agapions relating to the accounting treatment
and full recovery for the cost of the pipeline griey management program (IMP) as mandated by ipeliRe Safety Improvement Act of
2002 (Pipeline Safety Act) and related rules adbptethe U.S. Department of Transportation’'s (D@ffice of Pipeline Safety (see Part Il,
Item 7., “Financial Condition—Cash Flows—InvestiAgtivities”). Under the applications as approved, NW Naturalstfigs its IMP costs
either capital expenditures or regulatory assetsjmulates the costs over each 12-month periochgriine 30, and recovers the costs,
subject to
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audit, through rate changes effective on Octob&fredlach year commencing Oct. 1, 2004. The accogiati rate treatment for these costs
extends through Sept. 30, 2008, and may be revidovgubtential extension after that date.

Combined Heat and Power (Gas Fired Distributed Generation) Tariff . On Dec. 21, 2004, the OPUC approved the Company’s
request for a special tariff discount for new Comneloi Heat and Power (CHP) projects. The tariff pdesia discount to CHP projects that use
firm service. The modest discount, combined witieoincentives, is expected to improve the prospeetthe construction of new CHP
projects in the Company’s service territory.

Open Pathway Tariff . The open pathway tariff, approved by the WUTC #relOPUC during the fourth quarter of 2004, reggiir
developers to provide the Company with a trenchirfstallation of mains and services in new develepts. If a trench is not provided, the
tariff requires the developer to pay trenching sobt the past, provision of a trench or reimbursenwas not required. Implementation of the
tariff began in early 2005.

Integrated Resource Plan

The OPUC and WUTC have implemented integrated reequlanning processes under which utilities dgvelans defining
alternative growth scenarios and resource acquissiirategies. NW Natural submitted a draft ofifta IRP in Oregon and Washington in
October 2004. The Company expects to submit itsitRal form during the first quarter of 2005, tlviacknowledgment in Oregon and
acceptance in Washington expected during the semoddhird quarters of 2005, respectively. Elemefithe plan include an evaluation of
supply and demand resources; the considerationagrtainties in the planning process and the neefliekibility to respond to changes; a
primary goal of “least cost” service; and consistewith state energy policy. Although the OPUC’daracknowledging an earlier IRP
indicated the order did not constitute ratemakipgraval of any specific resource acquisition orengiture, the OPUC did indicate that it
would give considerable weight in prudency revigastility actions that are consistent with acknetlded plans. Elements of NW Natural's
draft IRP demonstrate that the continued developmiethe Mist underground gas storage facilityhis keast-cost option for serving customer
growth (see “Additions to Infrastructure,” below).

Additions to Infrastructure

NW Natural expects a high level of capital expemdis for additions to infrastructure over the rfesd years, reflecting projected
customer growth, system replacement, improvemetteinforcement projects and the development oftiath@l gas storage facilities. NW
Natura'’s utility construction expenditures are estimatigdbtal between $500 million and $600 million otlee five-year period 2005 through
2009, including an estimated $110 million in 2005.

NW Natural continues to be one of the fastest gngvgas utilities in the nation (see “Competitiorn &harketing,” below). In 2004,
NW Natural grew its customer base by more thanr8que for the 1 year in a row, and in 2005 it expects to contirha trend with
projected capital expenditures of $28 million foe addition of new customers.

NW Natural expects to have significant capital iegments during the next five years for systemaepinent, improvement and
reinforcement projects. These include requirempuatsuant to new federal legislation as well as agjiares under NW Natural's ongoing
pipeline safety program (see “Pipeline Safety, gl
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The extension of the pipeline from NW Natural’s Migss storage field, designed to move more gaggirdwing portions of its
service area (see “Gas Supply—Core Utility Markealking Supply,” above), has an estimated total @b$1.10 million. The project was
completed in late September 2004; however, NW Natontinues to negotiate with some landownersrdigg valuation of easements and
rights-of-way obtained pursuant to condemnatiorceealings during the course of construction. In soases, compensation will be
determined in individual court proceedings thatéhbeen scheduled through June 2005. The Compamalsde to determine the likelihood of
unfavorable outcomes of these matters, but belithatthe aggregate amount of compensation ultignated will not materially affect the
Company'’s financial condition, results of operasiam cash flows.

Pipeline Safety

The Pipeline Safety Act requires operators of gassimission pipelines to identify lines locateddigh Consequence Areas (HC/
and develop IMPs to periodically inspect the initygof the pipelines and make repairs or replacdman necessary to ensure the ongoing
safety of the pipelines. The legislation requird¥ Niatural to complete inspection of 50 percentef highest risk pipelines located in its
HCAs within the first five years, and the remaintmyered pipelines within 10 years of the dater@fotment. The Pipeline Safety Act also
requires re-inspections of the covered pipelinesyeseven years from the date of the previous ttgpefor the life of the pipelines. In
December 2003, the U.S. Department of Transportasgued a final rule that specifies the detaiglirements for transmission IMPs as
mandated by the Pipeline Safety Act. See Paitéim 7., “Financial Condition—Cash Flows—Investigfivities.” In 2004, NW Natural met
the first major milestones required by the Pipeladety Act and IMP rules by commencing pipelinegnity assessments and meeting the
following additional requirements before the reqdideadlines:

. determined the HCAs along the Company’s transmisgipeline system;

. performed a risk analysis on the pipelines withia HCAS;

. wrote a Baseline Assessment Plan to evaluate thgitaan of covered pipelines; and
. completed a written IMP.

Effective Jan. 12, 2005, NW Natural assumed respilities as operator of the pipeline that trangpaas to Coos County, Oregon.
The requirements of the Pipeline Safety Act wilabpply to NW Natural as operator of that pipeline

NW Natural entered into a stipulation with the OPIB001 for an enhanced pipeline safety prograahititludes an accelerated
bare steel replacement program and a geo-hazaty gabgram. The bare steel replacement prograelerates the replacement of NW
Natura’s bare steel piping over 20 years instead of 403/€The geo-hazard safety program includes theifabation, assessment and
remediation of risks to piping infrastructure cexhby landslides, washouts, earthquakes or simdenrrences. The stipulation allowed NW
Natural to receive deferred accounting rate treatrmemmencing Oct. 1, 2002, for costs associatéil tve bare steel replacement progi
exceeding $3 million per year and the actual casseciated with the geo-hazard safety program,ctegéo be approximately $1.5 million
annually.
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Competition and Marketing

Competition with Other Energy Products

NW Natural has no direct competition in its servdcea from other natural gas distributors. Fordersiial customerdieating need:
however, NW Natural competes with electricity, fo#| propane and, to a lesser extent, wood. t atsnpetes with electricity and fuel oil for
commercial applications. In the industrial markéty Natural competes with all forms of energy, inthg gas-to-gas competition from third-
party sellers of natural gas. Competition amongéherms of energy is based on price, reliabiéfficiency and performance.

The competitive price advantage of natural gas elamtricity declined in 2004 due to higher natwa$ commaodity prices and
relatively stable electricity prices in both theidential and commercial markets. The current paibeantage varies due to differences in retail
electric rates between investor-owned utilitieserehNW Natural has maintained a moderate pricerddga, and the public utilities, where
NW Natura’s price advantage, if any, is marginal. In 200thaugh electricity prices continued to become mmmpetitive primarily due to
improving end use technology, natural gas retaitsegtlative price advantage compared to elecyrigibvided by the investor-owned utilities
that serve approximately 75 percent of the homé@#AhNatural’s Oregon service area. NW Natural expéz maintain a price advantage
compared to electricity provided by the investomed electric utilities in its service territory, fiart because a growing portion of the
electricity sold by these utilities is generatemhfrnatural gas. Although the price advantage fturahgas compared to oil continued to be
favorable in 2004, there were fewer residentiavessions from heating oil to natural gas during£2@Qe to volatile gas prices, weak
economic conditions and a decline in the remaimirgntory of potential oil conversion opportunities

Residential and Commercial Markets

The relatively low market saturation of natural gasesidential single-family and attached dweling NW Natural's service
territory, estimated at approximately 50 percergether with the price advantage of natural gaspewed with electricity in some areas and
its operating convenience over fuel oil, provides potential for continuing growth in the residahtind commercial conversion markets. In
2004, 17,725 net residential customers (after agbirg disconnected or terminated services) wededdncluding 5,224 units of existing
residential housing that were converted from ddceic or propane appliances to natural gas. Etdatal of all new customers added in 2004
was 18,485. This constituted a growth rate of 2&@nt, which is about twice the national averaygddcal gas distribution companies as
reported by the American Gas Association.

Due to weather that was about 3 percent warmed@4 2han in 2003 and 8 percent warmer than aveeagka decrease in weather-
sensitive customer consumption due to commodityepBlated rate increases and continuing conservaffonts, natural gas sales volume:
residential and commercial customers in 2004 wboaial percent lower than in 2003.

Industrial Markets

As a result of the deregulation and restructurifithe energy markets during the past decade, theaiaas industry, including
producers, interstate pipelines and local gasibligton companies, has undergone many changesitidradly, local gas distribution
companies sold a “bundled” product that includethlibe natural gas commodity and delivery to théemddowever, beginning in the late
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1980s, large industrial customers sought to actsavengs by procuring their own supplies of natgesd from producers and contracting with
pipelines and local gas distribution companiedrf@nsportation to their facilities. These changesanntended to promote competition where
it is economically beneficial to consumers.

Competition to serve the industrial and large comtaémarket in the Pacific Northwest has beentiadly steady since the early
1990s in terms of numbers and types of competi@osapetitors consist of gas marketers, oil/propseikers and electric utilities. Wood-
based fuels continue to lose market share in timeskets primarily due to environmental concerns rastrictions.

The OPUC and WUTC have approved transportatioffsamder which NW Natural may contract with cusamto deliver
customer-owned gas. Transportation tariffs avadlablindustrial customers are priced at the Comigarnst of providing transportation
service. Generally, the Company is unaffected fifelly if industrial customers transport custonogvned gas rather than purchasing gas:
NW Natural, as long as they remain on a tariff @mtcact with the same quality of service. Howeusdustrial customers may select betw:
firm and interruptible service, among other diffgrevels or qualities of service, and these ctoaan positively or negatively affect margin
revenue from such customers. The relative leveharatility of prices in the natural gas commaoditarkets, the availability of interstate
pipeline capacity to ship customer-owned gas aadttst structure embedded in NW Natural’s industaiies are among the primary factors
that have caused some industrial customers toatiebetween sales and transportation servicetaeba higher and lower qualities of
service. NW Natural re-designed its industrial sateOregon and Washington as part of its genatalgases in 2003 and 2004, respectively,
in order to better reflect relative costs of sezvémd to become more competitive in the industniatket. As a result, it expects less switching
from higher-margin to lower-margin service contsaittan it has experienced in the past.

NW Natural's industrial base, which includes custosnn the high-tech, forest products and otheusiries that are sensitive to
economic conditions, showed improvement in 2004esSservice continued to be strong in 2004 comptrgaevious years largely because
spot prices in the gas commodity market were higieen the weighted average cost of gas embedddWimNatural’s sales rates for the year.
The mix within the industrial market between firmdainterruptible service was different in 2004,wdkeliveries under industrial firm service
tariffs constituting 43 percent of total industriliveries in 2004, compared to 39 percent in 2003

NW Natural and certain of its largest industriabimumers have entered into negotiated transportagorice agreements. These
agreements are designed to provide transportadtes that are competitive with the customer’s a#teve capital and operating costs of
installing direct connections to Northwest Pipeknaterstate pipeline system, bypassing NW Natsiigés distribution system. The
agreements generally prohibit bypass during tleeins. Due to the cost pressures that confront dauof NW Natural’s largest customers
that compete in global markets, bypass continuée ta threat. Although NW Natural does not expesigaificant number of its large
customers to bypass its system in the foreseeahlesf it may experience further deterioration afrgin associated with customers’ transfers
to contracts with pricing designed to be compaeditiith bypass.

Off-System Gas Commodity Sales

NW Natural is authorized by the OPUC to make offteyjn commaodity sales when seasonal demand is loiw.often allows NW
Natural to compete effectively with independent gesketers
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Sixty-seven percent of the margin revenues (gressnues less the actual cost of gas) generatedtfrese sales are refunded to Oregon’s
core utility customers through cost of gas savimgt) the remaining balance reflected in net income

Environmental Matters

The Company'’s properties and facilities are sultjgééderal, state and local laws and regulatiefeted to environmental matters.
These evolving laws and regulations may requireepgjiures over a long timeframe to control envirental effects. Estimates of liabilities
for environmental response costs are difficultétedmine with precision because of the variousofadhat can affect their ultimate level.
These factors include, but are not limited to,ftiilwing:

. the complexity of the site;

. changes in environmental laws and regulationseatdtieral, state and local levels;

. the number of regulatory agencies or other paitiesived;

. new technology that renders previous technologpleles or experience with existing technology thatvgs ineffective;
. the ultimate selection of technology;

. the level of remediation required; and

. variations between the estimated and actual pefitiche that must be dedicated to respond to airemwentally-
contaminated site

NW Natural owns or previously owned properties ently being investigated that may require environtakresponse, including a
property in Multnomah County, Oregon that is tte sif a former gas manufacturing plant that wasexioin 1956 (the Gasco site), a property
adjacent to the Gasco site that now is the locaifamanufacturing plant owned by Siltronic Coigt@n, formerly Wacker Siltronic
Corporation (the Wacker site), and an area adjaoethie Gasco site and the Wacker site along a segaf the Willamette River (the Portle
Harbor) that has been listed by the U.S. EnvirortaidProtection Agency as a Superfund site for whighCompany has been identified as
one of a number of potentially responsible parfidse Company does not expect that the ultimatdugso of these matters will have a
material adverse effect on its financial conditissults of operations or cash flows. See Noteo1Bd accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements for a further discussion of potentigirenmental responses and related costs.

Employees

At Dec. 31, 2004, NW Natural had 1,288 employeésyhoch 875 were members of the Office and Professi Employees
International Union (OPEIU), Local No. 11, AFL-CIO.

On March 12, 2004, NW Natural employees who are bemof the OPEIU, Local No. 11, approved a newidagreement (Joint
Accord) covering wages, benefits and working caadg that will expire on May 31, 2009. Key elemeunftshe agreement include:

. a 3.5 percent wage increase in the first year aravarage 3.0 percent wage increase per yeardaethaining four years;
. no layoff of any regular union employee who was kygd before April 1, 2004; and

. effective Jan. 1, 2005, a contribution of 25 cgrescompensable hour on behalf of each union ereplty the Western States
Office and Professional Employees Pension Fund;lwbontributions will increase 3 percent each yaprto 30 cents per
compensable hou
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Available Information

The Company files annual, quarterly and speciadmspand other information with the Securities &xdhange Commission (SEC).
The Company makes available on its website ( hitpav.nwnatural.con), free of charge, its annual report on Form 1@yifarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on FornkK8and amendments to those reports, as well ag/praterials, filed or furnished pursuant to Sec
13(a) or 15(d) and Section 14 of the Securitieshiarge Act of 1934, as soon as reasonably practicdtdr it electronically files such
material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for gll@yees and a Financial Code of Ethics that appdiesgnior financial
employees, both of which are available on the Campjsavebsite. The Company’s Corporate Governanaadsatrds, Director Independence
Standards, charters of each of the committeesecoBtiard of Directors and additional information abNW Natural are also available on the
website.

Copies of these documents may be requested, aishoby writing or calling Shareholder ServicesrtNwest Natural Gas
Company, One Pacific Square, 220 N.W. Second Avdnorland, Oregon 97209, telephone 503-226-4211.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

NW Natural’s natural gas distribution system cotssif 12,925 miles of distribution and transmissisains. In addition, the
distribution system includes service pipes, medexsregulators, and gas regulating and meteririgpisga The mains and feeder lines are
located in municipal streets or alleys pursuanaiad franchise or occupation ordinances, in coungds or state highways pursuant to valid
agreements or permits granted pursuant to statute lands of others pursuant to valid easemesttsreed from the owners of such lands.
NW Natural also holds all necessary permits fordteessing of the Willamette River and a numberroéler rivers by its main:

NW Natural owns service facilities in Portland veall as various satellite service centers, garagaschouses and other buildings
necessary and useful in the conduct of its busineksases office space in Portland for its cogpetheadquarters, which lease was renewed ir
2003. District offices are maintained on ownedeasied premises at convenient points in the digimibgystem. NW Natural owns LNG
facilities in Portland and near Newport, Oregon.

NW Natural holds interests in 7,934 net acres afeuground natural gas storage and 2,660 net atmélsamd gas leases in Oregon.
NW Natural owns rights to depleted gas reservadar Mist, Oregon, that are continuing to be devetdbas underground gas storage facili
It also holds an option to purchase future storaggs in certain other areas of the Mist gas field

In order to reduce risks associated with gas leakaglder parts of its system, NW Natural undéettan accelerated pipe
replacement program in the 1980s under which iored or replaced 100 percent of its cast iron mayn®©ctober 2000. In 2001, NW
Natural initiated an accelerated pipe replacemssgnam under which it will reduce the amount ofeébsiteel mains in the syste

NW Natural considers all of its properties currgntsed in its operations, both owned and leaselk twell maintained, in good
operating condition, and, along with currently plad additions, adequate for its present and foabdeduture needs.
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NW Natural's Mortgage and Deed of Trust is a firgirtgage lien on substantially all of the propexystituting its utility plant.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Litigation

On Oct. 16, 2003, Longview Fibre Company (Longvidied suit in Federal Courtl{ongview Fibre Company v. Enerfin Resout
Northwest Limited Partnership and Northwest Natugals Compan(US District Court - Oregon District)) seeking actigatory judgment
regarding the continuing existence of a certairand gas lease in the Mist gas field between Lawpand Enerfin Resources Northwest
Limited Partnership (Enerfin). NW Natural holdsasgtorage lease from Longview (the Cascade Leab@&h covers the same land as the
Enerfin lease, and grants the right to producevaatil and gas. Enerfin originally filed crossclaimgainst NW Natural alleging that NW
Natural wrongly interfered with Ener's attempts to continue its oil and gas lease withgview; however, Enerfin agreed to dismiss those
claims in a previous settlement with NW Naturaltiat settlement, NW Natural subleased portionth®iCascade Lease to Enerfin for the
purpose of producing native gas. In September 2804 Natural and Enerfin filed claims and counteirola against Longview, and Longvie
filed claims and counterclaims against NW Natural &nerfin. The claims that Longview made againat Natural involved allegations of
unpaid royalties under the Cascade Lease.

All parties to the Longview litigation entered irddSettlement Agreement, effective Jan. 11, 2085t of the settlement,
Longview granted NW Natural an easement for ugganlucing oil and gas from the lands covered byGhscade Lease. Other than
payments made in respect of the easement, andy@aiments under the relevant leases and subleakieh were not material, no payme
were made in connection with the Longview settletmAah claims were dismissed on Jan. 28, 2005 pamsto the Settlement Agreement.

On May 28, 2004, a lawsuit was filed against thenBany(Kerry Law, Arnold Zuehlke and Kenneth Cooper, ehdif of
themselves and all others similarly situated v.tNaest Natural Gas Compaify.S. Dist. Ct. D. Or., Case No. CV-04-728-AS))thyee
individuals alleging violation of the Fair LaboraBdards Act for failure to pay overtime. The sutsvsubsequently amended to include state
wage and hour claims. The plaintiffs are or havendedependent backhoe operators who performeditesrior the Company under contract.
In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs claim that they, aoithers similarly situated, should have been careid “employees” of the Company instead of
independent contractors. The plaintiffs seek omertand interest in amounts to be determined, lajed damages equal to the overtime
award, civil penalties and attorneys fees and cd$its plaintiffs sought to certify this case alective action under the Fair Labor
Standards Act; however, on Oct. 5, 2004, plairitifistion for collective action certification wasmed. As a result of this ruling, the case is
proceeding with the three current plaintiffs, amg athers who wish to join must do so individualythough no other claims have been filed
in this lawsuit, plaintiffs’ counsel has indicatexthe court their intention to file additional ictes seeking employee benefits allegedly due to
plaintiffs. In addition, the claims in the lawsdi¢scribed below may be consolidated with this latw3ithe Company intends to vigorously
contest the claims. There is insufficient inforroatat this point in the litigation to reasonablyireate the amount of liability, if any, from this
claim.

On Feb. 18, 2005, a lawsuit was filed against thmmgany (Kasey Cooper, Kevin Cooper, C.G. Nick Courtneyn)shShooter, ke
Whittlesey and Roger Whittlesey v. Northwest Nat{weS. Dist. Ct. D. Or., Case No. CV-05-241-Kl)) &ix additional individual
independent backhoe operators
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who have performed services for the Company undeiract. Like the plaintiffs in the claim describalove, these plaintiffs allege that they
should have been considered “employees” of the Gomprhey seek overtime wages under the Fair L&bamdards Act and interest in
amounts to be determined, liquidated damages ¢gtla¢ overtime award, civil penalties and attomfes and costs. In addition, the
plaintiffs allege that failure to classify themersployees constituted a breach of contract undéaineof the Company’s employee benefit
programs, agreements and plans, which conferredbgmpnt-related compensation, rights and benéftigy seek an unspecified amount of
damages for the value of what they would have veceunder these programs, agreements and plareyihiad been classified as employees.
The Company intends to vigorously contest the daifilmere is insufficient information at this pointthe litigation to reasonably estimate the
amount of liability, if any, from this claim.

On Dec. 20, 2004, the Company was served withrd-fJarty complaint by the Port of Portland (Pontpi Multhomah County
Circuit Court caseQregon Steel Mills, Inc. v. The Port of Portlan@ihe Port alleges that in the 1940’s and 18%@troleum wastes genera
by the Company’s predecessor, Portland Gas & Cakepany, and nine other third-party defendants wesgosed of in a waste oil disposal
facility operated by the United States or Shavems$portation Company on property then owned bytite and now owned by Oregon Steel
Mills. The Port’s complaint seeks contribution forspecified past remedial action costs incurrethbyPort regarding the former waste oil
disposal facility as well as a declaratory judgmedtdcating liability for future remedial action sts. NW Natural does not believe there are
facts sufficient to constitute a claim against@wmmpany.

The Company is subject to other claims and litmyagrising in the ordinary course of business. @t the final outcome of any
these legal proceedings cannot be predicted withiogy, the Company does not expect that the alttntisposition of these matters will h:
a materially adverse effect on the Company’s fif@reondition, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITMOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sicholders, through the solicitation of proxiesotinerwise, during the fourth
quarter of the year ended Dec. 31, 2004.

22



Table of Contents

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITYRELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIE

(A) NW Natural’'s common stock is listed and tradeshe New York Stock Exchange under the symbol NW

The quarterly high and low trades for NW Naturakenmon stock during the past two years were agvisli

2004 2003
Quarter Ende: Higk Low Higr Low
March 31 $33.0C $29.9¢ $28.4% $24.0¢
June 3( 31.6¢ 27.4¢ 28.8¢ 24.71
September 3 32.37 28.8¢ 30.11 27.0z
December 3. 34.1: 30.77 31.3( 28.51

The closing quotations for the common stock on [3&¢.2004 and 2003 were $33.74 and $30.75, respébcti
(B) As of Dec. 31, 2004, there were 9,359 had#rrecord of the Company’s common stock.

(C) NW Natural has paid quarterly dividends tsncommon stock in each year since the stockiest issued to the public in
1951. Annual common dividend payments have incabaseh year since 1956. Dividends per share paidgithe past two years were as
follows:

Payment Date 2004 2003
February 1* $0.32¢ $0.31¢
May 15 0.32¢ 0.31¢
August 15 0.32¢ 0.31¢
November 1t 0.32¢ 0.32¢
Total per shar $1.30(C $1.27C

The amount and timing of dividends payable on then@any’s common stock are within the sole discretibthe Company Boart
of Directors. It is the intention of the Board oiff€tors to continue to pay cash dividends on tbm@any’s common stock on a quarterly
basis. However, future dividends will be dependgrdn NW Natural’s earnings, its financial conditamd other factors.

NW Natural’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Puseh@lan permits registered owners of common stoc&ihvest all or a
portion of their quarterly dividends in additiorsddares of common stock at the current market pshareholders also may invest cash on a
monthly basis, up to $50,000 per calendar yeaduitional shares at the current market price. #2004, dividend reinvestments and
optional cash investments under the Plan aggre@t&dmillion and resulted in the issuance of 184 ,4hares of common stock. During the
27 years the Plan has been available, the Compasissued and sold 4,651,436 shares of common wtaick produced $102.9 million in
additional capital.
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(D) The following table provides information aligourchases by the Company during the quarterceDae. 31, 2004 of equity
securities that are registered by the Company putdo Section 12 of the Exchange Act:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(@) (b) (c) (d)
Total Number of Shares Maximum Dollar Value of
Total Number of Average Purchased as Part of Publicl Shares that May Yet Be
Price Paid Purchased Under the Plans c
Shares Announced Plans or
Period Purchased(1) per Share Programs (2) Programs (2)
Balance
forward 355,40( $ 26,800,000
10/01/0+
10/31/04 - - - -
11/01/0+~
11/30/04 1,00(¢ $ 33.2¢ - -
12/01/0+
12/31/04 5,35¢ $ 33.8C - -
Total 6,35¢ $ 33.7¢ 355,40( $ 26,800,00

(1) During the three months ended Dec. 31, 200£Ltmapany accepted 6,355 shares of its common s®playment for stock
option exercises pursuant to the Company’s Res#tieek Option Plan.

(2) On May 25, 2000, the Company announced a pnogoaepurchase up to 2 million shares, or up @ ®dlion in value, of NW
Natura’s common stock pursuant to a repurchase progratrhtis been extended annually. The purchases aeimthe open market or
through privately negotiated transactions. Sineegpitogram’s inception, the Company has repurchasédi00 shares of common stock at a
total cost of $8.2 million. On April 22, 2004, NWalliral's Board of Directors extended the prograrough May 31, 2005.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table sets forth selected financiatadconcerning the Company’s operations and firéuoindition.

For the year ended Dec. 31,

Thousands, except per share amounts and

ratio of earnings to fixed charg 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Sales revenue
Residentia $ 381,52t $ 328,46: $ 354,73! $ 329,90 $ 280,64.
Commercial 199,72! 176,38! 201,47 190,23¢ 159,66(
Industrial- firm 44,62t 33,57¢ 42,96¢ 49,66 37,37¢
Industrial- interruptible 55,38( 23,66 15,931 34,28: 23,48:
Unbilled revenue 3,84¢ 14,47 (12,709 13,77¢ 12,66
Total gas sales revenu 685,10! 576,56. 602,411 617,86( 513,82.
Transportatior 12,65¢ 17,96: 26,02( 20,631 21,49
Other 3,18¢ 7,46( 4,01¢ (2,325 (3,97¢)
Total gross utility operating revenu 700,94! 601,98: 632,44t 636,17: 531,33¢
Cost of gas sol 399,17¢ 323,12¢ 353,03: 364,69 273,97¢
Net utility operating revenue 301,76¢ 278,85t 279,41« 271,47 257,36
Net nor-utility operating revenue 6,591 9,21( 8,13( 4,53¢ 58¢
Net operating revenut $ 308,36( $ 288,06t $ 287,54 $ 276,01: $ 257,95(
Net income $ 5057 $ 4598: $ 43,79 $ 50,18 $ 50,22«
Redeemable preferred and preference stock dividend
requirement: - 294 2,28( 2,401 2,45¢
Earnings applicable to common stc $ 50,57 $ 4568¢ $ 41,51 $ 47,78¢ $ 47,76¢

Average common shares outstandi

Basic 27,01¢ 25,74 25,43: 25,15¢ 25,18:

Diluted 27,28: 26,06. 25,81 25,61 25,63¢
Earnings per share of common stc

Basic $ 187 % 177 $ 1.65 $ 1.9C $ 1.9C

Diluted $ 1.8¢ % 1.7¢  $ 1.62 $ 1.8¢ $ 1.8¢
Dividends per share of common stc $ 1.3C % 127 % 1.2¢ $ 124 $ 1.24
Total asset- at end of periol $1,732,19!  $1,585,37¢  $1,467,27 $1,550,65. $1,385,41.
Redeemable preferred stc $ - 3 - $ 8,25 $ 9,00C $  9,75(
Redeemable preference st $ -8 - $ - $ 25,00( $ 25,00(
Long-term debt $ 484,02° $ 500,31¢ $ 445,94 $ 378,37 $ 400,79(
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 3.02 2.84 2.8t 3.14 3.14

Certain amounts from prior years have been rediaddb conform, for comparison purposes, with ¢herent financial statement presentat
These reclassifications had no impact on prior geasolidated results of operations.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (continued)

Thousands, except customer, degree day, usageaarabst

per therm dat 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Capitalization- at end of perioi
Common stock equit $ 568,51 $ 506,31t $ 482,39. $ 468,16: $ 452,30¢
Redeemable preference stc - - - 25,00( 25,00(
Redeemable preferred stc - - 8,25( 9,00( 9,75(
Long-term debr 484,02 500,31¢ 445,94! 378,37 400,79(
Total capitalizatior $1,052,54.  $1,006,63! $ 936,580 $ 880,53t $ 887,84¢
Gas sales and transportation deliveries (ther
Residentia 356,19¢ 343,53 357,09: 350,06! 356,37!
Commercial 226,49( 226,25 240,15! 242,29: 250,38(
Industrial- firm 63,14¢ 55,31« 63,21¢ 79,77¢ 76,55¢
Industrial- interruptible 104,27¢ 47,99¢ 26,241 63,59" 56,63:
Unbilled therms (7,769 12,09¢ (6,617) 1,771 8,691
Total gas sale 742,35: 685,19t 680,08! 737,50: 748,63
Transportatior 389,51 414,55 445,99¢ 385,78: 431,13¢
Total volumes delivere 1,131,86 1,099,75: 1,126,08. 1,123,28 1,179,77.
Customers (average for perio
Residentia 525,97t 510,33t 492,87: 474,37: 456,44
Commercial 57,97 56,50« 55,41¢ 54,62¢ 53,611
Industrial- firm 62¢ 362 35C 377 37¢
Industrial- interruptible 17¢ 98 74 141 11¢€
Transportatior 10€ 17¢ 19C 111 12t
Total customer 584,86. 567,47¢ 548,90: 529,63( 510,68
Customer statistic:
Heat requirement
Actual degree day 3,85¢ 3,952 4,232 4,32¢ 4,41¢
25-year average degree d¢ 4,202 4,23¢ 4,25¢ 4,26 4,27:
Average annual use per customer in thel
Residentia 677 672 72t 73¢ 781
Commercial 3,907 4,00¢ 4,33¢ 4,43¢ 4,67(
Gas purchased cost per the- net (cents 56.6( 46.9¢ 51.07 47.1¢ 37.6¢
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following is management’s assessment of NorshWatural Gas Company'’s financial condition indhggdthe
principal factors that affect results of operatiohise discussion refers to the consolidated a@ibf the Company for the three years ended
Dec. 31, 2004. Unless otherwise indicated, refereme this discussion to “Notes” are to the notethé consolidated financial statements in
this report.

The consolidated financial statements include ¢grilated parent company, Northwest Natural Gas @osmniNW
Natural), and its nc-regulated wholly-owned subsidiaries:

. NNG Financial Corporation (Financial Corporatic
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
. Northwest Energy Corporation (Northwest Ener;

and its wholly-owned subsidiary

Together these businesses are referred to heréiie &8ompany.” In this report, the term “utilitys used to describe the
Company’s regulated gas distribution business haddrm “non-utility” is used to describe its irgtate gas storage business and other non-
regulated activities (see Note 2).

In addition to presenting results of operations @achings amounts in total, certain measures gmeesged in cents per
share. These amounts reflect factors that dirécghact earnings. The Company believes this persindormation is useful because it enal
readers to better understand the impact of theserfaon earnings. All references in this repordonings per share are on the basis of dil
shares (see Note 1).

Executive Summary

The Company'’s strategy in 2004 was to strengtteefinancial position and remain focused on profitajsowing its
regulated gas distribution business and intergfasestorage business.

Highlights of 2004 include:

. overall earnings growth of 11 percent over 2003 desveather conditions that were 3 percent warmer;

. the addition of 18,485 customers, for a growth natexcess of 3 percent for the ®18onsecutive year;

. the issuance of $40 million in common stock throagtublic offering to help fund major constructimmjects and maintain a
balanced capital structur

. the upgrade of the Company’s long-term debt raiing+ by the Standard & Poor’s Rating Services;

. the completion ahead of schedule of the Compamytgekt construction project to date, the 61-miletbdist Pipeline
Extension (SMPE), which received timely regulatapproval for recovering its costs through custoragrs in both Oregon
and Washingtor

. regulatory approval to track future pipeline infiggmanagement costs into rates in Oregon;
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. a new 5-year labor agreement, also known as tim¢ Bocord,;
. the settlement and early implementation of the Wagn general rate case;

. expansion of the Comparsyfjas distribution system into Coos County, Oregorarea targeted for natural gas service for
three decades; a1

. the development of additional gas storage capatilyist for interstate storage services, replaciapacity that had been
recalled to meet cowtility customer requirement

Issues, Challenges and Performance Measures

There are a number of factors that affect the Cayigabperations and financial performance. The msagtificant issues
and challenges the Company expects to face in 2@ide high gas commodity prices, unpredictablativer conditions, the impact of
regulatory actions or policy changes, managingsgaplies and storage capacity, maintaining a catheadvantage over alternate fuels,
managing environmental risks and exposures, anrt@iceconomic recovery and higher interest rdtes.a detailed listing of other risks
facing the Company, see “Forward-Looking Statenieants “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures AbMarket Risk,” below.

In order to deal with these and other issues affg¢he business, the Company’s strategic plamudes strategies for:

. improving NW Natural’s ability to add customers @rofitably and at a rapid pace;
. maintaining NW Natural’s reputation for exemplagnsce;

. reducing business risk;

. managing all costs, including capital expenditures;

. setting high performance standards for all emplsyaad

. judiciously growing beyond the Comp¢'s local distribution business where such growthuldaomplement core
assets and competenci

In addition to return on equity (ROE) and commoaniggratio as key indicators of the Company’s opiegaperformance
and financial condition, other key performance reas the Company uses in monitoring progress agigsngoals are utility earnings per
share, customer satisfaction ratings, new custaaéitions, operations and maintenance expenseug@mer, construction cost per meter
installed, and non-revenue producing capital exjteres per customer.

Earnings and Dividends

Earnings applicable to common stock were $50.6anillor $1.86 a diluted share, for the year ended. 31, 2004,
compared to $45.7 million, or $1.76 a share, ardS#illion, or $1.62 a share, for the years ended. 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Returns on average common equity for these thraesyeere 9.4 percent, 9.3 percent and 8.7 penaspectively. Primary factors affecting
earnings, and the resulting positive (negative)aotpnclude:

2004 compared to 2003:

. increased the contribution to net operating reverfm@rgin) from residential and commercial custamimarily resulting from
the Oregon and Washington general rate increasesgding rate increases for the SMPE investmentzafudl year effect of the
weather normalization mechani— $26 million;
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increased margin contribution from industrial cuséss resulting from rate redesigns in the 2003 @rageneral rate case and a
recovering econom- $4.8 million;

decreased margin from other utility operating rexandue to changes in and amortizations underahg@ny’s regulatory
deferral mechanisn— ($7.8 million);

increased franchise tax expense due to higher geossiues — ($2.2 million);

increased payroll and related payroll tax, pensiot health care costs primarily due to wage arahsaicreases and certain
benefit cost increase ($4.6 million);

internal development costs and external audit felaging to the implementation of Section 404 & Sarbane®xley Act of 2002
including compliance documentation and testing iregqoents— ($1.5 million);

increases in depreciation and property taxes dadded utility plant — ($3.8 million);

decreased margin from interstate gas storage esrdige to less volatility in natural gas priceaitials — ($2.6 million);

reduced income before tax from non-utility subsigiavestments, including a $0.5 million charge &orimpending sale of solar
electric generating investmer— ($0.3 million); and
increased income taxes — ($3.2 million).

2003 compared to 2002:

earnings for 2002 were reduced by special chamjebrtg $13.9 million before tax, or $8.4 milliofter tax, representing the
Compan’s transaction costs incurred in its effort to aocg#Hortland General Electric Company (PGE) fronpé&gent, Enron
increased margin contribution from residential anthmercial customers primarily resulting from ratereases — $9.9 million;

increased gains in market value of equity-basedri$urance investments — $2.0 million;

reductions in interest charges on deferred regylatocount balances resulting from lower balaneestd a $30 million customer
refund in 2002 from accumulated gas cost sav- $1.4 million;
increased income before tax from the interstatesgaage segment — $1.1 million;

increased payroll and related payroll tax, pendi@ajth care and other benefit costs — ($8.1 miljio
increases in other operations and maintenance €¢$&4 million);

decreased margin contribution from industrial costes due to weak economic conditions — ($3.0 nmijtio
increases in depreciation expense and property t@kating to added utility plant — ($3.1 million);
increases in other employee benefit costs — ($dlBm); and

reduced income before tax from non-utility subsigiavestments — ($0.5 million).

Dividends paid on common stock were $1.30 a she2®04, compared to $1.27 a share in 2003 and $lsP@re in

2002. The 2004 increase in dividends paid markg#ieconsecutive year of dividend increases.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and ksates

In preparing the Company’s financial statementagigienerally accepted accounting principles indh#éed States of

America (GAAP), management exercises judgmenterstiection and application of accounting prinaplacluding making estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts of ads#igities, revenues, expenses and related discés in the financial
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statements. Management considers its critical atauy policies to be those which are most importarthe representation of the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations ardolv require management’s most difficult and sudyecor complex judgments, including
accounting estimates that could result in matgrigififerent amounts if the Company reported undgeignt conditions or using different
assumptions.

The Company’s most critical estimates or judgméntslve regulatory cost recovery, unbilled revenudssivative
instruments, pension assumptions, income taxegmavidonmental contingencies. Management has diedub® estimates and judgments
used in the application of critical accounting pms with the Audit Committee of the Board. The @amy’s critical accounting policies and
estimates are described below.

Within the context of the Company’s critical accting policies and estimates, management is noeotlyr aware of any
reasonably likely events or circumstances that doesult in materially different amounts being repd.

Regulatory Accounting

NW Natural is regulated by the Public Utility Congsion of Oregon (OPUC) and the Washington Utiliias
Transportation Commission (WUTC), which establish €Company’s utility rates and rules governingtytsdervices provided to customers,
and to a certain extent set forth the accountiegttnent for certain regulatory transactions. Inegaiy NW Natural uses the same accounting
principles as other non-regulated companies ramgptthder GAAP. However, certain accounting priresplprimarily Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accountingtfoe Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” regqudifferent accounting treatment for
regulated companies to show the effects of reqrafror example, NW Natural accounts for the cbgfas using a deferral and cost recovery
mechanism called the Purchased Gas Adjustment (P@#gh is submitted for approval annually to thelWWC and WUTC (see “Results of
Operations— Regulatory Matters—Rate Mechaniss|éw). There are other expenses or revenueshb@@®PUC or WUTC may require 1
Company to defer for recovery or refund in futuegipds. SFAS No. 71 requires the Company to accilmurihese types of deferred expenses
(or deferred revenues) as regulatory assets (atategy liabilities) on the balance sheet. When N¥tural is allowed to recover these
expenses from or refund them to customers, it neizeg the expense or revenue on the income statexne same time it realizes the
adjustment to amounts included in utility rates ahdrged to customers.

The conditions a company must satisfy to adopatteounting policies and practices of SFAS No. Fdliegble to
regulated companies include:

. an independent regulator sets rates;
. the regulator sets the rates to cover specificsoafstielivering service; and
. the service territory lacks competitive pressuceietiuce rates below the rates set by the regulator

NW Natural continues to apply SFAS No. 71 in acamgnfor its regulated utility operations. Futuegulatory changes
changes in the competitive environment could rdauhe Company discontinuing the application oASHNo. 71 for some or all of its
regulated business. This would require the wrifesbthose regulatory assets and liabilities thatid no longer be probable of recovery from
or refund to customers. Based on current reguland/competitive conditions, NW Natural believeattihis reasonable to expect continued
application of SFAS No. 71 for its regulated adies, and that all of its regulatory assets artilltees at Dec. 31, 2004 and 2003 are
recoverable or refundable through future custoratas:
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Revenue Recognition

Utility revenues, derived primarily from the saledatransportation of natural gas, are recognizeenvihe gas is delivered
to and received by the customer. Revenues areextéou gas delivered to customers but not yetdilased on estimates of gas deliveries
from the last meter reading date to month end (lesbievenues). Unbilled revenues are primarilydolagn the Company’s percentage
estimate of its unbilled gas each month, whicheigeshdent upon a number of factors that require gemant’s judgment. These factors
include total gas receipts and deliveries, custameter reading dates, customer usage patterns eaithev. Unbilled revenue estimates are
reversed the following month when actual billingsar. Estimated unbilled revenues at Dec. 31, 20@#2003 were $64.4 million and $59.1
million, respectively. The increase in unbilled eaues at year-end 2004 was primarily due to highsmprices included in customer rates,
partially offset by lower unbilled volumes reflaugi warmer weather and decreases in customer usage thigher prices. If the estimated
percentage of unbilled gas at Dec. 31, 2004 wejtestedi up (or down) by 1 percent, then the Compmaawbilled revenues, net operating
revenues and net income would have increased (weased) by an estimated $1.0 million, $0.5 milkord $0.3 million, respectively.

In November 2003, NW Natural implemented a weatttgmalization mechanism in Oregon that helps stabiiet
operating revenues by adjusting current custoniiémds based on temperature variances from aversgther (see “Results of Operations—
Regulatory Matters—Rate Mechanisms,” below). Weatloemalization is also included in unbilled revenuat the end of each accounting
period using management’s judgments as discusseaab

Non-utility revenues, derived primarily from intéate storage services, are recognized upon delofahe service to
customers. Revenues from optimization of excesagéoand transportation capacity are recognizedthedife of the contract for guarante
amounts under the contract, or are recognizedegsdie earned for amounts above the guaranteed lwaked on estimates provided by the
independent energy marketing company.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedginctigities

In providing gas distribution services, NW Natuealters into forward contracts to buy and sell radtgas. These contra
qualify as normal purchases and normal sales UBEAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instrumemtnd Hedging Activities,” because
they provide for a purchase or sale, and subseaigdnery, of natural gas in quantities that aretable of delivery over a reasonable period
of time in the normal course of business (see Npt®erivatives Policy”). Accordingly, these contta are accounted for at the time of
settlement and are not reflected on the Comparaltanioe sheet or income statement prior to settlemen

The Company has an established Derivatives Pdiiatysets forth the guidelines for using selectedrfcial derivative
products to support prudent risk management siegegthin designated parameters (see Note 1) poliey specifically prohibits the use of
derivatives for trading or speculative purposeddiieg activities consist of natural gas commoditggand foreign currency exchange rate
hedges which are accounted for as cash flow hedteese contracts that qualify as derivative insgota are recorded on the balance sheet a
fair value. Generally, most of these contractssalgect to regulatory deferral mechanisms, andiels any change in the fair value of these
contracts is recorded as regulatory assets oratmgylliabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71 (see NbtéDerivatives Policy”). The Company’s
estimate of fair value is determined from perioghéviod based on prices available from externatcmuand internal modeling based on in
prices that are subject to market volatility. Fstilmated fair values at Dec. 31, 2004 and 2003Nsxte 11.
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The following table summarizes the realized gaims lasses from commodity price and currency hedesactions in th
years ended Dec. 31, 2004, 2003 and 2

(Thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Gains (losses) on commodity price swap contr $44,88¢  $29,66(  $(73,922
Gains (losses) on commodity price option contr (2,464 2,72z (1,601
Subtotal 42,42¢ 32,38 (75,523
Gains (losses) on swaps related to interstatetgesgye (186 - -
Gains on foreign currency contra 21¢ 4,12¢ 521
Total gains (losse: $42,45° $36,51:  $(75,002

Realized gains (losses) from commodity price amdifm currency hedge contracts are recorded astieds (increases)
to the cost of gas and are included in the calmnaif annual PGA rate changes. Unrealized gaidd@sses resulting from mark-to-market
valuations are not recognized in current incometber comprehensive income, but are recorded asategy liabilities or regulatory assets,
which are offset by a corresponding balance in tnading derivative assets or liabilities (see Nbig.

Accounting for Pensions

The Company has two qualified, non-contributoryired benefit pension plans covering all regular leyges with more
than one year of service. These plans are fundeddh a trust dedicated to providing retiree pemdienefits. The Company also has several
non-qualified supplemental pension plans for el@dxecutive officers and certain key employeegstmon-qualified plans are unfunded.

Net periodic pension cost (NPPC) and accumulateéfiieobligations (ABO) are determined in accordaméth SFAS
No. 87,“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” using a numbgkey assumptions including the discount rdie,rate of compensation
increases, retirement ages, mortality rates anéxpected long-term return on plan assets (seafi€ial Condition—Pension Cost (Income)
and Funding Status,” below, and Note 7). Thesedssyimptions have a significant impact on the ansowapiorted. NPPC consists of service
costs, interest costs, the amortization of actugdms and losses, expected returns on plan amsétsn part, on a market-related valuation of
assets. The market-related valuation reflects rdiffees between expected returns and actual investetarns, which are recognized over a
three-year period from the year in which they octhereby reducing year-to-year NPPC volatility.

A number of factors are considered in developings assumptions, including an evaluation of r@fgdiscount rates,
expected londerm returns on plan assets, plan asset allocagxpgcted changes in wages and retirement beraafédyses of current mark
conditions and input from actuaries and other chasts. For the Dec. 31, 2004 measurement date;dngpany:

. decreased the discount rate assumption from 6.2&ipeto 6.00 percent;
. maintained the rate of compensation increase amge of 4.00-5.00 percent; and
. maintained the expected long-term return on plaetasat 8.25 percent.

The change in discount rate was the primary famotributing to the increase in the plans’ ABO fr8205 million at
Dec. 31, 2003 to $223 million at Dec. 31, 2004.
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The Company believes its pension assumptions sppeopriate based on plan design and an assessfrmaatket
conditions. However, the following reflects the si@inity of NPPC and ABO to changes in certain acial assumptions:

Change in Impact on
ASSUmptiOl 2004 NPP( |mpact on ABC
(Thousands) at Dec. 31, 20C
Discount rate (0.25%) $ 60€ $ 5,25¢
Expected lon-term return on plan asse (0.25%) $ 40¢ N/A

The impact of a change in NPPC on operating resudtdd be less than the amounts shown above beednose 60
percent of NPPC is charged to operations and mainte expense. The remaining 40 percent is cagithlis construction overhead and
included in utility plant, which is amortized topense over the useful life of the asset placedsatuice.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance viAkSSNo. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” by rgoing
deferred income taxes for all temporary differeroetsveen the book and tax basis of assets antitlesat current income tax rates.

SFAS No. 109 also requires the recognition of aolditl deferred income tax assets and liabilitiesémporary
differences where regulators flow-through defeiireme tax benefits or expenses in the ratemakioggss of the regulated utility
(regulatory tax assets and liabilities). This issistent with ratemaking policies of the OPUC andMZ. Regulatory tax assets and liabilities
are recorded to the extent the Company believeswiiebe recoverable from or refunded to custorniarfuture rates. At Dec. 31, 2004 and
2003, the Company had regulatory assets repregeatiffierences between book and tax basis relat@de:h981 property of $64.7 million ai
$63.4 million, respectively, and has recorded dsetfing deferred tax liability for the same amaufgee Note 1). NW Natural believes that it
is reasonable to expect recovery of these regylassets through future customer rates. Howeverduegulatory changes could require the
write-off of all or a portion of these regulatorgsets should they no longer be probable of recaweigture rates.

Contingencies

Loss contingencies are recorded as liabilities wihenprobable that a liability has been incurestl the amount of the
loss is reasonably estimable in accordance withSSRA. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.” Estimatipgpbable losses requires an analysis
of uncertainties that often depend upon judgmendsigpotential actions by third parties. In themal course of business, accruals are
recorded for loss contingencies based on an asalffiotential results, developed in consultatidgtihwutside counsel when appropriate,
including allowances for uncollectible accountsyimmmental claims and property damage and perdojualy claims. Where information is
sufficient to estimate only a range of probablbility, and no point within the range is more likghan any other, the Company recognizes an
accrued liability at the lower end of the ranges Ipossible, however, that future results of opena could be materially affected by changes
in assumptions or estimates regarding these camitigs. With respect to environmental claims atated litigation costs, receivables are
recorded for anticipated recoveries under insuraocgracts based on amounts the Company estinra&gsabable of recovery. If these
amounts are not recovered from insurance, the Coynipalieves that recovery is probable from futuiitityi rates based on current approval
by the OPUC to defer these costs as a regulatset.e88ee Note 12.
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Results of Operations

Regulatory Matters

NW Natural provides gas utility service in OregaordaVashington, with Oregon representing over 9@garof its
revenues. Future earnings and cash flows fromyutiperations will be determined largely by thegat continued growth in the residential
and commercial markets and by NW Natural’s abilityemain price competitive in the large industriedrket, to control expenses, and to
obtain reasonable and timely regulatory ratemakiegtment for its operating and maintenance cosisravestments made in utility plant.

General Rate Cases

NW Natural's most recent general rate increasergg@n, which was effective Sept. 1, 2003, authdrizges designed to
produce a return on shareholders’ equity (ROE)X02 bercent. The OPUC approved a revenue incrddsE3® million per year, of which
$6.2 million went into effect on Sept. 1, 2003, &2d7 million went into effect on a deferred basisNov. 12, 2003 as the first 11.7 miles of
the Company’s southern portion of SMPE went intwise. The remaining $3.8 million for the southg@ortion of the SMPE went into effect
on Oct. 1, 2004, upon the completion and placenmatservice of the last segment of the SMPE ptojeecovery for the Company’s Coos
County distribution system project of $1.2 millient into effect on Nov. 1, 2004, on a deferredsha&'hile not included in the rate case
result, an additional annual rate recovery of $iilion associated with the northern portion of SEMBecame effective Oct. 1, 2004.

In November 2003, NW Natural filed a general ratsecin Washington that proposed a revenue inca&&&9 million
per year from Washington operations through ratesi@mses averaging 15 percent. In June 2004, theG\&pproved a settlement agreement
entered into by the parties to NW Natural's Wastonggeneral rate case, which became effective hnl)J2004, authorizing a revenue
increase of $3.5 million per year, or 6.5 percemaddition, the settlement authorized NW Natusahclude the SMPE cost of service of
approximately $0.7 million per year in rates, suobje audit, concurrent with the annual Washing®@®A filing which became effective on
Nov. 1, 2004. Se“Rate Mechanisms,” below.

Notwithstanding authorized revenue levels apprdwethe OPUC or the WUTC, actual revenues are depdrah
weather, economic conditions, customer growth, cgitipn and other factors affecting gas usage in N&tural's service area.

In January 2005, the Company filed a rate case télFederal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERGp@sing an
update of maximum rates for the Company’s inteesttdrage services operation and new service offeriThe requested new rates are
designed to reflect the costs related to the furdiegelopment of the Mist gas storage facilitied aosts associated with the SMPE project.
This filing was made to satisfy FERC'’s requiremirt there be a cost and revenue review in thraesyfellowing its original storage service
rate authorization.

Rate Mechanisms

Weather normalization . In November 2003, NW Natural implemented a weativemalization mechanism in Oregon 1
helps stabilize net operating revenues, or malyiradjusting current customer billings based onperature variances from average weather.
The weather normalization mechanism approved byDREC is applied to Oregon residential and comraérci
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customers’ bills between Nov. 15 and May 15 of daghting season. The mechanism adjusts the maygipanent of customers’ rates to
reflect “normal” weather using the 25-year avertggeperature for each day of the billing period. Tiechanism is intended to stabilize fixed
costs and to reduce fluctuations in customerss bille to colder- or warmer-than-average weathédchober 2004, the mechanism was
modified to limit the upward or downward adjustreetd individual bills to certain specified rangedth any excess amounts being deferred
(see “Residential and Commercial Sales,” below).

Purchased Gas Adjustment . Rate changes are applied each year under the P@Aamiems in NW Natural’s tariffs in
Oregon and Washington to reflect changes in thesadsatural gas commodity purchased under castmeith gas producers (see
“Comparison of Gas Operations—Cost of Gas Soldidugg the application of temporary rate adjustmeatamortize balances in regulatory
asset or liability accounts and the removal of terapy rate adjustments effective the previous yarsuant to the PGA tariffs, in September
2004, the OPUC approved rate increases effectitvelO2004 averaging 20.1 percent for Oregon residiesales customers, and in October
2004, the WUTC approved rate increases effective Mlp2004 averaging 19.5 percent for Washingteidential sales customers. These rate
increases include deferred revenue from the cekdted to the SMPE project, which was completedm@aced into service on Sept. 22, 2004.
The Oregon increase of 20.1 percent consistedcol/exy of gas costs (13.9 percent), temporaryadjestments (2.5 percent, including
deferrals for SMPE) and the recovery of SMPE cofgervice (3.7 percent). The Washington incredd®® percent consisted of the
recovery of gas costs (12.0 percent), temporagyadjustments (6.3 percent), and the recovery dPElgbsts (1.2 percent). The inclusion of
SMPE costs in Oregon and Washington rates resutadditional revenue increases totaling $14.7iomlper year. During the fourth quarter
of 2004, the staff of the OPUC initiated a reviefrgas purchasing strategies for all three localdissibution companies serving Oregon.
schedule, scope and potential findings, includivgrhatter of whether the review will lead to forrpabceedings before the OPUC, remain
uncertain.

In 2003, the OPUC approved a PGA rate increasegiray 3.5 percent for Oregon sales customers andthTC
approved a PGA rate increase averaging 16.8 pefmeWashington sales customers, both effectiv®on 1, 2003. In 2002, the OPUC
approved PGA rate decreases averaging 14 perae@régon sales customers and the WUTC approved RR@&/Adecreases averaging 25
percent for Washington sales customers, both @f&eon Oct. 1, 2002.

The OPUC has formalized a process that tests fmrsmsive earnings in connection with gas utilitesnual filings under
their PGA mechanisms. The OPUC has confirmed NWiidéis ability to pass through 100 percent of itsgently incurred gas costs into
rates. Under this requirement, NW Natural is au#feat to retain all of its earnings up to a thredHelvel equal to its authorized ROE plus 300
basis points. One-third of any earnings abovelthal will be refunded to customers. The excessirgs threshold is subject to adjustment
up or down each year depending on movements irestteates. No amounts were identified in this pssdfor refund to customers with
respect to 2003 or 2002 earnings results. NW Nbtloras not expect that amounts will be identifiedrefund with respect to its earnings in
2004, which will be reviewed by the OPUC in them®t quarter of 2005.

Conservation Tariff . Effective Oct. 1, 2002, the OPUC authorized NWuWXal to implement a “conservation tariff,” a
mechanism designed to recover lost margin duedagés in residential and commercial customers’wopsion patterns. The tariff is a
partial decoupling mechanism that breaks the lietvieen the Company’s earnings and the quantitpefgy consumed by its customers, so
the Company does not have an incentive to disceuragtomers’ conservation efforts.
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The conservation tariff includes two components Titst, a price elasticity factor, adjusts forrieases or decreases in
consumption attributable to annual changes in coditpaosts or periodic changes in the Company’sgairates. The second is a
conservation adjustment calculated on a monthlishiasaccount for deviations between actual aneéetqul volumes. Additional revenues or
credits to customers produced by the conservatiprsament are booked to a deferral account thagdsnciled as part of the Company’s
annual PGA. Baseline consumption is based on cuestoomsumption patterns as determined in the 20@8dD general rate case, adjusted
for consumption resulting from new customers. Tagial decoupling mechanism will expire at the efidGeptember 2005 unless the OPUC
approves an extension based on the results ofd@pémdent study to measure the mechanism’s eféaess. Work on the independent
review, which involves interested parties, is inqass and is expected to be completed by the eltduah 2005. The study is expected to
provide the basis for the Company’s filing to renw tariff.

Pipeline I ntegrity Cost Recovery . In July 2004, the OPUC approved applications By Natural relating to the
accounting treatment and full recovery for the Camps cost of its pipeline integrity managementgoean (IMP) as mandated by the
Pipeline Safety Improvement Act of 2002 (PipelirsdeBy Act) and related rules adopted by the U.Sdbenent of Transportation’s Office of
Pipeline Safety (see “Financial Condition—Cash Hewnvesting Activities,” below). Under the applicats as approved, NW Natural
classifies its IMP costs as either capital expamdg or regulatory assets, accumulates the costsach 12nonth period ending June 30, ¢
recovers the costs, subject to audit, throughdladamges effective on October 1 of each year comimgiact. 1, 2004. The approved
accounting and rate treatment for these costs éstmough Sept. 30, 2008, and may be revieweddtantial extension after that date. NW
Natural will begin including IMP costs in rates2005.

Open Pathway Tariff . The open pathway tariff, approved by the OPU®en. 7, 2004, requires developers to provide
the Company with a trench for installation of maamsl services in new developments. If a trencloigrovided, the tariff requires the
developer to pay NW Natural's costs of trenchimgthe past, provision of a trench or reimbursemeas not required. Implementation of the
tariff began in early 2005.

OPUC Investigation

In August 2004, the OPUC approved a stipulationrmgndW Natural, the OPUC staff and two parties i 2003 Oregon
general rate case, providing for the settlemeisafes raised in an investigation initiated by@RUC in 2003. These issues relate to
transactions or interests in certain propertieslvimg NW Natural in the vicinity of its headquangebuilding in downtown Portland, and the
use of some of these properties for employee pgrkihe primary effect of the stipulation was toeese cost recovery as of Sept. 1, 2003, for
certain properties that should not have been imtlud rate base in the 2003 Oregon general rats aas for certain employee parking costs.
Pursuant to the stipulation, NW Natural commencadrng refunds in the amount of $1.3 million to Qragustomers on Oct. 1, 2004, in
connection with the annual Oregon PGA filing effeeton that date. Approximately $0.3 million of tieanount was charged to a reserve in
2003 and the first quarter of 2004; approximatéyd%million was recognized as a reduction in otiegenues in the second quarter of 2004;
and the balance of $0.1 million was recognized i@slaction in other revenues in the third quarfe&2@®4. Effective Oct. 1, 2004, Oregon
revenues were reduced by about $0.3 million per tealiminate these costs from future rates. NWUKa agreed in the stipulation to
undergo an audit in 2005 funded by the Companyclwvis expected to focus on ratemaking issues nglati the inclusion
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of assets in rate base and NW Natw#alansactions with any affiliated interests. THRUT staff informed the Company that the requiredit

will be performed during the third quarter of 2005.

Comparison of Gas Distribution Operations

The following table summarizes the composition & gtility volumes and revenues for the three yeaded Dec. 31:

(Thousands, except customers and degree days) 2004 2003 2002

Utility volumes- therms:

Residential and commercial sa 574,92! 51% 581,89( 53% 590,62¢ 52%

Industrial sales and transportati 556,94, 49% 517,86: 47% 535,45!  48%
Total utility volumes sold and deliver: 1,131,861 100%  1,099,75. 100% 1,126,08. 100%

Utility operating revenue- dollars:

Residential and commercial sa $ 585,100 83% $ 519,32 86% $ 543,50 86%

Industrial sales and transportati 112,66(  16% 75,200 13% 84,92: 13%

Other revenue 3,18¢ 1% 7,46( 1% 4,01¢ 1%
Total utility operating revenue $ 700,94! 100% $ 601,98: 100% $ 632,44( 100%

Cost of gas sol 399,17¢ 323,12¢ 353,03:

Utility net operating revenues (margi $ 301,76 $ 278,85t $ 279,41.

Total number of customers (end of ye 596,63! 578,15( 560,06

Actual degree day 3,85: 3,952 4,23

Percent colder (warmer) than norr (8%) (7%) (1%)

(2t-year average degree days is used as no

NW Natural continued to grow its customer basehinet increase of 18,485 customers during 200d.gfowth rate fa
both 2004 and 2003 was 3.2 percent, compared tpe3cent in 2002. In the three years ended De2®14, more than 55,000 customers

were added to the system, representing an averegmlgrowth rate of 3.4 percent.

Residential and Commercial Sales

The following table summarizes the utility volunse®d utility operating revenues in the residentral aommercial
markets. The primary factors that impact the resaflioperations in these markets are seasonal ergaditterns, competitive factors in the

energy industry and economic conditions in the Camyfs service areas.

(Thousands, except customer di 2004 2003 2002

Utility volumes- therms:

Residential sale 356,19¢ 343,53: 357,09:

Commercial sale 226,49( 226,25° 240,15!

Change in unbilled sal¢ (7,764 12,09¢ (6,617
Total weathe-sensitive utility volume: 574,92! 581,89( 590,62¢
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(Thousands, except customer di 2004 2003 2002

Utility operating revenue- dollars:

Residential sale $381,52t $328,46: $ 354,73!

Commercial sale 199,72! 176,38! 201,47!

Change in unbilled sale 3,84¢ 14,47 (12,702
Total weathe-sensitive utility revenue $585,10( $519,32! $ 543,50¢

Total number of residential and commercial custanfend of year 595,70( 577,39t 559,48t¢

2004 compared to 2003:

. volumes sold were 1 percent lower, reflecting ttieat of 3 percent warmer weather that was paytieffset by the impact of 3
percent customer growth; a

. operating revenues were 13 percent higher, prigndtie to higher rates effective Oct. 1, 2003 antd ©2004 (see “Regulatory
Matter—Rate Mechanism” above).

2003 compared to 2002:

. volumes sold were 1 percent lower, reflecting tieats of 7 percent warmer weather that was péyrtaifset by the impact of 3
percent customer growth and the price elasticiiyotfof lower rates effective Oct. 1, 2002; ¢

. operating revenues were 4 percent lower in 2003 ith@002. Excluding the impact of gas cost refutadaling $30.4 million
during 2002, revenues were $54.6 million, or 1Gpet, lower in 2003 than in 2002, primarily duddwer rates effective Oct. 1,
2002.

Typically, 80 percent or more of annual utility oging revenues are derived from gas sales to weatnsitive
residential and commercial customers. Althoughatamns in temperatures between periods will affettmes of gas sold to these customers,
the effect on margin and net income was signifigaretduced with the implementation of the weathemmalization mechanism in Oregon
beginning in November 2003 (see “Regulatory MattelRate Mechanisms,” above). This mechanism appiesdter readings of
participating Oregon customers taken between N&warid May 15. Approximately 10 percent of NW Naksreesidential and commercial
customers are in Washington, where the mechanisiotis effect, and about 8 percent of the eligiblegon customers elected not to be
covered by the mechanism, so the mechanism dodallyansulate the Company from utility earningslatility due to weather. The
mechanism contributed a net $9.0 million of margiguivalent to 20 cents a share of earnings, itviletse month period ended Dec. 31,
2004, making up a significant portion of the martfiat otherwise would have been lost from warmanthverage weather. In 2003, the
mechanism contributed $1.9 million of margin, eqlént to 5 cents a share of earnings, in the twothsoafter becoming effective in
November 2003

Total utility operating revenues include accrualsdas delivered but not yet billed to customerdb{lled revenues) based
on estimates of gas deliveries from that month’'temeeading dates to month end. Amounts reportethhbsled revenues reflect the increase
or decrease in the balance of accrued unbilledhiga® compared to the prior year-end. Weather donditrate changes and customer billing
dates affect the balance of accrued unbilled revextthe end of each month. At Dec. 31, 2004, accunbilled revenue was $64.4 million,
compared to $59.1 million at Dec. 31, 2003.
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Industrial Sales and Transportation

The following table summarizes the delivered volarard utility operating revenues in the industaiad electric
generation markets:

(Thousands, except custome 2004 2003 2002

Utility volumes- therms:

Industrial firm sale: 63,14¢ 55,31« 63,21*

Industrial interruptible sale 104,27¢ 46,327 22,84

Electric generation sales and transporta - 1,667 3,40(

Transportatior 389,51 414 ,55¢ 445,99¢
Total utility volumes 556,94 517,86: 535,45!

Utility operating revenue- dollars:

Industrial firm sale: $ 44,62¢ $ 33,57¢ $ 42,96
Industrial interruptible sale 55,38( 23,65t 11,34¢
Electric generation sales and transporta - 6 4,591
Transportatior 12,65¢ 17,96: 26,02(

Total utility revenue: $112,66( $ 75,20 $ 84,92:
Total number of industrial sales and transportatiastomers (end of yee 93¢ 754 57¢

Total volumes delivered to industrial and electrgmeration customers were 39 million therms, oefegnt, higher in
2004 than in 2003, and utility operating revenueseaup $37 million, or 50 percent. The higher vadsrand revenues partially reflect an
improving economy, but results primarily refleat@ntinued shift from transportation to sales volaraad the reclassification of a relatively
large number of commercial customers to the inéhlstustomer category over the past 24 months tingurom rate design changes in
Oregon. Over the past two years, the number ofsitnidl customers increased 30 percent from 20@D638, and 24 percent from 2003 to
2004. Industrial rates in Oregon were redesignguhasof the general rate case in 2003, transfg$#h 8 million of annual revenue
requirement from industrial rates to residential aammercial rates in order to better reflect redatosts of service and to improve the
competitiveness of the Company’s rates in the itvéaisnarket.

Total volumes delivered to industrial and electrgmeration customers were 18 million therms, oe@gnt, lower in 200
than in 2002, and utility operating revenues werem $10 million, or 11 percent. Results from théustrial market in 2003 reflect weaker
economic conditions during the year, and most efiticremental revenue decline was due to a sbif fnigher margin firm schedules to
lower margin interruptible schedules and indusnéé decreases effective in September 2003.

The decline in volumes and operating revenues trarelectric generation market primarily refleat thinding down of a
temporary market that emerged in response to th&-2002 energy crisis. The volumes and operatingmees in 2002 were related to two
customers served under contracts that went inteceiffi the second half of 2001 and expired at titeaf the second quarter of 2002. Most of
the revenues from these contracts were derived foad charges. A third electric generation custoosed 3.0 million therms in 2002 under
a contract with low volumetric charges.
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Other Revenues

Other revenues include miscellaneous fee inconreelisas revenue adjustments reflecting deferralst@amortizations
from, regulatory asset or liability accounts ottiean deferrals relating to gas costs (see Not®ther revenues increased net operating
revenues by $3.2 million in 2004, compared to $ilion in 2003 and $4.0 million in 2002. The folling table summarizes other revenues
by primary category for the three years ended B&c2004, 2003 and 2002:

(Thousands 2004 2003 2002

Revenue adjustment
Current deferrals

Decoupling $ 681 $ 3,46¢ $ 1,72(
SMPE 1,47¢ 642 -
OPUC investigatiol (690 - -
Coos Bay 244 - -
Other 35 82 -
Current amortization:
Interstate gas storage crec 5,32¢ 3,057 1,212
Decoupling (2,952 (783 -
SMPE (601) - -
Conservation prograrr (2,835 (2,408 (2,074
Year 2000 technology cos (1,293 (949 (1,539
Other 29¢ 55¢ -
Net revenue adjustmer (314 3,66¢ (681)
Miscellaneous revenue
Customer fee 3,24t 3,32 3,11¢
Other 254 467 1,58¢
Total miscellaneous revenu 3,49¢ 3,79¢ 4,69¢
Total other revenue $ 3,18¢ $ 7,46( $ 4,01¢

Other revenues in 2004 were $4.3 million lower thaR003 primarily due to the change in decouptiederrals under the
decoupling mechanism (down $2.8 million) (see “Ratpry Matters—Rate Mechanisms,” above), the amatittn of decoupling deferrals
from prior periods (up $2.2 million) and an increas other miscellaneous amortizations (up $1.¢iami), partially offset by higher interstate
storage credits from revenue sharing from the Cawyganterstate gas storage services (up $2.3anjlli

Other revenues in 2003 included positive contriimgidue to the change in decoupling deferrals (up fillion), the
amortization of income shared with customers fratarstate gas storage services (up $1.8 milliow),cstomer late payment and collection
fees and miscellaneous revenues, partially offgetbortizations from regulatory accounts coveringservation programs and Year 2000
technology costs.

Cost of Gas Sold

Natural gas commaodity prices have fluctuated sigaiftly in recent years. The effects of higher gammodity prices an
price volatility on core utility customers are rgaited through the use of underground storagetiasiligas commodity-price financial hedge
contracts, and short-term
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sales of gas commodity and transportation cap&zion-system or off-system customers in periodsnndege utility customers do not require
the full firm pipeline capacity and gas supplies.

The Company regularly renews or replaces its expilong-term and medium-term contracts with neveagrents with a
variety of existing and new suppliers. No singlatcact amounts to more than 200,000 therms peodag@ percent of the Compasyaverag
daily contract volumes. Firm year-round supply cacis have terms ranging from one to ten yearsofithe contracts use price formulas tied
to monthly index prices, primarily at the NOVA Imtery Transfer trading point in Alberta. NW Natuhedges a majority of its contracts
each year using financial instruments as partsofiéts purchase strategy.

The total cost of gas sold was $399.2 million i®20an increase of $76.1 million or 24 percent carag to 2003 and,
2003 was $29.9 million or 8 percent lower than 2002 cost per therm of gas sold was 14 percetiehitn 2004 than in 2003 and 9 percent
lower in 2003 than in 2002. The cost per thermas gold includes current gas purchases, gas drawnstorage inventory, gains or losses
from commodity hedges, margin from af§stem gas sales, demand cost balancing adjustfdentsind equalization), regulatory deferrals
company use. Results for 2002 included an adjudtthahreduced cost of gas by $29.5 million, a ltesfua refund to customers. Excluding
this adjustment, cost per therm of gas sold wagetéent lower in 2003 than in 2002, reflecting deses in gas commodity prices effectiv
late 2002.

Results for 2002 also included adjustments reduco®g of gas relating to amounts of deferred exgefar the recovery
of pipeline demand charges under the PGA mechariibese adjustments contributed 7 cents a shai@hings in 2002, of which 6 cents a
share applied to periods prior to 2002. The ratthouwology represented in the adjustments contitmbes applied in the Company’s
accounting for pipeline demand charges.

NW Natural's recorded amount of unaccounted-forwas 0.51 percent of gas sendout in 2004, comparéd5 percent
in 2003 and 0.75 percent in 2002. Unaccounted-dgrig the difference between the amount of ga€tmpany receives from all sources,
including pipeline deliveries and withdrawals fretorage, and the amount of gas it delivers to custs or other delivery points.
Unaccounted-for gas may be caused in part by phlygas leakage, but it also may be due to cumelatiaccuracies in gas metering,
estimates of unbilled gas or other causes. A noamaunt of unaccounted-for gas is considered 1.5@ percent of total gas sendout during
a period, but the amounts may vary within a rarmgerad this estimate. During 2004, the lower estadamount of unaccounted-for gas had
the effect of increasing cost of gas and decreasiagin by $0.4 million as compared to 2003. Du20§3, the lower estimated amount of
unaccounted-for gas had the effect of reducing @bgas and increasing margin by $1.2 million aspared to 2002. The estimated
percentages of unaccountit-gas in 2004 and 2003 were lower than 2002jglyrtdue to improvements in gas measurement atichasng.

NW Natural uses a natural gas commodity-price hguggram under the terms of its Derivatives Polizyelp manage
its variable price gas commodity contracts (seepligation of Critical Accounting Policies and Estitas—Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” above). NW tNal recorded net hedging gains of $42.4 millimnirthis program during 2004,
compared to net hedging gains of $32.4 million®2 and net hedging losses of $75.5 million in 2¢0&dging gains and losses relating to
gas commodity purchases are included in cost ohgddactored into NW Natural’'s annual PGA ratengfes, and therefore have no material
impact on net income.
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Under NW Natural’'s PGA tariff in Oregon, net incoiseffected within defined limits by changes irrghased gas costs.
NW Natural is allowed to collect an amount for fhased gas costs based on estimates that are iddgiuderrent utility rates. If the actu
purchased gas costs are higher than the amouhigiéatin rates, NW Natural is not allowed to chatgeustomers currently for those higher
gas costs but is allowed to defer the costs andatdhem in the future. Similarly, when the actpatchased gas costs are lower than the
amount included in rates, the savings are not iniatelgt passed on to customers but are deferrededndded in future periods. NW Natural
absorbs 33 percent of the higher cost of gas soldtains 33 percent of the lower cost, in eittese as compared to the projected costs built
into rates. The remaining 67 percent of the higitdower gas costs is recorded as deferred regylagsets or liabilities for recovery from or
refund to customers in future rates. In 2004 ar@B20/W Natural's gas costs were slightly lower tiia@ gas costs embedded in rates, with
the effect that NW Natural’s share of the lowertsascreased margin by $0.6 million and $0.3 milliequivalent to 1 cent a share and less
than 1 cent a share of earnings, respectively0022NW Natural’'s gas costs were much lower tharpttojected costs built into rates and the
Company'’s share of the savings realized from gashases contributed $10.8 million of margin, eglémato 26 cents a share of earnings.

NW Natural uses gas supplies and transportatioadigpthat are not required for core utility regitlal, commercial and
industrial firm customers to make off-system salésder the PGA tariff in Oregon, NW Natural retaB% percent of the margins realized
from its off-system gas sales and records the mr@ni67 percent as a deferred regulatory asséalulity for recovery from or refund to
customers in future rates. NW Natural's share ofgimafrom off-system gas sales in 2004 resulted ioss of $0.3 million, equivalent to less
than 1 cent a share. NW Natural's share of mamgim foff-system gas sales in 2003 was $4.9 millezjuivalent to 11 cents a share of
earnings. Results for 2003 reflected a higher velwioff-system gas sales because of warmer weiillee first quarter and higher gas
prices. NW Natural was able to use gas suppligsitbee available under contract for the winter seabut not required for delivery to core
utility market customers, to make these off-syssates. NW Natural's purchase price for this gastiesh fixed through commaodity swap
and call option contracts entered into earlieeatls substantially below the market prices in 2008/ Natural’s share of margin from off-
system sales in 2002 was $0.9 million or 2 cersiseae.

Business Segments Other than Local Gas Distribution

Interstate Gas Storage

NW Natural earned net income from its natility interstate gas storage business segme2®@4, after regulatory sharil
and income taxes, of $2.9 million or 11 cents aesheompared to $4.3 million or 17 cents a sha@0B3 and $3.6 million or 14 cents a share
in 2002 (see Note 2). Earnings from this businegsnent were lower in 2004 primarily due to a lowentribution from a contract with an
independent energy marketing company that optintizesalue of NW Natural's assets by engagingaditrg activities using temporarily
unused portions of its upstream pipeline transpiortacapacity and gas storage capacity. The lowstribution was primarily due to a char
in market conditions in which gas price differetstizvere less volatile in 2004 compared to 2003.

In Oregon, NW Natural retains 80 percent of thetaseincome from interstate storage services atignigation of
storage and pipeline transportation capacity whercosts of such capacity have not been includednm utility rates, and 33 percent of the
pre-tax income from such optimization when the citgaosts have been included in core utility rafieise remaining 20 percent
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and 67 percent, respectively, are credited to ardsd regulatory account for distribution to NW tat’s core utility customers. NW Natural
has a similar sharing mechanism in Washingtondaenue derived from third party optimization seegic

Subsidiaries

Financial Corporation

Financial Corporation’s operating results in 20Gevnet income of $0.2 million, compared to $0.%iom in 2003 and
$1.2 million in 2002. The decrease in net incom2084 compared to 2003 was primarily due to a $tilkon write-down of its limited
partnership interests in three solar electric gatien projects. The write-down related to an agre®nto sell these projects on Jan. 31, 2005.
The decrease in net income in 2003 compared to B@82Xue to lower income from investments in limhipartnerships in wind and solar
electric generation projects in California.

The Company'’s investment in Financial Corporatias\®5.7 million at Dec. 31, 2004, compared to $3ilbon at Dec.
31, 2003.

Northwest Energy

Northwest Energy was formed in 2001 to serve anithéing company for NW Natural and PGE if the &stjion of PGE
had been completed. Northwest Energy recorded radrakpenses for corporate development activitiedipd. Upon the termination of the
proposed acquisition effort in 2002, Northwest Ejyarecorded a loss totaling $8.4 million (after)téor the transaction costs incurred in
connection with this effort. These charges werevadent to 33 cents a share. Northwest Energy wastive during both 2004 and 2003.

Operating Expenses

Operations and Maintenance

Operations and maintenance expenses increased$bon, or 6 percent, in 2004 compared to 2003] arcreased $11.3
million, or 13 percent, in 2003 compared to 2002e Tollowing summarizes the major factors that dbated to changes in operations and
maintenance expense:

2004 compared to 2003

. payroll and payroll-related expenses, includinggi@mand health care costs, increased by $3.5omitlue to salary and wage
increases averaging 3 to 4 percent; and a charte ipension discount rate assumption and risiadffheare premiums (see
Note 7);

. expens)es for compliance activities relating toShaebanes-Oxley Act of 2002 increased by $1.5 mijlio

. uncollectible accounts expense increased by $lll®mdue to increases in gross revenues stemmorg higher rates;

. gas technology research costs increased by $0idmnil

. workers compensation expense decreased by $0iénméind

. energy efficiency rebate costs decreased by $0l@®mi
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2003 compared to 2002

payroll and payroll-related expenses including pEnand health care costs, increased by $8.9 mitliee to salary, wage and
bonus increases, increased vacation accruals arehsed pension costs due to a change in the peismount rate assumption
and pension fund losses in 2001 and 2002 (see Nt

business risk insurance and workers compensatsumance premiums increased by $1.2 million;

professional service fees and contract labor irse@dy $1.2 million;
workers compensation claims expense increased Byillion primarily due to a single claim incurr@d2003;
other operating costs increased $0.4 million; and

uncollectible accounts expense decreased by $0i®nmrdue to improvements in collection rates amdér net write-offs of
accounts receivabl

Most of the cost increases NW Natural experienoe2DD4 and 2003 were included in the rate increagpsoved in the

Company’s general rate cases in Oregon and Washirfgée “Regulatory Matters—General Rate Casesyeab

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes

Taxes other than income taxes, which are pringigadmprised of property, franchise and payroll tpiacreased $3.7

million, or 11 percent, in 2004 compared to 2008] ancreased $1.0 million, or 3 percent, in 200@pared to 2002. The following table
summarizes the changes in taxes other than incaxes:t

Increase (Decrease)

(Thousands 2004 2003
Franchise taxe $ 2,21f $ (92
Payroll taxes 1,07¢ 232
Property taxe 732 93C
Other taxe: (342) (21)
Total increast $ 3,688 $ 1,04¢

The increase in franchise taxes in 2004 is primaelated to the increase in total utility opergtmevenues resulting from

higher gas rates (see “Comparison of Gas DistobuBiperations,” above); the increase in payroksais primarily related to the increase in
payroll expense (see “Operations and Maintenarat®mVe); and the increase in property taxes is piliyalated to increased utility plant in
service (see Note 9).
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Depreciation and Amortization

The following table summarizes the increases ial folant and property and total depreciation andréimation for the
three years ended Dec. 31, 2004:

(Thousands 2004 2003 2002
Plant and property
Utility plant:
Depreciable $1,771,89 $1,595,75! $1,498,90.
Non-depreciable, including construction work in progr 23,08: 61,83( 41,06:
1,794,97. 1,657,58! 1,539,96!
Nor-utility property:
Depreciable 29,62¢ 22,35 20,83:
Non-depreciable, including construction work in progr 4,33t 1,04z -
33,96: 23,39¢ 20,83:
Total plant and proper $1,828,93! $1,680,98. $1,560,79

Depreciation and amortizatio

Utility plant $ 56,89¢ $ 53,79¢ $ 51,69
Non-utility property 472 451 397
Total depreciation and amortization expe $ 57,37 $ 54,24¢ $ 52,09
Weighted average depreciation r- utility 3.4% 3.5% 3.5%
Weighted average depreciation r- nor-utility 2.3% 2.3% 1.9%

The Company’s total depreciation and amortizatigpease increased by $3.1 million, or 6 percen2d@4 and by $2.2
million, or 4 percent, in 2003. The increased eseciior both years is primarily due to additionalestments in utility property that were
made to meet continuing customer growth, includimgCompany’s investment in the SMPE that was qatservice in November 2003 and
September 2004 (see “Financial Condition—Cash FeWwesting Activities,” below).

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) improved by $0.7 millio2@®4. The increase was primarily due to reductionsterest charge
on deferred regulatory account balances ($1.1anjllreflecting lower net credit balances outstagdinthese accounts. This increase was
partially offset by a decrease in gains from Conypawned life insurance ($0.6 million) due to deaesin the market value of equity-based
life insurance investments.

Other income (expense) improved by $17.0 millio2@®3, primarily due to the $13.9 million pre-tdxacge in 2002 for
costs incurred in the effort to acquire PGE. Exirigdhis charge, other income (expense) increage®Bhl million in 2003. The increase was
primarily due to reductions in interest chargegleferred regulatory account balances ($1.4 millrefiecting lower net credit balances
outstanding in these accounts, and an increasaims from Company-owned life insurance ($2.0 millidue to increases in the market value
of equity-based life insurance investments, pdytaffset by a decrease in earnings from equitesiments ($0.5 million) due to lower
income from partnership investments held by Fir@nCorporation.
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Interest Charges Net of Amounts Capitalized

Interest charges-net of amounts capitalized in 2084 $0.7 million, or 2 percent, higher than in 20Dhe increase in
2004 was primarily due to higher balances of deltstanding during the period. The increase wasgiigroffset by lower average interest
rates and higher amounts of Allowance for FundsdU3ering Construction (AFUDC) due to higher averdgéances of construction work in
progress (CWIP). AFUDC represents the cost of fursgs] for CWIP (see Note 1). In 2004, AFUDC reducgerest expense by $1.0 million
compared to reductions of $0.9 million in 2003 $3d6 million in 2002. The average interest rate ponent of AFUDC, comprised of short-
term and long-term borrowing rates, as appropriates 3.0 percent in 2004, 2.3 percent in 2003 aBigh@rcent in 2002.

Interest charges-net of amounts capitalized in 2088 $1.0 million, or 3 percent, higher than in 208lso due to higher
balances of debt outstanding and to the inclusfaiividends paid in the second half of 2003 toig$0.2 million on the Company’s
redeemable preferred stock, due to their classificas interest expense upon the adoption of SRASL50, “Accounting for Certain
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of bbigbilities and Equity.”

Income Taxes

The effective corporate income tax rates were Bérdent, 33.7 percent and 34.9 percent for thesyeraded Dec. 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The higherira®04 reflects the effect of decreased tax b&&fhm a non-taxable gain on Company-
and trust-owned life insurance ($0.6 million), d=sed tax benefits attributed to tax adjustmertzrded in the prior year ($0.3 million),
decreased tax benefits resulting from a taxable gaithe surrender of certain Compawned life insurance ($0.1 million) and the expoa
of a federal low-income housing tax credit ($0.1ion), partially offset by the effect of increastak benefits from an adjustment of the
Company'’s deferred income tax balances ($0.5 mijlli&xcluding the impact of these tax benefits talkego account during 2004, the
effective tax rate for 2004 would have been 35:1@q@. The lower tax rate for 2003 reflects incesbtax benefits from a non-taxable gain on
Company- and trust-owned life insurance. Excludhrgse benefits, the effective tax rate for 2003 lddave been 35.0 percent. The tax rate
for 2002 includes the effect of the tax benefitgrirthe $13.9 million charge for PGE transactiontsdsxcluding this charge, the effective tax
rate for 2002 would have been 35.6 percent.

Redeemable Preferred and Preference Stock DiviBewgdirements

Redeemable preferred and preference stock dividequrements decreased $0.3 million in 2004 conthar003 due t
the redemption in November 2003 of all outstandihgres of the Company’s $7.125 Series of RedeerRabferred Stock with an aggregate
stated value of $7.5 million at the applicable yagdemption price of 102.375 percent. No sharesedéemable preferred or preference stock
were outstanding at any time during 2004.

Redeemable preferred and preference stock dividemdrements decreased $2.0 million in 2003 contpy@002 due t
the redemption in December 2002 of all of the @utding shares ($25 million aggregate stated valfitje Company’s $6.95 Series of
Redeemable Preference Stock pursuant to the mapdatiemption provisions applicable to that Series.
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FinanciaCondition

Capital Structure

The Company’s goal is to maintain a target cagitialcture comprised of 45 to 50 percent commorkstgeity and 50 to
55 percent long-term and short-term debt. Whentemahdil capital is required, debt or equity secastare issued depending upon both the
target capital structure and market conditions.sehurces also are used to meet long-term defatngobn requirements and short-term
commercial paper maturities (see “Liquidity and EafResources,” below, and Notes 3 and 5). The @om’s consolidated capital structure
at Dec. 31 was as follows:

Year ended December & 2004 2003
Common stock equit 48.7% 46.4%
Long-term deb 41.3% 45.8%
Shor-term debt, including current maturities of l-term debr 10.0% 7.8%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Achieving the target capital structure and maintajrsufficient liquidity are necessary to maintattractive credit ratings
and have access to capital markets at reasonadtke co

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At Dec. 31, 2004, the Company had $5.2 millionasttand cash equivalents compared to $4.7 milti@ea. 31, 2003.
Short-term liquidity is provided by cash from op@as and from the sale of commercial paper natds;h are supported by committed bank
lines of credit. The Company has available throBgpt. 30, 2005 committed lines of credit totalidg® million with four commercial banks
(see “Lines of Credit,” below, and Note 6). Shamrh debt balances typically are reduced towarctiteof the winter heating season as a
significant amount of the Company’s current assetduding accounts receivable and natural gasritorées, are converted into cash.

Capital expenditures primarily relate to utilityrtruction resulting from customer growth and systeprovements (see
“Cash Flows—Investing Activities,” below). Certatontractual commitments under capital leases, tipgreeases and gas supply purchase
and other contracts require an adequate souraendirfg. These capital and contractual expenditaresinanced through cash from
operations and from the issuance of short-term, adtith is periodically refinanced through the safiédong-term debt or equity securities.

To provide long-term financing, in February 2004 tbompany filed a universal shelf registration viite Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) providing for the isseard sale of up to $200 million of securities, ebhinay consist of secured debt (First
Mortgage Bonds), unsecured debt, preferred stockmmon stock. Concurrent with this shelf filinggtCompany deregistered the $60
million of Medium-Term Notes (MTNs) remaining ois previous shelf registration. The $200 millionwansal shelf registration statement
became effective in February 2004. In April 200% €ompany issued $40 million of common stock utiderishelf registration, leaving $160
million available for the issuance of debt or eg@iecurities (see “Financing Activities,” below).

Neither NW Natural's Mortgage and Deed of Trust thar indentures under which other long-term deisssed contain
credit rating triggers or stock price provisionatthequire the acceleration of debt repayment. Alsere are no rating triggers or stock price
provisions contained in
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contracts or other agreements with third partirsept for agreements with certain counter-partiedlen NW Natural’s Derivatives Policy
which require the affected party to provide substitcollateral such as cash, guaranty or letteredit if credit ratings are lowered to non-
investment grade, or in some cases if the markdd<et value exceeds a certain threshold.

Based on the availability of short-term credit ftieis and the ability to issue long-term debt @ogity securities, the
Company believes it has sufficient liquidity toisBt its anticipated cash requirements, including ¢ontractual obligations and investing and
financing activities discussed below.

Dividend Policy

NW Natural has paid quarterly dividends on its camnrstock in each year since the stock first waseidso the public in
1951. Annual common dividend payments have incrbaseh year since 1956. The amount and timingvadeinds payable on the
Company’s common stock are within the sole diseretif the Company’s Board of Directors. It is theéention of the Board of Directors to
continue to pay cash dividends on the Company’'sncomstock on a quarterly basis. However, futurédéivds will be dependent upon NW
Natura’s earnings, its financial condition and other tast

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has no material off-balance sheet ¢ingrarrangements.

Contractual Obligations

The following table shows the Company’s contractidigations by maturity and type of obligation. N\étural also has
obligations with respect to its pension and postement medical benefit plans (see Note 7).

Payments Due in Years Ending Dec. 31,

(Thousands
Contractual Obligation 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereaftel Total
Commercial pape $102,50( $ - 8 - 8 - $ - $ - $ 102,50(
Long-term deb 15,00( 8,00( 29,50( 5,00( - 441,52 499,02
Interest on lon-term debt 33,21 32,56 31,08t 30,26¢ 30,05: 373,74 530,92
Capital lease 23C 18¢ 97 29 - - 54k
Operating lease 4,491 4,13¢ 3,967 3,83¢ 3,83¢ 38,90¢ 59,17:
Gas purchase contradts 277,37: 184,57. 167,09: 150,89¢ 62,15¢ 112,68 954,77
Gas pipeline commitmen 62,98¢ 57,80( 58,98: 57,23¢ 50,70: 271,79 559,50:
Other purchase commitmer 12,16: 147 - - - - 12,30¢
Total $507,95! $287,40' $290,72! $247,26' $146,74. $1,238,65 $2,718,75

@ All gas purchase contracts use price formulasttedonthly index prices. Commitment amounts areebas index prices at Dec. 31,
2004.

Other purchase commitments primarily consist ofairing balances under existing purchase ordersemdining
payments due to a general contractor for the coctstn of the remaining portion of the SMPE projé&idiese and other contractual obligati
are financed through cash from operations and tf@issuance of short-term debt, which is peridbicafinanced through the sale of long-
term debt or equity securities.
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Holders of certain longerm debt have put options that, if exercised, Wadcelerate the maturities by $10 million in 2
and by $20 million in each of 2007, 2008 and 20[0%: interest coupon rate on the long-term debessvith put options range between 6.52
percent and 7.05 percent.

On March 12, 2004, NW Natural employees who are besof the OPEIU, Local No. 11, approved a newiab
agreement (Joint Accord) covering wages, benefitsveorking conditions that will expire on May 3X)@3. In accordance with the terms of
the Joint Accord, beginning Jan. 1, 2005, the Campell commence making contributions to a multiq@oyer trust that will provide
additional retirement benefits to its bargainingt employees.

Commercial Paper

The Company’s primary source of short-term fundsdm the sale of commercial paper notes payahladbition to
issuing commercial paper to meet seasonal worlapital requirements, including the financing of gaschases and accounts receivable,
short-term debt is also used temporarily to fungitehrequirements. Commercial paper is periodycedfinanced through the sale of long-
term debt or equity securities. NW Natural’s outsiag commercial paper, which is sold under an agagreement with a commercial bank,
is supported by committed bank lines of credit (4éees of Credit,” below). NW Natural had $102.5llion in commercial paper notes
outstanding at Dec. 31, 2004, compared to $85.omibutstanding at Dec. 31, 2003.

Lines of Credit

Effective Oct. 1, 2004, NW Natural entered intebrof credit with Bank of America, N.A., JP Morgahase Bank, U.S.
Bank National Association, and Wells Fargo Bankaltng $150 million in aggregate. Half of the crtefdicility with each bank, or $75 millio
is committed and available through Sept. 30, 2808, the other $75 million is committed and avagahirough Sept. 30, 2007. Bank of
America, N.A., JP Morgan Chase Bank, and U.S. Béational Association have each committed $20 mmilfior each of their 2005 and 2007
lines of credit, and Wells Fargo Bank has commifi&8 million for each of its 2005 and 2007 linesoddit.

Under the terms of these lines of credit, NW Ndtpeys commitment fees but is not required to namtompensating
bank balances. The interest rates on any outstadimowings under these lines of credit are basedurrent market rates. There were no
outstanding balances on these lines of credit at B 2004 or 2003.

NW Natural’s lines of credit require that creditings be maintained in effect at all times and tiattce be given of any
change in its senior unsecured debt ratings. AghamNW Natural's credit rating is not an eventefault, nor is the maintenance of a
specific minimum level of credit rating a conditimmdrawing upon the lines of credit. However, iatt rates on any loans outstanding under
NW Natura’s bank lines are tied to credit ratings, which Vaoincrease or decrease the cost of debt outstgnaider these lines of credit, if
any, when ratings are changed.

The lines of credit require the Company to maintairindebtedness to total capitalization ratio®pércent or less and to
maintain a consolidated net worth at least equ8Dtpercent of its net worth at Sept. 30, 2004s pld percent of the Company’s net income
for each subsequent fiscal quarter. NW Natural waempliance with the covenants as of Dec. 314206th an indebtedness to total
capitalization ratio of 52 percent and a net woftB568.5 million compared to a required $452.llionl The Company was also in
compliance with these covenants under
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previous line of credit agreements in effect aBet. 31, 2003. Failure to comply with either ofsaeovenants would entitle the banks to
terminate their lending commitments and to accé&detize maturity of all amounts outstanding.

Credit Ratings

The table below summarizes NW Natural’s creditngdifrom three rating agencies, Standard and PBating Services
(S&P), Moody'’s Investor Service (Moody’s) and Fiteatings (Fitch).

Rating Agency S&P Moody's Fitch
Commercial Paper (shi-term debt’ A-1 P-1 F1
Senior Secured (lo-term debt A+ A2 A
Senior Unsecured (lo-term debt A A3 A-
Ratings Outloo} Stable Stable Stable

In December 2004, NW Natural’s corporate credihgatvas upgraded by S&P to “A+” from “A”, which @lsssigned
NW Natural a business profile score*1” on a scale of “1” to “10”, where “1” is the stngest score. Each of the rating agencies hasnasbkig
NW Natural an investment grade rating. These cratitigs and business profile scores are depengbemt a number of factors, bc
qualitative and quantitative, and are subject @nge at any time. The disclosure of these cretiitggis not a recommendation to buy, sell or
hold the Company’s securities. Each rating shoeléaluated independently of any other rating.

Optional Redemptions of LorAfierm Debt and Redeemable Preferred Stock

In 2003, the Company exercised early redemptiomigians applicable to certain of its long-term debtluding all $4
million of the 7.50% Series B MTNs due 2023, allL$tillion of the 7.52% Series B MTNs due 2023, aiid20 million of the 7.25% Series
B MTNSs due 2023. These MTNs were redeemed in tiné tjuarter of 2003 at 103.75 percent, 103.76 pdrand 103.65 percent of their
respective principal amounts. In the fourth quanfe2003, the Company also exercised early redemgtiovisions applicable to all of the
remaining shares of its $7.125 Series of Redeenielerred Stock with an aggregate stated val$a & million, at a redemption price
equivalent to 102.375 percent. The Company rede¢heeM TNs and the preferred stock with availablghcar with the proceeds from sales
of commercial paper, and re-financed this long-tdeht and preferred stock through the sale of mag-term debt in the fourth quarter of
2003. Early redemption premiums are recognizechasortized costs on debt redemptions pursuant £&653¥%o. 71 and are amortized to
expense over the life of the new debt.

Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Year-over-year changes in the Company’s operatist) lows are primarily affected by net income and-cash
adjustments to net income. In 2004, net incomeramdcash adjustments to net income increased byr#ili8n, but the cash flow increase
was offset by increases in working capital requigats within the utility segment resulting from wammveather, higher prices of natural gas,
and the timing of customer collections, paymentstural gas purchases and deferred gas cost
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recoveries. In 2003, net income and non-cash adgrd to net income decreased by $18 million piilndue to a $13.9 million non-cash
write-down of PGE acquisition costs.

The following table summarizes cash provided byrafeg activities for the years ended Dec. 31, 2@003 and 2002:

Thousands (year ended December 2004 2003 2002
Net income $ 50,57: $ 45,98! $ 43,79
Non-cash adjustments to net inco 69,21¢ 55,83t 76,30
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (warkiapital sources (12,049 6,37t 4,22¢
Cash provided by operating activiti $ 107,73¢ $108,19: $124,32

The overall change in cash flow from operations negligible in 2004 compared to 2003, but decredse$il6 million in
2003 compared to 2002. The significant factors rdouting to the cash flow changes between yearssifellows:

2004 compared to 2003

. an increase in net income added $4.6 million td ckosv;

. an increase in deferred tax expense added $23i6mtib cash flow, reflecting higher tax benefitsrh accelerated bonus
depreciation on large capital additions that wedaegd into service in 200.

. an increase in inventories reduced cash flow by&&@gllion, primarily reflecting higher volumes ahigher unit prices on gas
inventories in storage facilities (s“Results of Operatio—Comparison of Gas Operatio” above);

. an increase in regulatory receivables for defegasicosts reduced cash flow by $10.2, reflectiffgréint patterns of activity

between the two years with respect to purchasedagisavings and off-system gas sales under NWralat PGA tariff (see
“Results of Operatio—Comparison of Gas Operati—Cost of Gas Sol” above);

. an increase in accounts receivable also reducédficass by $8.1 million, reflecting the impact afjher rates compared to the
prior year (sefResults of Operatio—Regulatory Matter” above);

. cash contributions to the Company’s non-bargaininity defined benefit pension plan lowered cash fdy $8.3 million,
compared to no contributions in 2003 or 2002 “Pension Cost (Income) and Funding St" below);

. a smaller increase in accrued unbilled revenued@@ier million to cash flow, reflecting higher garices, partially offset by
lower unbilled volumes because of warmer weathdrd®atreases in customer usage because of highes;

. an increase in other long term liabilities added®$8illion to cash flow, reflecting an increasesitcruals for environmental and
other claims, as well as increases in accrualari@unded liabilities for pension and p-retirement benefits

. an increase in income taxes receivable reducedftaglby $7.3 million; and

. a decrease in prepayments and other current aseetased cash flow by $3.5 million.

2003 compared to 2002

. an increase in net income added $2.2 million td clasv;
. a non-cash adjustment to net income in 2002 fotab® recorded for PGE costs resulted in a needserin 2003 of $13.9
million;
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. a significant increase in accrued unbilled revemageiced cash flow by $28.7 million, reflecting artmnation of higher gas
prices and colder weather in December 2003 compgarB@cember 200:

. a significant increase in accounts receivable redwash flow by $22.9 million, primarily reflectitige higher gas prices and the
timing of customer account collectior

. a decrease in deferred gas costs payable reduskdloa by $5.6 million, largely due to a signifigarefund to customers in
2002 of accumulated gas cost savir

. a decrease in accrued interest and taxes payatbbel $16.4 million to cash flow, primarily refleatitnigher tax benefits from
accelerated bonus depreciati

. a decrease in inventories of gas, materials angliespadded $15.9 million to cash flow, primarilyedto lower volumes of
natural gas in storage, partially offset by highas commaodity price:

. a decrease in prepaid income taxes added $9.®mith cash flow; and

. an increase in accounts payable added $7.9 mttha@ash flow.

The Company has lease and purchase commitmentisgeia its operating activities that are finanegth cash flows
from operations (see “Liquidity and Capital Res@srt above, and Note 12).

The Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 2802 Assistance Act) combined with the Jobs andv@rd ax Relief
Reconciliation Act of 2003 (the Reconciliation Act)lowed for an additional first-year tax depréicia deduction on the adjusted basis of
“qualified property.” The Assistance Act providemst fin additional depreciation deduction equal tp8&ent of an assetadjusted basis. Tl
Reconciliation Act increased this first-year adutitl depreciation deduction to 50 percent of aetasadjusted basis. The additional fiystar
depreciation deduction is an acceleration of deatien deductions that otherwise would have bekartan the later years of an asset’s
recovery period. The accelerated depreciation prons provided by both the Assistance Act and theoRciliation Act expired at Dec. 31,
2004. The Company realized enhanced cash flow femlaced income taxes totaling an estimated $5%mituring the effective period,
based on plant investments made between Sept0Q1,ghd Dec. 31, 2004.

Investing Activities

Cash requirements for investing activities in 26@t4led $136 million, up from $128 million in tharse period of 2003.
Cash requirements for the acquisition and constdf utility plant totaled $141 million, up fro®il25 million in 2003. The increase in cash
requirements for utility construction in 2004 wasarily the result of higher capital expenditurefating to NW Natural’'s SMPE project to
extend the pipeline from its Mist gas storage ftelderve growing portions of its service area (82fion). The SMPE was completed and
placed into service in September 2004. The totsil abthe project was approximately $110 milliorhigh includes amounts reflected in
investing activities over the past few years. Tost of service associated with the SMPE projedtphdeferred tax benefits, was included in
customer rates starting in the fourth quarter @420

Cash requirements for investing activities in 26@aled $128 million, up from $85 million in 2002ash requirements
for the acquisition and construction of utility ptaotaled $125 million, up from $80 million in 2B0OThe increase in cash requirements for
utility construction in 2003 was primarily the rétsof higher capital expenditures relating to thdFE project ($27 million), higher system
improvements and support ($12 million) and othexcsd projects to serve new customer load or neviceeareas ($9 million).
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Investments in the Company’s pipeline integrity mgement program (IMP) were $1.6 million in 2004mpared to $0.9
million in 2003. IMP costs are estimated at apprately $50 million to $100 million over a temar period (see discussion below). IMP ¢
are classified as either capital expenditures guledory assets. The costs are accumulated ovhrl@amonth period ending June 30, and the
costs, subject to audit, are recovered throughatzeges effective on Oct. 1 of each year commgrut. 1, 2004. The approved accounting
and rate treatment for these costs extends thr8egh 30, 2008, and it may be reviewed for poteakitension after that date.

Investments in non-utility property totaled $10.8lion in 2004, compared to $2.6 million in 200 & higher
investments in 2004 compared to 2003 were priméoil\certain improvements to the Company’s gasligipesystem that were related to
interstate gas storage services.

In December 2004, the Company received proceedsthe surrender of certain life insurance poligied proceeds from
the settlement of life insurance benefits totaBig.6 million.

During the fiveyear period 2005 through 2009, utility constructexpenditures are estimated at between $500 malie
$600 million. The level of capital expenditures otle next five years reflects projected high cosipgrowth and system improvement
projects resulting in part from requirements urttierPipeline Safety Improvement Act of 2002 (PipelBafety Act) (see below). A majority
of the required funds is expected to be interngdljerated over the five-year period; the remaimdébe funded through a combination of
long-term debt and equity securities with shorta@ebt providing liquidity and bridge financing.

NW Natural’s utility and non-utility capital expeitdres in 2005 are estimated to total $110 millime)uding $28 million
for customer growth, $21 million for system impravent and support, $15 million for equipment, féigs and information technology, $10
million for IMP costs, $6 million for the SMPE amellated gas storage projects, $9 million for ytithd non-utility storage and $21 million
for construction overhead.

In December 2003, the U.S. Department of Transporta Office of Pipeline Safety issued a rule thpécifies the
detailed requirements for transmission pipeline $\B mandated by the Pipeline Safety Act. The Pp&afety Act requires operators of |
transmission pipelines to identify lines locatedHigh Consequence Areas (HCAs) and to develop IMR®riodically inspect the integrity of
the pipelines and make repairs or replacementg@sseary to ensure the ongoing integrity of thelpips. The legislation requires NW
Natural to inspect the 50 percent highest risklpips located in its HCAs within the first five yisaand to inspect the remaining cove
pipelines within 10 years of the date of the en&etinThe Pipeline Safety Act also requiresngpections of the covered pipelines every si
years from the date of the previous inspectiorttierlife of the pipelines

Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities in 2004 teth$29 million, compared to $17 million in 2003 ckas contributing te
the $12 million increase were the net proceeds.g8#llion) from a common stock offering in ApriDR4 (see below), combined with last
yeal's redemption of the $7.125 Series of PreferredIS{$8.4 million), offset by last year’s increasdong-term debt balances ($35.0
million).

Cash provided by financing activities in 2003 teth$17 million, compared to cash used in finaneictyvities in 2002 of
$43 million. Factors contributing to the $60 mitlidifference
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were an increase in short-term debt in 2003 ($fdl4bn) compared to a decrease in 2002 ($38.5iomjland the redemption of the $6.95
Series of Preference Stock in 2002 ($25 millio@ytiplly offset by a higher amount used for théreatent of long-term debt ($55 million in
2003 compared to $40.5 million in 2002) and theeregtion, including the annual sinking fund, of $%125 Series of Preferred Stock in
2003 ($8.4 million).

NW Natural sold $90 million of its secured Mediurerm Notes, Series B (MTNSs) in each of 2003 and 20@Rused the
proceeds to redeem long-term debt ($55 milliond@82and $40.5 million in 2002), to provide cashiforestments in utility plant and to
reduce short-term borrowings.

In April 2004, the Company issued and sold 1,290 $lfares of its common stock in an underwritteripwffering, and
used the net proceeds of $38.5 million from therirfig to reduce short-term indebtedness by abdindifion and to fund, in part, NW
Natura’s utility construction program. The offering ofromnon stock was made pursuant to NW Natural's usdleshelf registration
statement providing for the registration of $200liom of securities, which became effective in Redoy 2004. After the common stock
offering, approximately $160 million remains avhilunder the shelf registration statement forGbenpany to issue additional securities,
which may include First Mortgage Bonds and unsetdebt.

In 2000, NW Natural commenced a program to repigehg to 2 million shares, or up to $35 milliorvalue, of its
common stock through a repurchase program thabées extended through May 2005. The purchasesade m the open market or throt
privately negotiated transactions. No shares wepanchased in 2003 or in 2004. Since the programégption the Company has repurchased
355,400 shares of common stock at a total cos8& fiillion.

Pension Cost (Income) and Funding Status

Net periodic pension cost (NPPC) is determineccooedance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accountfog
Pensions” (see “Application of Critical AccountiPglicies—Accounting for Pensions,” above). The aimension cost or income is
allocated between operations and maintenance exj@erisconstruction overhead.

NPPC for the Company’s two qualified defined bengfins totaled $6.6 million in 2004, an increab8®4 million over
NPPC for these plans of $6.2 million in 2003. Theréased NPPC was primarily due to the use of arddiscount rate (6.25 percent in 2(
compared to 6.75 percent in 2003) which had thecefff increasing the two plans’ accumulated beméfigations.

During 2004, the Company contributed $5.3 milliorits Retirement Plan for Non-Bargaining Unit Emydes (NBU
Plan) for plan year 2004, of which $1.0 million repented the minimum required funding. The Compaay not required to make any
contribution to its Retirement Plan for Bargainidgit Employees (BU Plan) for that year. The Compsufiynding policy is to contribute at
least the minimum amount required by the Employegr&nent Income Security Act of 1974, as amenBedaccounting expense
recognition, the Company uses an asset valuatiankgtrelated valuation) method that spreads varianceedem expected returns and ac
investment returns over a three-year period, bufuieding purposes the Company spreads these eliffes over a five-year period. In 2004,
the Company made additional tdgductible contributions to improve the fundedwstaif its qualified pension plans. In 2005, no dbations
are required to be made to fund either the NBU Bfathe BU Plan, and the Company does not antieipetking any additional voluntary
contributions for the 2004 plan year.
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The fair market value of the two plans’ assetsaased to $186.8 million at Dec. 31, 2004, up frdr683 million at Dec.
31, 2003. The increase included $22.5 million westment gains and employer contributions of $8IBam, which were offset in part by
$11.2 million in withdrawals to pay benefits andBnillion in eligible expenses of the two plans€elpresent value of benefit obligations
under the two plans increased from an estimate@ #iiBion to $209 million during 2004, however, §@ two plans remained under-funded
in aggregate by about $22 million at Dec. 31, 2004.

NPPC for the NBU Plan and the BU Plan was $6.2iaonilin 2003, compared to net periodic pension ineaih$0.1
million in 2002. The increased NPPC in 2003 wagdr due to investment losses in 2002, which ategrized over a three-year period, and
to the use of a lower discount rate (6.75 perae@003 compared to 7.25 percent in 2002) whicheimsed the plans’ accumulated benefit
obligations. During 2004, the Company made a casltribution of $2.9 million to the NBU Plan for t2803 plan year, of which $1.9 milli
represented the minimum required funding. No cbations were required to be made to either the Nuh or the BU Plan for the 2002 p
year.

At Dec. 31, 2003, the fair market value of the &sséthe NBU Plan and the BU Plan totaled $168il8an, up from
$143.2 million at Dec. 31, 2002. The increased miavklue included $36 million in investment gawsjch was partially offset by $10
million in withdrawals to pay benefits and $0.9 Iioit in eligible expenses of the plans. At Dec. 3003, the present value of benefit
obligations under the two plans totaled $192 millamd thus were under-funded in aggregate by éumillion.

Despite the increase in NPPC and the current ufutheted status of the NBU Plan, NW Natural belieedll be able to
maintain well-funded qualified pension plans. NWtiNal does not expect its current or future casttrdaution requirements to the two plans
to have a material adverse effect on its liquiditfinancial condition (see Note 7).

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

For the years ended Dec. 31, 2004, 2003 and 208Z;dmpany'’s ratios of earnings to fixed chargempmuted using the
Securities and Exchange Commission method, wef 3.84 and 2.85, respectively. For this purpoasmirgs consist of net income before
taxes plus fixed charges, and fixed charges cookisterest on all indebtedness, the amortizatibdebt expense and discount or premium
and the estimated interest portion of rentals abditg income.

Contingent Liabilities

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to federal, state and laged and regulations related to environmental matfEhese evolving
laws and regulations may require expenditures aveng timeframe to control environmental impadtse Company believes that appropr
investigation or remediation is being undertakeallahe relevant sites. Based on existing knowdedige Company does not expect that the
ultimate resolution of these matters will have darial adverse effect on its financial conditioasults of operations or cash flows. (See Note
12).

In May 2003, the OPUC approved NW Natural's reqi@stieferral of environmental costs associateth wiiecific sites.
The authorization, which has been extended thréygh 2005, allows NW Natural to defer and seekawegry of unreimbursed environmer
costs in a future general
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rate case. NW Natural has filed a request withQR&JC to extend this authority through January 2@6a cumulative basis through Dec.
31, 2004, the Company paid out a total of $3.3iamlfelating to the sites since the effective ddtthe deferral authorization. (See Note 12).

NW Natural will first seek to recover the costdmfestigation and remediation for which it may bsponsible with
respect to environmental matters, if any, from iasge. If these costs are not recovered from imsasethen NW Natural will seek recovery
through future rates subject to approval by the OPAk Dec. 31, 2004, NW Natural had an $8.5 millreaeivable representing an estimate
of the environmental costs it expects to incur mubver from insurance. (See Note 12).

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVEAND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is exposed to various forms of maikktincluding commodity supply risk, weather riskd interest rate
risk. The following describes the Company’s expesoarthese risks.

Commodity Supply Risk

NW Natural enters into short-term, medium-term bdj-term natural gas supply contracts, along wagthociated short-,
medium- and long-term transportation capacity ag. Historically, NW Natural has taken physicalivkery of at least the minimum
guantities specified in its natural gas supply cts. These contracts are primarily index-baseldsabject to annual nericing, a process th
is intended to reflect anticipated market pricadeduring the next year. NW Natural's PGA mechariis Oregon and Washington provides
for the recovery from customers of actual commodasts, except that, for Oregon customers, NW Maalisorbs 33 percent of the higher
cost of gas sold, or retains 33 percent of the fa@@st, in either case as compared to the annuAl@@e built into customer rates.

To the degree that market risks exist due to ptieativerse changes in commodity prices, foreigrtharge rates or
counterparty credit quality in relation to thesmaficial and physical contracts, the Company consithe risks to be:

Commodity Price Risk

The prices of natural gas commodity are subjeflituations due to unpredictable factors includiveather, pipeline
transportation congestion and other factors tifataghort-term supply and demand. Commodity-psiwap and call option contracts
(financial hedge contracts) are used to convetaitenatural gas supply contracts from floatingesi to fixed prices. These financial hedge
contracts are included in the Company’s annual RiBAy, subject to a prudency review. At Dec. 3002 and 2003, notional amounts under
these commadity swap and call option contractdedt@413.0 million and $304.1 million, respectivelst Dec. 31, 2004, five of these
financial hedge contracts extended beyond Dec2@d5. If all of the commodityrice swap and call option contracts had beeresktih Dec
31, 2004, a regulatory gain of $10.5 million woblalve been realized (see Note 11).

56



Table of Contents

Foreign Currency Risk

The costs of natural gas commodity and certainlipgeservices purchased from Canadian supplierswvgect to change
in the value of the Canadian currency in relatmthe U.S. currency. Foreign currency forward cacts are used to hedge against fluctua
in exchange rates with respect to the purchaseatafal gas from Canadian suppliers. At Dec. 30424nd 2003, notional amounts under
foreign currency forward contracts totaled $14.8iom and $6.4 million, respectively. As of Dec.,21004, no foreign currency forward
contracts extended beyond Dec. 31, 2005. If athefforeign currency forward contracts had beetheseon Dec. 31, 2004, a gain of $0.4
million would have been realized (see Note 11).

Counterparty Credit Risk

Certain suppliers that sell gas to NW Natural heiteer relatively low credit ratings or are notecitoy major credit rating
agencies. To manage this supply risk, the Companghases gas from a number of different suppligith, no single supplier accounting for
more than 20 percent of the Company’s total purehi&sr a given monthly period. The Company alsduatas suppliers’ creditworthiness
and maintains the ability to require additionabficial assurances, including deposits, lettersefit; or surety bonds in case a supplier
defaults. In the event of a supplier’s failure @ider contracted volumes of gas, the regulatdiyutiould need to replace those volumes at
prevailing market prices, which may be higher avdo than the original transaction prices. Theséscasuld be subject to the PGA sharing
mechanism discussed above. Since most of the Caongpammmodity supply contracts are priced at thenthly market index price, and the
Company has significant storage flexibility, ituslikely that a supplier default would have a miatgr adverse impact on the Company’s
financial condition.

With respect to the financial counterparties thenpany uses for entering into commodity price heclggracts, NW
Natura’s Derivatives Policy requires each counterpartpeaat least two rating grades above non-investgraate. Because counterparty
ratings are subject to change at any time, the @ompould have contracts outstanding with countéiggawhose ratings are non-investment
grade. NW Natural's counterparty credit exposurefddec. 31, 2004 was as follows:

(Thousands Credit Exposur
Investment grade counterpart $ 15,95
Non-investment grade counterpart -

Total $ 15,957

Due to the volatility of natural gas commodity s¢ the market value and credit exposure of cedeiivative contracts
could exceed the Company'’s credit limits estabtisineits Derivatives Policy. If such credit limigere exceeded, the Company would have
the ability to require collateral from the countay and would not enter into any further contrawith that counterparty until it was within
the limits. If a counterparty failed to perform wmndts contract, NW Natural could sustain a losgcWhvould be included in the annual PGA
adjustment, subject to a regulatory prudency revigmder certain circumstances, a counterparty dtetauld result in a material loss.
However, based on the Company’s current regulat@ghanism, the absence of any significant positiitin a single counterparty and the
strength of the counterparties’ current creditngdi any such loss is not expected to have a rabi@pact on the Company’s financial
condition.
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Weather Risk

The Company is exposed to weather risk primariyfits regulated utility business. A large portadfrthe Companys ne
operating revenues (margin) is volume driven, amdent rates are based on an assumption of noresther. In 2003, the OPUC approved a
weather normalization mechanism for residential @mimercial customers. This mechanism affects oustdills between Nov. 15 through
May 15 of each winter heating season, increasirdgoreasing the margin component of customerss ttateeflect “normal’weather using tt
25-year average temperature for each day of thiagpperiod. The mechanism is intended to stabilimerecovery of the utility’s fixed costs
and reduce fluctuations in customers’ bills duedtaer or warmer than average weather. Customédségon are allowed to opt out of the
weather normalization mechanism. As of Dec. 3142@®out 8 percent of the Company’s Oregon custeimad opted out. In addition to the
Oregon customers opting out, the Company’s Washingtistomers are not covered by weather normaiizaiihe combination of Oregon
and Washington customers not covered by weathenadmation mechanism is less than 20 percent akaldential and commercial
customers.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to interest-rate risk aattiwith new debt financing needed to fund capéquirements,
including future contractual obligations and matas of long-term and short-term debt. Interest ragk is managed through the issuance of
fixed-rate debt with varying maturities and, if permittéfte reduction of debt through optional redemptidren interest rates are favorable
Dec. 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had no varialdelong-term debt and no derivative financiatinments to hedge interest rates.
Holders of certain long-term debt have put optithrad, if exercised, would accelerate maturitie$h@ million in 2005 and by $20 million in
each of 2007, 2008 and 2009.

ForwardLooking Statements

This report and other presentations made by thepaagnfrom time to time may contain forward-lookistgtements
within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securiigshange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-loogiatements include statements
concerning plans, objectives, goals, strategig¢arduevents or performance, and other statemeatsth other than statements of historical
facts. The Company’s expectations, beliefs andegtmns are expressed in good faith and are believbave a reasonable basis. However,
each such forward-looking statement involves uadeties and is qualified in its entirety by refecero the following important factors,
among others, that could cause the actual result®edCompany to differ materially from those pgd in such forward-looking statements:
(i) prevailing state and federal governmental peicaand regulatory actions, including those of@8JC, the WUTC, the FERC and the U.S.
Department of TransportatianOffice of Pipeline Safety, with respect to all@wates of return, industry and rate structurecipased gas cc
and investment recovery, acquisitions and dispmsstof assets and facilities, operation and coostnu of plant facilities, the maintenance of
pipeline integrity, present or prospective wholesatd retail competition, changes in tax laws asities and changes in and compliance
environmental and safety laws, regulations anccjasj (ii) weather conditions and other naturalmmena; (iii) unanticipated population
growth or decline, and changes in market demandezhhbly changes in demographic or customer consomptétterns; (iv) competition for
retail and wholesale customers; (v) market conadgiand pricing of natural gas relative to othergynsources; (vi) risks relating to the
creditworthiness of customers, suppliers and firmmounter parties; (vii) risks relating to depende on a single pipeline transportation
provider for natural gas supply; (viii) risks retsud) from uninsured
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damage to Company property, intentional or othesw(ix) unanticipated changes that may affect thmm@any’s liquidity or access to capital
markets; (x) the Company'’s ability to maintain effee internal controls over financial reportingdgampliance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; (xi) unanticipated ajemin interest or foreign currency exchange ratés rates of inflation; (xii) economic
factors that could cause a severe downturn iniogtgy industries, thus affecting demand for ndtgees; (xiii) unanticipated changes in
operating expenses and capital expenditures; gaanticipated changes in future liabilities relgtto employee benefit plans; (xv) capital
market conditions, including their effect on pemstmsts; (xvi) competition for new energy developimgpportunities; (xvii) potential

inability to obtain permits, rights of way, easeinsgteases or other interests or other necesséngrity to construct pipelines, develop
storage or complete other system expansions; a#ig) (#gal and administrative proceedings andlegients. All subsequent forward-looking
statements, whether written or oral and whetherentgdor on behalf of the Company, also are expregsilified by these cautionary
statements.

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as ofdate on which such statement is made, and the @wynndertakes
no obligation to update any forward-looking statetrte reflect events or circumstances after the datwhich such statement is made or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. famtors emerge from time to time and it is notgilole for the Company to predict all such
factors, nor can it assess the impact of each faatbr or the extent to which any factor, or conalion of factors, may cause results to differ
materially from those contained in any forward-loukstatement.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAR
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2003 and 200 64
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the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 67
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Supplemental Schedules Omitted

All other schedules are omitted because of theralgsef the conditions under which they are requinebdecause the required
information is included elsewhere in the finansitatements.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbfy and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underSeeurities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company'siiralecontrol over financial reporting
is designed to provide reasonable assurance regatttk reliability of financial reporting and theeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles in the United StateAmmierica (GAAP). The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting includb®se policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thatgasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions involving
the assets of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit the prepamtignancial
statements in accordance with GAAP, and that réseipd expenditures of the Company are being malydroaccordance with
authorizations of management and the Board of Bireof the Company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding priswemr timely detection of the unauthorized acdign, use or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could zaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliancéwlite policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Ceiapaternal control over financial reporting as@éc. 31, 2004. In making
this assessment, management used the framewddkthelby the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission
(COSO) ininternal Control-Integrated Framework

Based on our assessment and those criteria, maeagiéas concluded that the Company maintainedtaféeinternal control over
financial reporting as of Dec. 31, 2004.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness @dhgpany’s internal control over financial repogtias of Dec. 31, 2004 has
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, apérdient registered public accounting firm, as dtateheir report which appears herein.

/sl Mark S. Dodson
Mark S. Dodson
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ David H. Anderson
David H. Anderson
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Northwest Natural Gas Compar

We have completed an integrated audit of Northiedtiral Gas Company’s 2004 consolidated finant¢étesments and of its internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 200d andits of its 2003 and 2002 consolidated findratetements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigiard (United States). Our opinions, based oraodlits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financidéstant schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying table of contentsgmefairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Northwest Natural Gas Compamy its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at Decemider2®04 and 2003, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefthree years in the period ended December 3%, iBOfbnformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica. In addition, in our opinion, the finaalcstatement schedule listed in the
accompanying table of contents presents fairlallimaterial respects, the information set forthréin when read in conjunction with the
related consolidated financial statements. Thewmntial statements and financial statement schedalthe responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements and financ@éstent schedule based on our audits
conducted our audits of these statements in acooedaith the standards of the Public Company ActingrOversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whe#hénancial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial stateis includes examining, on a test basis, evidsapporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dyagement, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessmentyded in Management's Report on Internal ControltQaieancial Reporting appearing
under Item 8, that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financial reporting as ofdeenber 31, 2004 based on criteria
established internal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission
(COSO0), is fairly stated, in all material respebti@sed on those criteria. Furthermore, in our gpinihe Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financegorting as of December 31, 2004, based on ierigsstablished iinternal Control —
Integrated Frameworissued by the COSO. The Company’s managementpsmsible for maintaining effective internal contosler
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifrecéiveness of internal control over financial oefing. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on tletiedfeess of the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit of internal control ovegfinial reporting in accordance with the standafdeePublic Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamgisinethat we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reportingis maintained in all material respects. An aaflibternal control over financial reporting
includes obtaining an understanding of internalticn
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over financial reporting, evaluating managemeassessment, testing and evaluating the desigogserdting effectiveness of internal cont
and performing such other procedures as we cons&tssary in the circumstances. We believe thaduit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and the Board of Directors of the Compamd (iii) provide reasonable assurance regargiegention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef @ompany’s assets that could have a materialteffethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, Oregon
March 1, 2005
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Thousands, except per share amounts (year endeshibec 31 2004 2003 2002
Operating revenue:

Gross operating revenu $707,60: $611,25¢ $ 641,37¢

Cost of sale: 399,24:  323,19( 353,83:

Net operating revenut 308,36( 288,06t 287,54«

Operating expense

Operations and maintenar 102,15! 96,42( 85,12(

Taxes other than income tax 38,80¢ 35,12¢ 34,07¢

Depreciation and amortizatic 57,37 54,24¢ 52,09(

Total operating expens 198,33« 185,79« 171,28t

Income from operatior 110,02¢ 102,27 116,25¢
Other income (expens 2,82¢ 2,15(C (14,890
Interest charge- net of amounts capitalize 35,75 35,09¢ 34,13:
Income before income tax 77,10 69,32! 67,23¢
Income tax expens 26,53 23,34( 23,44
Net income 50,57: 45,98 43,79:

Redeemable preferred and preference stock divicemdrement: - 294 2,28(
Earnings applicable to common stc $ 50,57 $ 45,68¢ $ 41,51:
Average common shares outstandi

Basic 27,01¢ 25,74 25,43

Diluted 27,28 26,06! 25,81«
Earnings per share of common stc

Basic $ 187 $ 177 $ 1.6:

Diluted $ 18 $ 17¢ $ 1.62

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Thousands (December 3 2004 2003
Assets:
Plant and property
Utility plant $1,794,97. $1,657,58
Less accumulated depreciati 505,28t 471,71¢
Utility plant - net 1,289,68! 1,185,87.
Non-utility property 33,96: 23,39t
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 5,24¢ 4,85¢
Non-utility property- net 28,71¢ 18,54(
Total plant and propert 1,318,40! 1,204,41.
Other investment 60,61¢ 73,84¢
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel 5,24¢ 4,70¢
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncolldetib
accounts of $2,434 in 2004 and $1,763 in 2 60,67¢ 48,49¢
Accrued unbilled revent 64,40 59,10¢
Inventories of gas, materials and supp 66,477 50,85¢
Income tax receivabl 15,97( 8,98¢
Prepayments and other current as 24,34¢ 23,67t
Total current asse 237,11 195,83«
Regulatory asset
Income tax ass¢ 64,73¢ 63,44¢
Deferred gas costs receival 9,551 -
Unamortized costs on debt redempti 7,332 7,80z
Other 3,321 6,02(
Total regulatory asse 84,93¢ 77,272
Other asset:
Fair value of no-trading derivative: 16,39¢ 23,88t
Other 14,71¢ 10,13(
Total other asse! 31,117 34,01t
Total asset $1,732,19' $1,585,37!

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Thousands (December 3 2004 2003

Capitalization and liabilities
Capitalization

Common stocl $ 8723 $ 82,13
Premium on common stot 300,03 255,87
Earnings invested in the busine 183,93: 170,05:
Unearned stock compensati (862) (729
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li (1,818 (1,016

Total common stock equit 568,51° 506,31t
Long-term deb 484,02 500,31¢

Total capitalizatior 1,052,54. 1,006,63!

Current liabilities:

Notes payabli 102,50( 85,20(
Accounts payabl 102,47¢ 86,02¢
Long-term debt due within one ye 15,00( -
Taxes accrue 10,24: 8,60~
Interest accrue 2,891 2,99¢
Other current and accrued liabiliti 34,16¢ 31,58¢

Total current liabilities 267,28! 214,42

Regulatory liabilities

Accrued asset removal co 153,25¢ 135,63¢
Customer advance 1,52¢ 1,564
Deferred gas costs payal - 5,62
Unrealized gain on ne«trading derivative: 10,91 23,88t

Total regulatory liabilities 165,69¢ 166,71«

Other liabilities:

Deferred income taxe 210,71! 171,79
Deferred investment tax cred 6,02t 6,94¢
Fair value of no-trading derivative: 5,48 -
Other 24,44( 18,86

Total other liabilities 246,66 197,60¢

Commitments and contingencies (see Note - -

Total capitalization and liabilitie $1,732,19'  $1,585,37!

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Commor Accumulated
Earnings Unearned Other Total
Stock Invested in Stock Comprehensiv  Shareholders’
and the Busines Compensatic Comprehensive

Thousands Premiun Income (Loss) Equity Income

Balance at Dec. 31, 20( $320,58¢ $ 147,95 $ (372 (375, $ 467,78
Net Income - 43,79 - - 43,79 % 43,79:

Minimum pension liability
adjustmen- net of tax - - - (2,936 (2,936 (2,936
Change in unrealized loss
from price risk
management activities -
net of tax - - - 227 227 227
Purchases of restricted stc - - (891 - (891)
Restricted stock amortizatio - - 552 - 552
Cash dividends pait - - - - -
Redeemable preferred
and
preference stoc - (2,579 - - (2,579
Common stocl - (32,024 - - (32,024
Issuance of common sto 6,53 - - - 6,53
Conversion of debenturi 1,932 - - - 1,93
Common stock expen: - 3) - - )

Balance at Dec. 31, 20( 329,05: 157,13t (711 (3,084 482,39: $ 41,08
Net Income - 45,98: - - 4598: $ 45,98
Minimum pension liability

adjustmen- net of tax - - - 2,06¢ 2,06¢ 2,06¢
Purchases of restricted stc - - (328 - (328
Restricted stock amortizatio - - 31C - 31C
Cash dividends pait

Redeemable preferred

stock - (392 - - (392
Common stocl - (32,655 - - (32,655
Tax benefits from employee

stock option plat 401 - - - 401
Issuance of common sto 7,93( - - - 7,93(
Conversion of debenturi 62€ - - - 62€
Common stock expent: - (19) - - (19)

Balance at Dec. 31, 20( 338,00t 170,05: (729 (1,016 506,31¢ $ 48,05
Net Income - 50,57: - - 50,57: % 50,57:
Minimum pension liability

adjustmen- net of tax - - - (802 (802) (802)
Purchases of restricted stc (55) (51) (431 (537,
Restricted stock amortizatio - - 29¢ - 29¢
Cash dividends pait
Common stocl - (35,105 - - (35,105
Tax benefits from employee
stock option plat 872 - - - 872
Issuance of common sto 47,14¢ - - - 47,14¢
Conversion of debenturi 1,292 - - - 1,29
Common stock expent: - (1,537 - - (1,537
Balance at Dec. 31, 20( $387,26! $ 183,93 $ (862 (1,818 $ 56851 $ 49,77(




See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Thousands (year ended December 2004 2003 2002
Operating activities
Net income $ 50,57: $ 45,98: $ 43,79:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praViolg operations:
Depreciation and amortizatic 57,37: 54,24¢ 52,09(
Loss for PGE acquisition costs - - 13,87:
Minimum pension liability adjustment (802 2,06¢ (2,936
Deferred income taxes and investment tax cre 36,71 13,71: 10,94«
Undistributed earnings from equity investments (181, 474, (988,
Allowance for funds used during construction (1,690 (1,734 (550,
Deferred gas cos- net (15,178 (5,008 54¢€
Contribution to Company-sponsored pension plan (8,261 -
Other 1,244 (6,978 3,32¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivabl- net of allowance for uncollectible accou (12,176 (4,027 18,88¢
Accrued unbilled revenue (5,292 (15,040 13,68(
Inventories of gas, materials and supplies (15,618 7,171 (8,693
Income tax receivabl (6,984 26€ (9,252,
Prepayments and other current assets 7,457 3,98¢ (307,
Accounts payable 16,44¢ 11,59: 3,73¢
Accrued interest and tax 1,53¢ 87¢ (15,473
Other current and accrued liabilities 2,57¢ 1,54¢ 1,64¢
Cash provided by operating activities 107,73¢ 108,19: 124,32:
Investing activities:
Acquisition and construction of utility plant asset (141,485 (124,660 (79,530
Investment in no-utility property (10,568 (2,563 (2,629
PGE acquisition costs - - (4,316
Proceeds from (investment in) life insurance - net 17,57¢ (1,387 (496,
Other investment (1,291, 56C 2,34¢
Cash used in investing activities (135,769 (128,050 (84,623
Financing activities
Common stock issued 48,15 8,34¢ 6,872
Restricted stock purchased (537, (328, (891
Restricted stock amortizatic 29¢ 31C 552
Redeemable preferred and preference stock retired - (8,428 (25,750
Long-term debt issued - 90,00( 90,00(
Long-term debt retired - (55,000 (40,500
Change in sho-term debt 17,30( 15,39¢ (38,489
Cash dividend payments:
Redeemable preferred and preference stock - (392; (2,579
Common stocl (35,105 (32,655 (32,024
Common stock expense (1,537 (19) )
Cash provided by (used in) financing activit 28,57: 17,23t (42,812
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 542 (2,622, (3,112
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 4,70¢€ 7,32¢ 10,44(
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 5,24¢ $ 4,70¢ $ 7,32¢
| | I
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest and preferred dividends $ 36,06 $ 35,21( $ 34,64(
Income taxe: $ 2,50( $  13,94( $ 33,47¢
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash financing activities
Conversion to common stock:
7 1/ 4 % Series of Convertible Debentures $ 1,292 $ 62€ $ 1,932

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

Thousands, except share amounts (Decembe 2004 2003
Common stock equity
Common stock - par value $3 6 per share, authorized 60,000,000 shares: outsgdin $  87,23! $ 8213
2004, 27,546,720 shares; 2003, 25,938,002 s
Premium on common stou 300,03« 255,87:
Earnings invested in the busine 183,93. 170,05:
Unearned compensatit (862 (729
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li (1,818 (1,016
Total common stock equit 568,51 54% 506,31¢ 50%
Long-term debt
Mediurr-Term Notes
First Mortgage Bonds
6.340% Series B due 20 5,00( 5,00
6.380% Series B due 20 5,00( 5,00
6.450% Series B due 20 5,00( 5,00(
6.050% Series B due 20 8,00( 8,00(
6.310% Series B due 20 20,00( 20,00(
6.800% Series B due 20 9,50( 9,50(
6.500% Series B due 20 5,00( 5,00(
4.110% Series B due 20. 10,00( 10,00(
7.450% Series B due 20 25,00( 25,00(
6.665% Series B due 20 10,00( 10,00(
7.130% Series B due 20 40,00( 40,00(
8.260% Series B due 20 10,00( 10,00(
7.000% Series B due 20 40,00( 40,00(
6.600% Series B due 20 22,00( 22,00(
8.310% Series B due 20 10,00( 10,00(
7.630% Series B due 20 20,00( 20,00(
9.050% Series A due 20:. 10,00( 10,00(
5.620% Series B due 20 40,00( 40,00(
7.720% Series B due 20 20,00( 20,00(
6.520% Series B due 20 10,00( 10,00(
7.050% Series B due 20 20,00( 20,00(
7.000% Series B due 20: 20,00( 20,00(
6.650% Series B due 20 20,00( 20,00(
6.650% Series B due 20 10,00( 10,00(
7.740% Series B due 20: 20,00( 20,00(
7.850% Series B due 20 10,00( 10,00(
5.820% Series B due 20 30,00( 30,00(
5.660% Series B due 20 40,00( 40,00(
Convertible Debenture
7 1/ 4% Series due 2012 4,527 5,81¢
499,02 500,31¢
Less loni-term debt due within one ye 15,00( -
Total lon¢-term debt 484,02° 46% 500,31¢ 50%
Total capitalizatior $ 1,052,54. 100% $ 1,006,63" 100%

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQCIES:

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tu®ants of the regulated parent company, NorthiNastiral Gas Company (NW
Natural), and its non-regulated wholly-owned suiasids:

. NNG Financial Corporation (Financial Corporatioand its wholh-owned subsidiaries
. Northwest Energy Corporation (Northwest Energy)l @s wholly-owned subsidiary

Together these businesses are referred to heréfiie &8ompany.” In this report, the term “utility$ used to describe the regulated
gas distribution business of the Company and ttm taon-utility” is used to describe the interstgees storage business and other
non-regulated activities (see Note 2). Intercompacgounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Investments in corporate joint ventures and pastrips in which the Company’s ownership intere&iOigercent or less and over
which the Company does not exercise control arewatted for by the equity method or the cost meitse¢ Note 9).

Certain amounts from prior years have been refledso conform, for comparison purposes, with ¢herent financial statement
presentation. These reclassifications had no impagtrior year consolidated results of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principlethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect reported amounts in the consolidfiteshcial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual amounts could diffemfthose estimates, and changes would be reporfetuire periods.
Management believes that the estimates and assamaptsed are reasonable.

Industry Regulation

The Company'’s principal business is the distributié natural gas, which is regulated by the Pubtitity Commission of Oregon
(OPUC) and the Washington Utilities and TranspataCommission (WUTC). Accounting records and pas conform to the

requirements and uniform system of accounts piesdrby these regulatory authorities in accordaritie Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accountingtfoe Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” NWtital's utility business

segment is authorized by the OPUC and the WUTGuto a reasonable return on invested capital.

In applying SFAS No. 71, NW Natural capitalizestaar costs and revenues as regulatory assetsabilities pursuant to orders of
the OPUC or WUTC in general rate or expense ddfprozeedings, to provide for recovery of revenaesxpenses from, or
refunds to,
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utility customers in future periods, including @auma or a carrying charge. At Dec. 31, 2004 and32®@ amounts deferred as
regulatory assets and liabilities were net liaieditof $80.8 million and $89.4 million, respectivelhe net amounts recognized at
Dec. 31, 2004 and 2003 include $153.2 million ah85356 million, respectively, of accumulated remos@dts, which have been
included in regulatory liabilities, in accordancgSFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Removal ightions.” See “New
Accounting Standards—Adopted Standards,” below.

NW Natural believes that continued application BAS No. 71 for its regulated activities is apprapgiand consistent with the
current regulatory environment, and that all ofégulated assets and liabilities at Dec. 31, 2002003 are recoverable or
refundable through future utility rates. NW Natuaédo believes that it will continue to be ableeton a reasonable rate of return
carrying charge on its regulated assets, net aflaggry liabilities. If NW Natural should determitigat all or a portion of these
regulatory assets or liabilities no longer meetdtiteria for continued application of SFAS No. Tien it would be required to wri
off the net unrecoverable balances against earnings

New Accounting Standarc

Adopted Standards

Asset Retirement Obligations. Effective Jan. 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFASLKB, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 requires the recognitidan Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) for leghligations associated with
the retirement of tangible long-lived assets, ideig the recording of fair value of the liabilitfreasonably estimable, for an ARO
in the period in which it is incurred. The ARO liilly is recorded and the cost is capitalized ag phthe carrying amount of the
related longived asset. Over time, the liability is accretedts present value each period and the capitatipstis depreciated ov
the useful life of the related asset. The Compadyndt have any material legal obligations assedatith the retirement of its
tangible long-lived assets, except for certain ss@h indefinite system lives for which the Comgacannot estimate the ARO
because the settlement date is indeterminableCbingpany’s adoption of SFAS No. 143 resulted inlar@e sheet reclassification
of asset removal cost obligations from accumuldggateciation and amortization to regulatory lidigs. The adoption of SFAS N
143 and the reclassification of asset removal gbkgations had no material impact on the Compafigancial condition, results of
operations or cash flows (see “Plant and Propebgléw, for a discussion of the Company’s policyasset removal costs).

Financial I nstrumentswith Equity and Debt Characteristics. Effective July 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS1$0,
“Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments wiftharacteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” A% No. 150 establishes
standards for how an issuer classifies and measuitssfinancial statements certain financial ingtents with characteristics of
both liabilities and equity. SFAS No. 150 requiagsissuer to classify a financial instrument agility if that financial instrument
embodies an obligation of the issuer. The adomfd®FAS No. 150 resulted in the Company’s reclgsif dividends of $0.2
million after July 1, 2003 on its redeemable prefdrstock as interest expense. The Company redeigsmednaining shares of
preferred stock outstanding during the fourth qerasf 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did nateha material impact on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operasiar cash flows.
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Variable I nterest Entities. In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolard (FASB) revised FASB Interpretation No.
(FIN) 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Eigg” (FIN 46R), to clarify the application of Accoting Research Bulletin No. 51,
“Consolidated Financial Statements.” FIN 46R pregicdditional guidance for the identification andsolidation of variable
interest entities (VIES), and for financial repogiby enterprises involved with VIEs. The Compadged the original provisions
of FIN 46 during 2003, and adopted the additionadignce of FIN 46R in 2004. The Company has cesdginty investments that
are variable interests and some of these entiteepatentially VIEs. However, because the Compampot the primary beneficiary,
it is not required to consolidate the VIEs. The @amy’s variable interests primarily consist of lied liability interests with
investments in alternative energy projects, lowime housing and other real estate. These investmanme entered into between
the years 1988 and 2000 and have been accountadder the equity method or cost method. The Cogipamaximum exposure
to loss for these investments is $6.2 million at&aber 31, 2004, an amount that represents the &origpcurrent investment
balance minus its minimum net realizable value. Thenpany’s investment risk is thus limited becaaissuch investments are
non-recourse to the Company. The adoption of FIR Bd no material impact on the Company’s finanoialdition, results of
operations or cash flows.

Medicare Prescription Drug, |mprovement and Modernization Act. In May 2004, the FASB issued Staff Position (FSB) NAS
106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements &eldo the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvensa Modernization Act

of 2003,” (the Act). FSP No. FAS 106-2 providesdafie guidance on accounting for the effects of & for employers that
sponsor postretirement health care plans that gegwiescription drug benefits. FSP No. FAS 106s2 atquires certain disclosures
regarding the effects of a federal subsidy providgthe Act.

Effective July 1, 2004, the Company adopted FSP196-2 with no material impact on the Company’shdémws, accumulated
postretirement benefit obligations or net periquistretirement benefit costs. Based on currentaggiel and existing plan design,
the Company, with input from its actuary, deternditieat the prescription drug benefit provided by @ompany’s postretirement
benefit plan did not qualify it for a federal suthsi While the Company provides certain prescriptiong benefits to retirees, it was
determined that the Company’s contributions woudddss than 40 percent of the plan’s expected slawst, and therefore is not
eligible for the subsidy in 2006, the first yeae ubsidy is available. The Company will continmegevaluate its plan contributio
and claims experience to determine whether the gpiatifies for the federal subsidy in future years.

Other Than Temporary I mpairments. In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (Et&#fied EITF No. 03-1, “The

Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment andiipglication to Certain Investments” (EITF No. 03-EJTF No. 03-1

provides guidance for evaluating whether an investnis impaired, whether the impairment is othenttemporary, and the
measurement of such impairment. The guidance atdodes accounting considerations subsequent tetognition of an other-
than-temporary impairment and requires certainlaésces in annual financial statements about uizexhlosses that have not been
recognized as other-than-temporary impairments.aboption of EITF 03-1, which was effective for ogjing periods beginning
after June 15, 2004, had no material impact orCvapany’s financial condition, results of operasi@r cash flows.
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Income Taxes. In December 2004, the FASB issued staff positid@RFFSP SFAS No. 109-1, to provide guidance on the
application of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Incorhaxes,” to the provisions within the American J@gation Act of 2004 (the
Jobs Act) that provides a tax deduction on qualifpeoduction activities. The Jobs Act became effeadn Oct. 23, 2004 and
provides for a tax deduction of up to nine percairiten fully phased-in) of the lesser of (a) “quialif production activities income,”
as defined in the Jobs Act, or (b) taxable incoafe( the deduction for the utilization of any neerating loss carryforwards). The
Company has determined that application of theipiaws within the Jobs Act will not have a matemapact on the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations or céskwvs.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Inventory Costs. In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15Néitory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chafter
SFAS No. 151 amends the guidance on inventoryritd require that abnormal amounts of idle fac#ikpense, freight, handling
costs and wasted material be charged to curreiddpexpense rather than capitalized as inventosysc®FAS No. 151 also requi
that allocation of fixed production overheads te tlosts of conversion be based on the normal dgpEdhe production facilities.
SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs inewarduring fiscal years beginning after June 19520°he Company is evaluating
the impact this new standard may have on its firmhstatements, but it is expected that its impletagon will not have a material
impact upon the Company’s financial condition, tesaf operations or cash flows.

Share Based Payments. In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1239eeh2004), “Share Based Payment” (SFAS No.
123R), that requires companies to expense thediie of employee stock options and similar awdddgler SFAS No. 123R, sh:
based payment awards will be measured at fair vaiufie date of grant based on the estimated nudaitzavards expected to vest.
The estimated fair value will be recognized as ceng@ation expense over the period an employee isreglto provide service in
exchange for the award, usually referred to avéiséing period. The expense would be adjusteddrah forfeitures that occur
before vesting, but would not be adjusted for awahat expire or terminate after vesting. The Campa evaluating different
option-pricing models to determine the most apgetemeasure of fair value for its share based payawards under the new
standard. Disclosures of estimated fair value amdpensation expense using the Black-Scholes optioing model, and its
corresponding impact on the financial statemestpravided in Note 4. The Company also is evalgdtire effect of the adoption
and implementation of SFAS No. 123R, which is nqiexted to have a material impact on the Compdineascial condition,
results of operations or cash flows. SFAS No. 1&3&fective for interim or annual reporting persdgeginning after June 15, 20
The Company expects to adopt the provisions of SNASL23R in the first quarter of 2005.

Non-monetary Transactions. Also in December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No, 158changes of Nonmonetary Assets, an
amendment of Accounting Principles Board (APB) QmirNo. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactidi®-AS No. 153
redefines the types of nonmonetary exchangeséhaire fair value measurement. SFAS No. 153 icgffe for nonmonetary
transactions entered into on or after July 1, 200& Company is evaluating the impact of this statet, but adoption of this new
accounting standard in 2005 is not expected to hawaterial impact on the Company’s financial ctodi results of operations or
cash flows.
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Plant and Property

Plant and property is stated at cost, includingtamaterials and overhead (see Note 9). The dastlity plant and interstate
storage includes an allowance for funds used dwd@mgtruction in construction overhead to repretfennet cost of borrowed fur
used for construction purposes (see “Allowancd=iamds Used During Construction,” below).

NW Natural’s provision for depreciation of utiliproperty is computed under the straight-line, afgephethod in accordance with
independent engineering studies and as approveegoyatory authorities. The weighted average degtiea rate was
approximately 3.4 percent for the year ended D&c2804 and 3.5 percent for each of the years 2003002. The depreciation
rate reflects the approximate economic life ofulikty property.

Effective Jan. 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFASINB, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligatidn&mong other things,
SFAS No. 143 requires that future asset retireroests (removal costs) that meet the requiremen&-=6fS No. 71, as amended :
supplemented, be classified as a regulatory ligbiln accordance with long-standing industry piagtthe Company accrues for
future removal costs on many long-lived assetsutiinca charge to depreciation expense allowed @sr&trior to the adoption of
SFAS No. 143, the resulting regulatory liabilitigere recognized as accruals to accumulated depogtidt the time when
removal costs were incurred, accumulated depreciatias charged with the costs of removal and tlodk lsost of the asset being
retired. At Dec. 31, 2004 and 2003, the Companggsized accrued asset removal costs of $153.2omidind $135.6 million,
respectively, through depreciation expense fronumedated depreciation and amortization. The Comjsagstimate of
accumulated removal costs was based on rates itsimgst recent depreciation study. The Companlaeiitinue to accrue future
asset removal costs through depreciation experigeaveorresponding credit to regulatory liabiltie accrued asset removal costs.
When the Company retires depreciable utility pkamd equipment, it charges the associated origostbdo accumulated
depreciation and amortization, and any related x@ingosts incurred are charged to regulatory ligds — accrued asset removal
costs. No gain or loss is recognized upon norntakraent. In the rate setting process, the accassét removal costs are treated as
a reduction to the net rate base.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

Certain additions to utility plant include an allamce for funds used during construction (AFUDC)IUEFC represents the cost of
funds borrowed during construction and is calculatsing actual commercial paper interest ratesoimercial paper borrowings
are less than the total costs of construction vimgkogress, then a composite rate of interestlateat, shown as a reduction to
interest charges, and a return on equity fundsyshas other income, is used to compute AFUDC. Wakh is not realized
currently from AFUDC, it is realized in future ysahrough increased revenues from rate recoveuytirgg from higher rate base
and higher depreciation expense. NW Natural's caitpdAFUDC rates were 3.0 percent in 2004, 4.5qmrin 2003 and 2.8
percent in 2002.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egslvalents include cash on hand and highly ligerdporary investments with
original maturity dates of three months or less.
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Revenue Recognition

Utility revenues, derived primarily from the saledatransportation of natural gas, are recognizeenvthe gas is delivered to and
received by the customer. Revenues include accioatgs delivered but not yet billed to custonteased on estimates of gas
deliveries from meter reading dates to month embi{led revenues). Unbilled revenues are depengieon a number of factors tt
require management judgment, including total gasipts and deliveries, customer use and weathdvillbleh revenues are reversed
the following month when actual billings occur. TBempany’s accrued unbilled revenues at Dec. 304 20id 2003 were $64.4
million and $59.1 million, respectively.

Non-utility revenues, derived primarily from gasrstge services, are recognized upon delivery oféineice to customers.
Revenues from optimization of excess storage angsportation capacity are recognized over theofiine contract for guaranteed
amounts under the contract, or are recognizedegsdie earned for amounts above the guaranteed lwaked on estimates provi
by the independent energy marketing company (s¢e o

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for UncollectiBlzounts

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounte tuNW Natural for gas sales and transportatioviees to residential,
commercial and industrial customers, plus amouuésfdr interstate gas storage services and otrametfdneous receivables. With
respect to these trade receivables, the Compaaplisstes an allowance for uncollectible accountey@nce) based on the aging
receivables, its collection experience of pastatmunts on payment plans, and historical trendgritd-offs as a percent of
revenues. With respect to large individual custoreeeivables, a specific allowance is establisimebaalded to the general
allowance when amounts are identified as unlikelpe recovered. Inactive accounts are written-géfirast the allowance after 120
days past due or when deemed to be uncollectilifeerBnces between the Company’s estimated allowamd actual write-offs
will occur based on changes in general economiditions, customer credit issues and the level tfinahgas prices, but these
differences are not currently expected to have @rahimpact on the Company’s financial conditmmresults of operation.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of natural gastorage, are stated at the moving average cogul&ery treatment of gas
inventories provides full recovery in rates for ttedue of gas inventory at the moving average ddsbther inventories are statec
the lower of average cost or net realizable value.

Derivatives Policy

NW Natural’s Derivatives Policy sets forth the gelides for using selected financial derivative prets to support prudent risk
management strategies within designated param@teesDerivatives Policy allows for the use of datives to manage natural gas
commodity prices related to natural gas purchdeesign currency prices related to gas purchasemwitmments from Canada, oil or
propane commodity prices related to gas salesrandportation services under rate schedules paggettier commodities, and
interest rates related to long-term debt matuninigss than five years or expected to be issuéatume periods. NW Natural's
objective for using derivatives is to decreasevitiatility of earnings and cash flows associatethwhanges in commodity prices,
foreign currency prices and interest rates. Theofise
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derivatives is permitted only after the commoditice, exchange rate, and interest rate exposusesheen identified, are
determined to exceed acceptable tolerance levdlsianconsidered to be unavoidable because theweasssary to support normal
business activities (see Note 11). The DerivatRekcy is intended to prevent speculative risk. N\atural does not enter into
derivative instruments for trading purposes anéklek that any increase in market risk createddgig derivatives should be
offset by the exposures they modify.

In accounting for derivative activities, the Compapplies SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivativestruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accougtfor Certain Derivative Instruments and Certairdgiag Activities,” and
SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Dérednstruments and Hedging Activities,” (colleatly referred to as SFAS
No. 133). SFAS No. 133 requires that the Companggsize derivatives as either assets or liabiliieshe balance sheet and
measure those instruments at fair value. SFAS B8 .also requires that changes in the fair value @érivative be recognized
currently in earnings unless specific hedge acéongmtiteria are met. SFAS No. 133 provides an ptioa for contracts intended
for normal purchase and normal sale, other thamaamd¢ial instrument or derivative instrument forighhphysical delivery is
probable. Many of the Comparsygas supply and transportation contracts are aterévinstruments as defined under SFAS No.
but qualify for the normal purchase and normal saleeption.

NW Natural designates its derivatives as fair valueash flow hedges based upon the criteria éshatnl by SFAS No. 133. For fi
value hedges, the gain or loss is recognized inirgs in the period of change. For cash flow hedtieseffective portion of the
gain or loss is initially reported in accumulatédey comprehensive income (OCI), unless the devigas subject to deferral under
NW Natural’s regulated tariffs with the OPUC or W&JTC. The ineffective portion of the gain or ldesa cash flow hedge is
recognized in current earnings, but only to theeixthat the amount is not covered under NW Nagurafulatory deferral
mechanisms. Effectiveness is measured by compehiagges in cash flows of the hedged item to gaitha@sses on derivative
instruments.

NW Natural’s primary hedging activities, consistioignatural gas commodity price and foreign curyeexchange rate hedges, are
principally accounted for as cash flow hedges urgfeAS No. 133 and are subject to regulatory ddfender SFAS No. 71.
Unrealized gains and losses from mark-to-marketat&ns of these contracts are not recognizedrireotiincome but are reported
as derivative assets or liabilities and offset lmpaesponding deferred account balance includeemimegulatory liabilities” or
“regulatory assets.” Due to their regulatory dedbtreatment, effective portions of changes infdievalue of these derivatives are
not recorded in OCI but are recognized as a regylasset or liability.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxebifider SFAS No. 109,
the Company recognizes deferred income taxeslfteraporary differences between the financial stetiet and tax basis of assets
and liabilities at current income tax rates. Deddrtax liabilities and assets reflect the expefitagte tax consequences, based on
enacted tax law, of temporary differences betwbertdax basis of assets and liabilities and thearftial reporting amounts (see
Note 8).

SFAS No. 109 also requires recognition of the aolditl deferred income tax assets and liabilitiesémporary differences where
regulators prohibit deferred income tax treatment f
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ratemaking purposes. Consistent with rate and adtt@uorders of regulatory authorities, deferrecbime taxes are not currently
collected for those temporary income tax differeratere the prescribed regulatory accounting metlkdadnot provide for current
recovery in rates. NW Natural has recorded a réguldax asset for amounts pending recovery frostamers in future rates,
equivalent to $64.7 million and $63.4 million atd&1, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These amoueatgranarily based on
differences between the book and tax bases oftifief plant in service.

Investment tax credits on utility plant additiomsldeveraged leases, which reduce income taxedbfemyae deferred for financial
statement purposes and are amortized over theflifee related plant or lease. Investment and gn@egcredits generated by non-
regulated subsidiaries are amortized over a perfiahe to five years.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) consists of interest incaam, on sale of assets, investment income of [Einh@orporation, the costs
incurred in connection with the Company’s efforetmuire Portland General Electric Company (PG&nfEnron Corp. and other
miscellaneous income from merchandise sales, reatses and other items.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed based eveighted average number of common shares outsguedich year. Diluted
earnings per share reflect the potential effecth®fconversion of convertible debentures and Xleecise of stock options. Diluted
earnings per share are calculated as follows:

Thousands, except per share amo 2004 2003 2002
Net income $50,57: $45,98: $43,79:
Redeemable preferred and preference stock dividsqdrement: - 294 2,28(
Earnings applicable to common st¢- basic 50,57: 45,68¢ 41,51
Debenture interest less ta 20C 257 28t
Earnings applicable to common stc- diluted $50,77:  $45,94¢  $41,79;
Average common shares outstanc- basic 27,01¢ 25,74 25,43:
Stock options 40 28 59
Convertible debenture 227 292 324
Average common shares outstanc- diluted 27,28: 26,06 25,81«
Earnings per share of common st basic $ 187 $ 177 $ 1l.6:
Earnings per share of common st diluted $ 18 $ 17¢ $ 1.6z

For the years ended Dec. 31, 2004, 2003 and 20028@0 shares, 77,500 shares and 84,000 shanesctiesly, representing the
number of stock options the exercise prices forclviwiere greater than the average market pricahéo€ompany’s common stock
for such years, were excluded from the calculatibdiluted earnings per share because the effestantidilutive.
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StockBased Compensation

2.

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25, “AccountiogStock Issued to Employees,” to account fositeck-based
compensation plans. Accordingly, the Company da¢setognize compensation expense for the fairevaftts stock option
grants. Instead, the Company has elected to cantising the intrinsic value method of accountingstock options rather than
adopting the fair value method of accounting. Hogrethe Company does recognize compensation expenge fair value of
stock awards granted under its Long-Term Incerilae and the Non-Employee Directors Stock Comp@rs&an in the period
when the shares are earned (see “New Accountingd&tds—Recent Accounting Pronouncements—Share Basgdents,”
above, and Note 4).

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS ANDESSMENT INFORMATION:

At Dec. 31, 2004, the Company had two direct, whollvned subsidiaries, Financial Corporation andthiest Energy. Northwest
Energy was formed in 2001 to serve as the holdompany for NW Natural and PGE if the acquisitiorP@E had been complete
Since the acquisition of PGE was terminated, NogsiviEnergy has remained a non-active subsidiattyeo€ompany.

The Company’s core business segment, Local Gasigon (LDC), involves the distribution and saEnatural gas. The Local
Gas Distribution segment is also referred to asukikty”. Another segment, Interstate Gas Storaggpresents natural gas storage
services provided to interstate customers, inclyidisset optimization services under a contract antindependent energy
marketing company. The remaining business segr@hgr, primarily consists of non-regulated investitsen alternative energy
projects in California (see “Financial Corporatibipelow), a Boeing 737-300 aircraft leased to Coerital Airlines, low-income
housing in Portland, Oregon and Northwest Enerliyiged activities (see Note 9).

Interstate Gas Storage

Interstate gas storage services are provided tsystem interstate customers using Company-owrmedgs capacity that has been
developed in advance of core utility customerssiftential, commercial and industrial firm) requiremts. NW Natural retains 80
percent of the income before tax from gas storagéces and credits the remaining 20 percent tefarced regulatory account for
sharing with its core utility customers. For eaélhe years ended Dec. 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002ptisiness segment derived a
majority of its revenues from fewer than five custs. The largest of these customers is served andeg-term contract.

Results for the interstate gas storage segmentralkale revenues, net of amounts shared with gbiity customers, from a
contract with an independent energy marketing camplaat optimizes the use of NW Natural’'s assetsiiyaging in trading
activities using temporarily unused portions ofustream pipeline transportation capacity andst@sge capacity. In Oregon, N
Natural retains 80 percent of the pre-tax incornenfthe optimization of storage and pipeline tramgtimn capacity when the costs
of such capacity have not been included in coféyutates, and 33 percent of the pre-tax inconsenfsuch capacity when the costs
have been included in core utility rates. The reving 20 percent and 67 percent, respectively, @dited to a deferred regulatory
account for distribution to NW Natural’s core ugilicustomers. NW Natural has a similar sharing magm in Washington for
revenue derived from interstate storage servicdghard party optimization services.
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Financial Corporation

Financial Corporation has several financial invesits, including investments as a limited partnesdlar electric generating
systems, windpower electric generating projectslawdincome housing projects. Financial Corpordsdntal assets were $7.6
million and $8.0 million at Dec. 31, 2004 and 2083pectively.

On Jan. 31, 2005 Financial Corporation sold itstBohpartnership interests in three solar elegfeicerating systems for
approximately $3 million, which resulted in a $@nfllion write-down of these systems in the fourtracter of 2004. These systems
are located in the Mojave Desert in California. M&tural invested in the projects between 1986 &&B1Financial Corporation’s
ownership interests ranged from 4.0 percent t@B&r8ent.

Segment Information Summary

The following table presents summary financial infation about the reportable segments for 20043 20@ 2002. Inter-segment
transactions are insignificant.

Interstate

Thousand: Utility Gas Storac Other Total
2004

Net operating revenut $ 301,76¢ $ 6,42: $ 16¢€ $ 308,36(
Depreciation and amortizatic 56,89¢ 472 - 57,37:
Other operating expens 140,08¢ 652 222 140,96
Income (loss) from operatiol 104,78: 5,29¢ (54) 110,02¢
Income from financial investmen 2,85¢ - 181 3,03¢
Net income 47,09( 2,88( 60z 50,57:
Total assets at Dec. 31, 2C 1,688,68: 28,36! 15,14¢ 1,732,19!
2003

Net operating revenut $ 278,85t $ 9,03¢ $ 174 $ 288,06t
Depreciation and amortizatic 53,79¢ 451 - 54,24¢
Other operating expens 130,61¢ 804 122 131,54!
Income from operatior 94,43¢ 7,781 52 102,27
Income from financial investmen 3,40¢ - 474 3,88(
Net income 40,91 4,312 75¢ 45,98:
Total assets at Dec. 31, 2C 1,551,871 19,03¢ 14,52¢ 1,585,37!
2002

Net operating revenut $ 279,41 $ 7,944 $ 18€ $ 287,54«
Depreciation and amortizatic 51,69:¢ 39¢€ 1 52,09(
Other operating expens 118,15¢ 962 78 119,19¢
Income from operatior 109,56! 6,58¢ 107 116,25¢
Income from financial investmen 1,39(C - 98¢ 2,37¢
Loss provision for PGE transaction ca - - (8,414 (8,414
Net income (loss 47,28( 3,64¢ (7,134 43,79:
Total assets at Dec. 31, 20 1,432,77 16,40: 18,09° 1,467,27
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3. CAPITAL STOCK:

Common Stock

At Dec. 31, 2004, NW Natural had reserved 106,688es of common stock for issuance under the Erepl@tock Purchase Plan,
288,155 shares for future conversions of itd 4% Convertible Debentures, 232,827 shares und®ividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan, 1,659,470 shares under itatResstock Option Plan (see Note 4), and 3,000s06@@es under the
Shareholder Rights Plan.

In April 2004, the Company issued and sold 1,290 $ltares of its common stock in an underwritteripwffering and used the
net proceeds of $38.5 million from the offeringrpairily to reduce short-term indebtedness and td,fimpart, NW Natural’s utility
construction program.

Redeemable Preferred Stock

On Nov. 14, 2003, NW Natural redeemed all of thaming shares of its $7.125 Series of RedeemahklefPed Stock with an
aggregate stated value of $7.5 million, at a redempprice equivalent to 102.375 percent with pestefrom sales of commercial
paper. The Company re-financed the commercial pajibrthe sale of new long-term debt in the fougtharter of 2003. The early

redemption premium was recognized as an unamortiasdpursuant to SFAS No. 71 and is being amattiaeexpense over the |
of the new debt.

Redeemable Preference Stock

On Dec. 31, 2002, NW Natural redeemed all 250,0@0es of its $6.95 Series of Redeemable Prefeigtoak with proceeds from
the sale of commercial paper.

Stock Repurchase Program

NW Natural’'s Board of Directors approved a stogiurehase program in 2000 to purchase up to 2 miiltares, or up to $35
million in value, of NW Natural’'s common stock inet open market or through privately negotiatedsiaations. The repurchase
program has been extended through May 2005. N@sheere repurchased in 2003 or 2004. Since thegog inception, the
Company has repurchased 355,400 shares of comwanaita total cost of $8.2 million.

Restated Stock Option Plan

In May 2002, the shareholders approved an amendiméiné Restated Stock Option Plan that increasedoatal number of shares
authorized for option grants from 1,200,000 to B,800 shares. At Dec. 31, 2004, options on 1,2ZBsb@res were available for
grant and options on 431,470 shares were outstgndin
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The following table shows the changes in the nunabshares of NW Natural’'s capital stock and thensium on common stock for
the years 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Share Premium ol
Redeemab Redeemab
common
Common preference preferred stock
stock stock stock (thousands
Balance, Dec. 31, 2001 25,228,07. 250,00 90,00 $ 240,69
Sales to employet 42,86: - - 74¢
Sales to stockholde 157,28t - - 3,85¢
Exercise of stock optior- net 61,02( - - 1,10t
Conversion of convertible debentures to
common 97,06¢ - - 1,62¢
Sinking fund purchase - - (7,500 -
Redemptior - (250,000 - -
Balance, Dec. 31, 20( 25,586,31 - 82,50( 248,02¢
Sales to employet 14,17¢ - - 42F
Sales to stockholde 178,71. - - 4,347
Exercise of stock optior- net 127,35 - - 2,54¢
Conversion of convertible debentures to comt 31,44: - - 52€
Sinking fund purchase - - (7,500 -
Early redemptiot - - (75,000 -
Balance, Dec. 31, 20( 25,938,00 - - 255,87
Sales to publi 1,290,00! - - 35,90¢
Sales to employet 27,54 - - 60%
Sales to stockholde 157,12: - - 4,32:
Exercise of stock optior- net 73,64¢ - - 2,28¢
Conversion of convertible debentures to comt 64,90¢ - - 1,08¢
Repurchas (4,500 - - (41)
Balance, Dec. 31, 20( 27,546,72 - - $ 300,03

4. STOCKBASED COMPENSATION:

NW Natural has the following stock-based compensggpians: the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP); Bestated Stock Option
Plan (Restated SOP); the Employee Stock Purchase(PSPP); and the Non-Employee Directors Stock ggmsation Plan
(NEDSCP). These plans are designed to promote stonkrship in NW Natural by employees and officand, in the case of the
NEDSCP, by non-employee directors.

Long-Term Incentive Plan . The LTIP is intended to provide a flexible, compieté compensation program for eligible officers. An
aggregate of 500,000 shares of common stock was@zed for grants under the LTIP as stock borestricted stock or
performance-based stock awards. Shares awarded thiedeTIP are purchased on the open market.

At year-end 2004, a total of 436,000 shares of comstock were available for award under the LTH3uaning that current
performance based grants are awarded at the taxgét The LTIP stock awards are compensatory asvimdwhich compensation
expense is recognized based on the market valperfiirmance shares earned, or a pro rata amootizavier the vesting period for
the restricted stock awards.
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Performance-based Stock Awar8#nce the Plan’s inception in 2001, through Decan3lie 2004, five performandease!
stock awards have been granted, one based on yevgerformance period (2001-02) and four baseithi@®-year performance
periods (2001-03, 2002-04, 2003-05 and 2004-06pPéd. 31, 2004, all performance-based stock awatiter than those covering
the 2003-05 and 2004-06 periods had lapsed beth@gerformance-based measures were not achidbd. performance-based
measures are achieved, participants will also veagividend equivalent cash payments equal to timeber of shares of common
stock received on the award payout multiplied ydbgregate cash dividends paid per share by tirp&uy during the
performance period.

At Dec. 31, 2004, the aggregate number of perfoomdrased shares awarded and outstanding at thenammithreshold, target and
maximum levels were as follows:

No. of Performance Shares Awarded

Year Performanc Minimum Targe Maximurr
Awarded Period Thresholc

2003 200:-05 - 7,00( 28,00( 56,00(

2004 2004-06 - 7,75( 31,00( 62,00(

For the 2003-05 performance period, a series dbpaance targets were established based on the &urigpaverage annual return
on equity (ROE) for the performance period corresjdag to award opportunities ranging from O perder200 percent of the tarc
awards. No awards are payable unless the threaholdhl average ROE level, tied to the Company’saized ROE, is achieved
during the award period. The maximum awards aralplayonly upon the achievement of an average aQ& 200 basis points
above the Company’s authorized ROE. For the 2B®performance period, awards will be based on sb@reholder return relati
to a peer group of gas distribution companies tvethree-year performance period and performarnilesstones relative to the
Company'’s core and non-core strategies.

Restricted Stock AwardRestricted stock awards also have been granted timel& TIP. A restricted stock award
consisting of 4,500 shares granted in 2001 laps@@04, and a restricted stock award was grant280d consisting of 5,000
shares that is scheduled to vest ratably overnf@ags beginning in 2005.

Restated Stock Option Plan . The Restated SOP authorizes an aggregate of 206h&res of common stock for issuance as
incentive or non-statutory stock options. Theséomgtmay be granted only to officers and key empésydesignated by a
committee of NW Natura$ Board of Directors. All options are granted abption price not less than the market value attte o
grant and may be exercised for a period not exoget) years from the date of grant. Option holdeay exchange shares they
have owned for at least six months, at the cumrearket price, to purchase shares at the optior p8ince inception in 1985,
options on 1,303,721 shares of common stock hage geanted at prices ranging from $11.75 to $3pd¥xshare, and options on
131,721 shares have expired.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The ESPP allows employees to purchase common at@%k percent of the closing price on the
trading day immediately preceding the subscriptiate, which is set annually. Each eligible employee purchase up to $24,000
worth of stock through payroll deductions overxa $ 12-month period.
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In accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, no compensagxpense was recognized for options grantedruihdeRestated SOP or
shares issued under the ESPP during 2004 or epeles (see Note 1, “New Accounting Standards-Re&etounting
Pronouncements”). If compensation expense for asvander these two plans had been determined baskdr @alue at the grant
dates using the method prescribed by SFAS No."E&gounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” net imeoand earnings per
share would have been reduced to the pro forma atsehown below:

Thousands, except per share amo 2004 2003 2002
Net income as reporte $50,57:  $45,98!  $43,79.
Pro forma stock-based compensation expense detraimder the fair value based method - net of
tax (423) (279 (478)
Pro forma net incom 50,14¢ 45,70« 43,31«
Redeemable preferred and preference < - (294, (2,280
Pro forma earnings applicable to common sti- basic 50,14¢ 45,41( 41,03
Debenture interest less ta 20C 257 28t
Pro forma earnings applicable to common si- diluted $50,34¢  $45,667 $41,31¢

Basic earnings per she

As reportec $ 187 $ 177 $ 162

Pro forma $ 18 $ 17¢ $ 1.61
Diluted earnings per sha

As reportec $ 18 $ 17€¢ $ 1.6z

Pro forma $ 18 $ 178 $ 1.6C

The fair value of each stock option is estimatedhengrant date (there were no stock option gran?©03) using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weightederage assumptions:

2004 2002
Expected life in year 7.C 7.C
Risk-free interest rat 3.6% 3.6%
Expected volatility 25.2% 29.1%
Dividend yield 4.1% 4.8%
Present value of options grani $ 24.5¢ $ 20.4¢
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Information regarding the Restated SOP’s activdtgimmarized as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Optior Exercist
Share Range Price
Balance outstanding, Dec. 31, 2( 387,09: $ 20.25- 27.87* $ 22.7¢
Grantec 163,75( 26.07- 27.85( 26.3¢
Exercisec (68,827 20.25- 27.87¢ 21.7¢
Expired (18,200 20.25- 27.87¢ 25.4:
Balance outstanding, Dec. 31, 2( 463,81« 20.25- 27.87¢ 24.1C
Exercisec (140,470 20.25- 27.87" 21.1¢
Expired (1,300 20.25 20.2¢
Balance outstanding, Dec. 31, 2( 322,04« 20.25- 27.87¢ 25.3¢
Grantec 202,80( 31.34- 32.02( 31.4(C
Exercisec (92,079 20.25- 27.87¢ 24.3¢
Expired (1,300 26.30- 31.34( 30.1¢
Balance outstanding, Dec. 31, 2( 431,47( $ 20.25- 32.02( $ 28.3¢
Shares available for gra
Dec. 31, 200: 1,428,201
Shares available for gra
Dec. 31, 200: 1,429,50!
Shares available for gra
Dec. 31, 200: 1,228,001
The weighted average remaining life of outstanditogk options at December 31, 2004 was 7.3 years.
The characteristics of exercisable stock optiorideat 31, 2004 were as follows:
Weighted-
Range of Exercisabl Average
Exercise Price Stock Option Exercise Pric
$20.25- $27.875 185,12( $ 25.5¢

Non-Employee Directors Stock Compensation Plan. In February 2004, the NEDSCP was amended to paonitemployee
directors to receive stock awards either in cash @ompany stock. As a result of modificationghe directors’ compensation
arrangements, the NEDSCP was further amended itei®@bpr 2004 to eliminate any further awards, eitheash or stock, on and
after Jan. 1, 2005.

Prior to the latter amendment to the NEDSCP, if-eorployee directors elected to receive their awardsock, approximately
$100,000 worth of the Company’s common stock waarded upon joining the Board. These stock awarde sebject to vesting
and to restrictions on sale and transferabilitye Thares vested in monthly installments over theedalendar years following the
award. On January 1 of each year following theahiéward, non-employee directors who elected ¢eixe their awards in
Company stock were awarded an additional $20,00@vad restricted Company stock, which vested imthty installments in the
fifth year following the award (after the previoasward has fully vested). The Company
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holds the certificates for the restricted shards tire non-employee director ceases to be a direBarticipants receive all
dividends and have full voting rights on both vdsa&d unvested shares. All awards vest immediajaiy a change in control of
the Company. Any unvested shares are considereel tmearned compensation, and thus are forfeithe ifecipient ceases to be a
director. The shares were purchased in the opekenby the Company at the time of the award.

The following table presents the changes in unebsteck compensation for the years 2004 and 206 ware reported as a
reduction to total common equity in the consolidatelance sheets:

Thousand: 2004 2003

Unearned stock compensatic

Balance at beginning of ye $ 72¢ $ 711
Purchases of restricted stc 431 32¢
Restricted stock amortizatio (298 (310

Balance at end of ye $ 86z $ 72¢

Under a separate plan, prior to Jan. 1, 2005, maplayee directors could elect to invest their ciesgs and retainers for board
service in shares of the Company’s common stockiea new deferral plan effective Jan. 1, 2005h $ees and retainers will be
deferred to a cash account. Cash account balaregdentransferred to and invested in a Companykstocount, at the election of
the director, up to four times per year.

5. LONGTERM DEBT:

The issuance of first mortgage debt, including segumedium-term notes, under the Mortgage and Dé&dust (Mortgage), is
limited by property additions, adjusted net earsiagd other provisions of the Mortgage. The Mor&egnstitutes a first mortgage
lien on substantially all of NW Natural’s utilityrgperty.

The 71/ 4% Series of Convertible Debentures may be conveteaty time into 50/ 4 shares of common stock for each $1,000
face value ($19.90 per share).

The maturities on the long-term debt outstandingefch of the 12-month periods through Dec. 30920mount to: $15 million in
2005; $8 million in 2006; $29.5 million in 2007, $illion in 2008; and none in 2009. Holders of eartlong-term debt have put
options that, if exercised, would accelerate théunitees by $10 million in 2005 and $20 million éach of 2007, 2008 and 2009.

6. NOTES PAYABLE AND LINES OF CREDIT:

The Company'’s primary source of short-term fundsoisimercial paper notes payable. NW Natural issoagnercial paper under
agency agreements with a commercial bank and suomercial paper is supported by its committed Hards of credit (see
below). At. Dec. 31, 2004 and 2003, the amountsaaredage interest rates of commercial paper debtanding were $102.5
million and 2.3 percent and $85.2 million and letgent, respectively.
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NW Natural has lines of credit with four commerdianks totaling $150 million. Half of the creditfiéty with each bank, totaling
$75 million, is committed and available through 580, 2005, and the other $75 million is committed available through Sept.
30, 2007. Three of these commercial banks have @acmitted $20 million for each of their 2005 ariDZ lines of credit and the
fourth commercial bank has committed $15 milliondach of its 2005 and 2007 lines of credit.

NW Natural’s lines of credit require that creditings be maintained in effect at all times and tiwttce be given of any change in
its senior unsecured debt ratings. A change in NMUNI’s credit rating is not an event of defantiy is the maintenance of a
specific minimum level of credit rating a conditimmdrawing upon the lines of credit. However, iast rates on any loans
outstanding under NW Natural’s bank lines are teedredit ratings, which would increase or decreghsecost of bank debt, if any,
when ratings are changed.

The lines of credit require the Company to maintairindebtedness to total capitalization ratio®pércent or less and to maintain
a consolidated net worth at least equal to 80 péiiits net worth at Sept. 30, 2004, plus 50 petof the Company’s net income
for each subsequent fiscal quarter. Failure to dpmiih either of these covenants would entitle biamks to terminate their lending
commitments and to accelerate the maturity ofralbants outstanding. The Company was in compliantehbeth of these
covenants at Dec. 31, 2004, and with the equivalentnants in the prior year’s lines of credit @cD31, 2003.

7. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEET

NW Natural maintains two qualified non-contributatgfined benefit pension plans covering all regetaployees with more than
one year of service, several non-qualified suppleaigension plans for eligible executive officarsl certain key employees and
other postretirement benefit plans for its emplay&nly the two qualified defined benefit pensideng have plan assets which are
held in a qualified trust to fund retirement betsefi
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétbhanges in benefit obligations and fair valuassfets, as applicable, for the
pension plans and other postretirement benefitsptarer the three-year period ended Dec. 31, 20@#asstatement of the funded
status and amounts recognized in the consolidatkehbe sheets, using measurement dates of De2034, 2003 and 2002:

Pos-Retirement Benefit

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
Thousands 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Change in benefit obligatiol
Benefit obligation at Jan. $ 205,35 $ 185,12« $ 166,75. $ 23,37¢ $ 1845. $ 16,98
Service cos 5,42¢ 4,74¢ 4,631 457 45¢€ 39t
Interest cos 12,69( 12,40: 11,80 1,23 1,33¢ 1,174
Special termination benefi 237 - - - - -
Expected benefits pa (10,682 (10,363 (9,453 (1,040 (1,027 (979
Plan amendmen - - - - (111 (300
Net actuarial (gain) los 9,92: 13,44 11,38: (1,299 4,26¢ 1,18C
Benefit obligation at Dec. 3 222,94 205,35 185,12: 22,72¢ 23,37¢ 18,45
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at Jal 168,32- 143,16« 168,96« - - -
Actual return on plan asse 19,83¢ 34,52( (17,082 - - -
Employer contribution: 9,31( 1,00: 73t 1,04( 1,027 97¢
Benefits paic (10,682 (10,363 (9,453 (1,040 (1,027 (979
Fair value of plan assets at Dec. 186,78 168,32 143,16« - - -
Funded status
Funded status at Dec. (36,162 (37,028 (41,960 (22,729 (23,379 (18,457
Unrecognized transition obligatic - - - 3,292 3,70: 4,22¢
Unrecognized prior service cc 5,14¢ 6,24( 7,371 - - -
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 33,89% 32,15¢ 42,06( 6,717 8,30¢ 4,43
Net amount recognize $ 2881 $ 1366 $ 7,471 $ (12,720 $ (11,372 $ (9,794
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetsltate
Dec. 31:
Prepaid benefit co: $ 12,74t $ 11,111 $ 17,33¢ % - 8 - $ -
Accrued benefit liability (12,919 (11,319 (18,741 (12,720 (11,372 (9,794
Intangible asse - - 4,43¢ - - -
Other comprehensive lo 3,05¢ 1,574 4,43¢ - - -
Net amount recognize $ 2881 $ 1366 $ 7,471 $ (12,720 $ (11,372 $ (9,794

The Company’s qualified defined benefit pensiomplaad an accumulated benefit obligation in exoégtan assets at Dec. 31,
2004. The plans’ aggregate accumulated benefigatidin was $209 million, $192 million and $172 ioifi at Dec. 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively, and the fair value of gasets was $186.8 million, $168.3 million and $24gsillion, respectively. The fair
value of plan assets increased from Dec. 31, 20@8:t. 31, 2004 due to $22.5 million in investmgains and employer
contributions of $8.3 million, partially offset t$11.2 million in withdrawals to pay benefits and Bnillion to pay eligible
expenses of the plans. The combination of investmetarns and cash contributions is expected twigeo
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sufficient funds to cover all benefit obligationfstioe plans. The Company is not required to makash contribution to either of its
qualified pension plans for the 2005 plan year.

The Company’s investment policy and performanceabjes for the qualified pension plan assets (pksets) held in the
Retirement Trust Fund was approved by the retirerm@mmittee which is composed of management empkyEhe policy sets
forth the guidelines and objectives governing theestment of plan assets. Plan assets are inviestadal return with appropriate
consideration for liquidity and portfolio risk. Allhvestments are expected to satisfy the requiréathe rule of prudent
investments as set forth under the Employee Retintitimcome Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). The apgabasset classes are cash
and short-term investments, fixed income, commooksand convertible securities, absolute and egaln strategies, real estate
and investments in securities of NW Natural, ang einvested in separately managed accountsaammmingled or mutual
funds. Re-balancing will take place at least anlgual when significant cash flows occur, in ordemaintain the allocation of
assets within the stated target allocation rangles.Retirement Trust Fund is not currently investedny NW Natural securities.

The Company’s pension plan asset allocation at BEc2004 and 2003, and the target allocation apdeed long-term rate of
return by asset category for 2005 are as follows:

Expected

Percent of Plan Long-term
Assets Target Rate of
Dec. 31, Allocation Return

Asset Categor 2004 2003 2005 2005

US Large Cap Equit 36.3% 40.2% 35% 9.00%
US Small/Mid Cap Equit 9.2% 7.3% 8% 9.50%
Non-US Equity 19.2% 16.0% 15% 9.00%
Fixed Income 19.8% 24.8% 25% 5.75%
Real Estat: 3.6% 3.9% 4% 8.00%
Absolute Returt 7.3% 7.8% 8% 9.00%
Real Returr 4.6% - 5% 8.25%
Weighted Averag 8.25%

The Company’s non-qualified supplemental pensiamglaccumulated benefit obligations were $13.6ionil $13.0 million and
$12.8 million at Dec. 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, eetipely. Although the plans are unfunded plan$wid plan assets due to their
nature as non-qualified plans, the Company indiydands its obligations with trust-owned life insumce.

The Company'’s plans for providing postretirememddis other than pensions also are unfunded plems aggregate benefit
obligation for those plans was $22.7 million, $2@lion and $18.5 million at Dec. 31, 2004, 200812002, respectively.
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The following tables provide the components ofpeziodic benefit cost for the qualified and nondiexl pension and other

postretirement benefit plans for the years ended B¥, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and the assumptiomsingaeasuring these costs

and benefit obligations:

Pension Benefits

Other Postretirement Benefits

Thousands 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Service cos $ 5,42¢ $ 4,74¢ $ 4,63 $ 457 $ 45€ $ 39E
Interest cos 12,68¢ 12,40: 11,80 1,23 1,33¢ 1,174
Expected return on plan ass (13,284 (12,232 (16,335 - - -
Amortization of transition

obligation - - 351 411 411 43€
Amortization of prior service co: 1,094 1,132 1,20¢ - - 6
Recognized actuarial (gain) lo 1,631 1,05¢ (216 28¢ 401 147
Net periodic cos $ 7,55¢ $ 7,10¢ $  1,44¢ $ 2,38¢ $ 2,604 $ 2,15¢

Assumptions

Discount rate for net periodic

benefit cost (NPBC 6.25% 6.75% 7.25% 6.25% 6.75% 7.25%
Rate of increase in compensation 4.00- 4.25- 4.25-

for NPBC 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% n/e n/e n/e
Expected long-term rate of return

for NPBC 8.25% 8.00% 9.00% n/e n/e n/e
Discount rate for determination of

funded statu 6.00% 6.25% 6.75% 6.00% 6.25% 6.75%
Rate of increase in compensation 4.00- 4.00- 4.25-

for funded statu 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% n/e n/e n/e
Expected long-term rate of return

for funded statu 8.25% 8.25% 8.00% n/e n/e n/e

The assumed annual increase in trend rates usaddsuring postretirement benefits as of Dec. 304 2@ere 10 percent for

medical and 13 percent for prescription drugs. Maldiosts were assumed to decrease gradually eachoya rate of 4.5 percent
for 2012, while prescription drug costs were asslitoedecrease gradually each year to a rate gie¥éent for 2013.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the healtk plans. A one percentage
point change in assumed health care cost trens vaiald have the following effects:

1% 1%
Thousand: Increas Decreas
Effect on the total service and interest cost camepts of net periodic postretirement health carebie
cost $ 48 $ (47
Effect on the health care cost component of themctated postretirement benefit obligat $ 901 $ (81Y)
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The following table provides information regardi@gployer contributions and benefit payments forttine qualified pension plan
the non-qualified pension plans and the other ptistment benefit plans for the years ended Dec2324 and 2003, and estimated
future payments:

Thousands
Pension Benefi Other Benefit
Employer Contributions by Plan Year
200: $ 3,92. $ 1,02°
200: 6,39( 1,04C
2005 (estimate 1,62( 1,452
Benefit Payments
200: $ 9,45: $ 97¢
200: 10,36 1,027
200: 10,68: 1,04C
Estimated Future Payments
200! $ 12,40« $ 1,45:
2001 12,817 1,561
200° 13,10¢ 1,641
200i 13,89: 1,73¢
200! 14,32t 1,794
201-2014 82,57¢ 9,667

NW Natural's Retirement K Savings Plan (RKSP) gualified defined contribution plan under InterRavenue Code Section 401
(k). NW Natural also has non-qualified deferred pemsation plans for eligible officers and senionagers. These plans are
designed to enhance the retirement program of grapand to assist them in strengthening theinéii@ security by providing an
incentive to save and invest regularly. NW Natwafiatching contributions to these plans totaled fillion in 2004, $1.6 million
in 2003 and $1.4 million in 2002. Effective Jan2002, the RKSP was amended to establish an EnpBieek Ownership Plan
(ESOP) within the RKSP by converting the existitgI® Company Stock Fund into an ESOP.

Effective Jan. 1, 2005, the Company will make atgbation of 25 cents per compensable hour on Betiaach union employee to
the Western States Office and Professional Empkpesmsion Fund, which contributions will increagee8cent each year, up to 30
cents per compensable hour.
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8. INCOME TAXES:

A reconciliation between income taxes calculatetthatstatutory federal tax rate and the tax prowiseflected in the financial
statements is as follows:

Thousand: 2004 2003 2002

Computed income taxes based on statutory fedeyairia

tax rate of 35% $26,98t¢ $24,26: $23,53:

Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc
Difference between book and tax deprecia 222 222 222
Current state income tax, net of federal tax be 2,55¢ 2,31( 2,29¢
Federal income tax credi (210 (357, (362)
Amortization of investment tax cred (920 (879 (858
Gains on Company and tr-owned life insuranc (955 (1,292 (487,
Removal cost (813 (925; (573
Reversal of amounts provided in prior ye (392 (226, (240,
Other- net 58 124 (90)

Total provision for income taxe $26,53: $23,34( $23,44¢

Total income taxes pa $ 2,50( $13,94( $33,47¢

The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlhg:

Thousands, except percenta 2004 2003 2002
Income taxes currently payable (receivak
Federal $ (9,607 $10,01: $ 9,371
State (1,111 1,17¢ 1,23¢
Total (10,718 11,18¢ 10,61¢
Deferred taxe- net:
Federal 33,60: 10,747 11,47¢
State 4,567 2,28¢ 2,21(
Total 38,16¢ 13,03 13,68¢
Investment and energy tax credits resto
From utility operation: (800; (801 (800,
From subsidiary operatiot (120 (78) (58)
Total (920, (879 (858)
Total provision for income taxe $ 26,53 $23,34( $23,44¢
Percentage of pretax incor 34.4% 33.7% 34.9%
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are compridetieofollowing:

Thousand: 2004 2003
Deferred tax liabilities
Plant and propert $146,65 $113,78:
Regulatory income tax asst 64,73¢ 63,44¢
Regulatory liabilities 5,73( -
Other deferred liabilitie 5,563¢ 6,10¢
Total 222,65! 183,33¢

Deferred tax asset

Regulatory asse - 97C
Minimum pension liability 1,06¢ 557
Other deferred asse 7,33( 10,01t
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwa 1,631 -
Loss and credit carryforwari 1,911 -
Total 11,94( 11,54:

Net accumulated deferred income tax liabi $210,71! $171,79°

The amount of income taxes paid in 2004 and 20@8=dsed significantly as compared to the total ision for income taxes,
primarily due to the effects of accelerated detmn provisions provided by the Job Creation aratk@r Assistance Act of 2002
(the Assistance Act) and the Jobs and Growth TdieReeconciliation Act of 2003 (the Reconciliatiditt). The Assistance Act
provided for an additional depreciation deductiqnad to 30 percent of an asset’s adjusted bases Reétonciliation Act increased
this first-year additional depreciation deductiorbd percent of an asset’s adjusted basis. Theiauntlifirst-year depreciation
deduction is an acceleration of depreciation dadnstthat otherwise would have been taken in ttex jgears of an asset’s recovery
period. The accelerated depreciation provisionsigeal by both the Assistance Act and the ReconigliaAct expired at Dec. 31,
2004. The Company realized enhanced cash flow femtaced income taxes totaling an estimated $5%omitduring the effective
period, based on plant investments made between Be001 and Dec. 31, 2004.

For the year ended Dec. 31, 2004, the Company madtanated federal net operating loss (NOL) of.41Billion and an Oregon
NOL of $18.6 million, primarily due to the effeaté accelerated tax depreciation provided by thestasce Act and the
Reconciliation Act. The federal NOL will be carribdck to 2002 for a refund of taxes paid in priears, and the Oregon NOL will
be used to reduce future Oregon taxable income Orregon NOL will expire in 2019.

At Dec. 31, 2004 the Company had $1.6 million ¢émdative minimum tax credit carryforwards to offsegular federal income tax
payable in future years. In addition, the Compaag bertain tax credits of approximately $0.7 millishich are available to reduce
certain federal and state income tax liabilitie®tiygh 2011. The Company anticipates that it wilabée to utilize all loss and credit
carryforwards in future years.
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9. PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS:

The following table sets forth the major classificas of NW Natural’s utility plant and accumulatéepreciation at Dec. 31:

2004 2003
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Depreciatiol Depreciatiol
Thousands, except percenta Amount Rate Amount Rate
Transmission and distributic $1,509,47! 3.2% $1,347,40:. 3.2%
Utility storage 109,61: 2.€% 107,54 2.7%
General 91,22¢ 3.4% 84,38: 6.C%
Intangible and othe 61,57: 8.5% 56,42¢ 5.1%
Utility plant in service 1,771,89 3.4% 1,595,75! 3.5%
Gas stored lor-term 13,43« 12,77¢
Held for future ust 1,83: 1,22¢
Construction work in progre: 7,81t 47,82¢
Total utility plant 1,794,97. 1,657,58
Accumulated depreciatic (658,544 (607,354
Regulatory liability- accrued asset removal cc 153,25t 135,63t
Utility plant-net $1,289,68! $1,185,87.

Accumulated depreciation does not include $153IBaniand $135.6 million at Dec. 31, 2004 and 20@3pectively, which
represent accrued asset removal costs and areteeflen the balance sheets as a regulatory lialsite Note 1).

The following table summarizes the Company’s inwestts in non-utility plant at Dec. 31:

2004 2003
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Depreciatiol Depreciatiol
Thousands, except percenta Amount Rate Amouni Rate
Non-utility storage $24,90( $18,50°
Dock, land, oil station and oth 4,72¢ 3,84¢
Non-utility plant in service 29,62¢ 2.3% 22,35 2.2%
Construction work in progre: 4,33¢ 1,04z
Total nor-utility plant 33,96: 23,39t
Less accumulated depreciati 5,24¢ 4,85¢
Non-utility plant - net $28,71¢ $18,54(
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The following table summarizes the Company’s otbeg-term investments, including financial investrtgein life insurance
policies accounted for at fair value based on sastender values, equity investments in certaitnpaships and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity or cost methods aaesgeraged lease investment in an aircraft, at Be:

(Thousands 2004 2003
Life insurance $45,01: $59,71(
Aircraft leveraged leas 6,621 6,43¢
Real estate partnerst 1,50C 1,50C
Note receivabl 1,24( -
Gas pipeline and othi 3,265 2,88(
Electric generatiol 2,98: 3,317
Total other investmen $60,61¢ $73,84¢

In 1987, the Company invested in a Boeing 737-3A0ait, which is leased to Continental Airlines &0 years under a leveraged
lease agreement.

A Financial Corporation subsidiary, KB Pipeline Quany (KB Pipeline), owns a 10 percent interestiri@-mile interstate natural
gas pipeline. KB Pipeline operated the pipelinetfeglve years until Dec. 1, 2004, when a third pgds distribution company
became the operator. KB Pipeline resigned as pipelperator due, in part, to increased obligatiesslting from final Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission regulations implenmgngtandards of Conduct for Transmission Providetsse regulations
govern the relationship between interstate nagaalpipelines and their energy affiliates or mangetunctions and impose
obligations previously inapplicable to KB Pipeliwih regard to separation of duties and relatedematFERC granted KB Pipeli
an exemption from most of the requirements of ttem&ards of Conduct; however, the remainder ofelgelations continue to be
applicable to KB Pipeline as a co-owner of the |niyge

At Dec. 31, 2004, Financial Corporation held owhgrsnterests ranging from 4.0 to 5.3 percent imre¢hsolar electric generation
plants located near Barstow, California. Power gateel by these plants is sold to Southern CalifoEdison Company under long-
term contracts. Financial Corporation also has aship interests ranging from 25 to 41 percent indypower electric generation
projects located near Livermore and Palm Springdéif@@nia. The wind-generated power is sold to Ra¢as and Electric
Company and Southern California Edison Company uloag-term contracts. Financial Corporation stéédmterests in the solar
electric generation plants on Jan. 31, 2005 (sde Rlo

FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Vdla Interest Entities,” provides guidance for detieing whether consolidation
is required for entities over which control is amléd through means other than voting rights, knevwariable interest entities.”
The Company does not have any significant inteliestariable interest entities for which it is arpary beneficiary.
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10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
The estimated fair value of NW Natural’s finandiadtruments has been determined using availabl&aharformation and
appropriate valuation methodologies. The followamg financial instruments whose carrying valuessarssitive to market
conditions:
Dec. 31, 2004 Dec. 31, 2003
Carrying Carrying
Estimatec Estimatec
(Thousands Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term debt including amount due within one y $499,02° $ 567,92t $500,31¢ $ 562,68!
Fair value of the long-term debt was estimatedgusiarket prices on the valuation date for debt withilar credit ratings,
maturities, interest rates and other terms.
11. USE OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES:

NW Natural enters into short-term, medium-term bmdj-term natural gas purchase contracts with seigplincluding contracts
tied to market-based index prices, and thus is @aghoo changes in commodity prices. Natural gaeprare subject to fluctuations
due to unpredictable factors including weathereirtery levels, pipeline transportation availabjligd the economy, each of which
affects short-term supply and demand. As partsobvierall strategy to maintain an acceptable leffekposure to gas price
fluctuations, NW Natural uses a targeted mix oéfixate and cap-protected derivative instrumenketige the exposure under
floating price gas supply contracts. Swap contramsused to convert certain long-term gas purcbaseacts from floating prices
to fixed prices. Call option contracts are useliniit the maximum adverse impact from floating gricontracts while retaining the
potential favorable impact from declining gas psicEhe prices embedded in these commaodity heddgeacts are incorporated in
annual rate changes under the PGA rate mechartisenspy limiting customers’ exposure to frequerarges in purchased gas
costs. The estimated fair value of gains and losses commodity hedge contracts are recorded asiaalive asset or liability, and
are offset by a corresponding amount recordeddeferred regulatory asset or liability accounttfor effective portion of each
hedge contract. The actual gains and losses rdaizgettlement of the hedge contracts are usefidet the actual gas purchase
from NW Natural’s physical supply contracts.

Certain natural gas purchases from Canadian suplie invoiced in Canadian dollars, including bagimmodity and demand
charges, thereby exposing NW Natural to adversegdmin foreign currency rates. Foreign currencydod contracts are used to
minimize the impact of fluctuations in currencyestForeign currency contracts for commodity castéspurchased on a month-to-
month basis because the Canadian cost is pridbé average noonday exchange rate for each momtbigi currency contracts f
demand costs have terms ranging up to 24 montlesg&ims and losses on the shorter-term currendyamts for commodity costs
are recognized immediately in cost of gas. Thegaimd losses on the longerm currency contracts for demand charges arest
to a regulatory deferral tariff and, as such, asorded as a derivative asset or liability whicbffset by recording a corresponding
amount to a deferred asset or liability account.

NW Natural did not use any derivative instrumenté¢dge oil or propane prices or interest rategdu004, 2003 or 2002.
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At Dec. 31, 2004, NW Natural had the following datives outstanding: a series of 24 fixed-priceirsdltgas commodity price
financial swap contracts; four fixed-price natugak financial call option contracts; and 62 foreigrrency forward purchase
contracts. All of these contracts were designaseceah flow hedges covering exposures to commeditghase and sale contracts.
Unrealized gains and losses from mark-to-markatatans of these contracts are not recognizedrirectiincome but are reported
as derivative assets or liabilities and offset lopaesponding deferred account balance underatmgylliabilities or regulatory
assets because regulatory mechanisms includedlizeic gains or losses at settlement in utility gasts subject to regulatory
deferral treatment. NW Natural also had outstandinbec. 31, 2004 two natural gas physical supphiracts with embedded
options which did not qualify as a normal purchasaormal sale. The physical supply contracts vestered into using excess gas
storage and pipeline transportation capacity utfteeCompany’s optimization program. The estimasadvfalues (unrealized gains
and losses) and the notional amounts of derivatisuments outstanding were as follows:

Dec. 31, 2004 Dec. 31, 2003

Fair Value Fair Value
Gain (Loss  Notional ~ Gain (Loss  Notional
(Thousands) Amount Amount
Fixec-price natural gas financial swap contre $ 11,98 $37597 $ 23,28¢ $284,31
Fixec-price natural gas financial call option contre (2,295 28,35’ 36€ 19,76
Natural gas physical supply contracts with embedujgbns 24 4,25( - -
Fixec-price natural gas financial swap contre- gas storag 65€ 4,40¢ - -
Foreign currency forward purchase contr: 44z 14,46( 234 6,417
Total $ 10,91: $427,44( $ 23,88¢ $310,49!

In 2004 and 2003, NW Natural realized net gain$4#.4 million and $32.4 million, respectively, frahre settlement of natural gas
commodity swap and call option contracts, whichewercorded as decreases to the cost of gas, cadrjpamet losses of $75.5
million during 2002, which were recorded as incesa® the cost of gas. The currency exchangenatk foreign currency forward
purchase contracts is included in NW Natural's aégias at settlement; therefore, no gain or loas recorded from the settlement
of those contracts. Any change in value of caslv fledge contracts that is not included in regujatecovery is included in OCI.

The fair value of derivative instruments at Dec, 3104 and 2003 (see table above) was determiriag estimated or quoted
market prices for the periods covered by the cotgraMarket prices for the natural gas commoditggoswap and call option
contracts were obtained from external sources. NaMfdl reviews these third-party valuations forsmebleness using fair value
calculations for other contracts with similar teramal conditions. The market prices for the foraigrrency forward contracts were
based on currency exchange rates quoted by The &aD&nada.

As of Dec. 31, 2004, five of the natural gas comityogrice swap contracts extended beyond Dec. B@52and two extended
beyond Oct. 31, 2006. None of the natural gas coditynoall option contracts extends beyond MarchZ105.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Lease Commitments
The Company leases land, buildings and equipmedenegreements that expire in various years thr@@di8. Rental expense
under operating leases was $4.5 million, $4.9 amiliind $4.8 million for the years ended Dec. 3042@003 and 2002,
respectively. The table below reflects the futuieimum lease payments due under non-cancelabledetisDec. 31, 2004. Such
payments total $60.8 million for operating leadé® net present value of payments on capital ldasesmputed interest was $0.5
million. These commitments principally relate te tease of the Company’s office headquarters, gndend gas storage facilities,
vehicles and computer equipment.
Later
Millions 200t 200€ 2007 200¢ 200¢  years
Operating lease $45 $42 $41 $4C $3¢ $39:¢
Capital lease 0.2 0.2 0.1 - - -
Minimum lease paymen $47 $44 $42 $4C $3¢ $39:¢

Pipeline Capacity Purchase and Release Commitments

NW Natural has signed agreements providing fordéiservation of firm pipeline capacity under whitmiust make fixed monthly
payments for contracted capacity. The pricing comepd of the monthly payment is established, sukigechange, by U.S. or
Canadian regulatory bodies. In addition, NW Natthiad entered into long-term sale agreements tagelérm pipeline capacity.
The aggregate amounts of these agreements wesaassfat Dec. 31, 2004:

Pipeline Pipeline

Capacity Capacity

Purchase Release
Thousand: Agreement Agreement
2005 $ 66,70! $ 3,71t
2006 61,51« 3,71t
2007 62,69¢ 3,71t
2008 60,94¢ 3,71¢
2009 54,41 3,71¢
2010 through 202 274,89: 3,09t
Total 581,17( 21,67(
Less: Amount representing inter 113,02« 2,36¢
Total at present valt $ 468,14¢ $ 19,30

NW Natural’s total payments of fixed charges under capacitghmse agreements in 2004, 2003 and 2002 were 888ich, $86.7
million and $86.2 million, respectively. Includedthe amounts for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were rechefiar capacity release sales
of $3.7 million, $3.7 million and $4.2 million, npsctively. In addition, per-unit charges are regdito be paid based on the actual
guantities shipped under the agreements. In cedlk@ror-pay purchase commitments, annual defiggsnoay be offset by
prepayments subject to recovery over a longer tefuture purchases exceed the minimum annual reqénts.

97



Table of Contents

Environmental Matters

NW Natural owns or previously owned properties ently being investigated that may require environtakresponse. NW Natur
has accrued all material loss contingencies rejdtrenvironmental matters that it believes to tmbable of assertion and
reasonably estimable. The Company continues ty shedextent of its environmental liabilities, lulite to the preliminary nature of
the environmental investigations being conductieel range of loss contingencies beyond the amountsritly accrued, and the
probabilities thereof, cannot be reasonably estohat

Gasco site. NW Natural owns property in Multnomah County, Qua that is the site of a former gas manufactupilagt that was
closed in 1956 (the Gasco site). The Gasco sitdéas under investigation by NW Natural for envimamtal contamination under
the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality’®&D) Voluntary Clean-Up Program. In June 2003,Goenpany filed a
Feasibility Scoping Plan and an Ecological and Hutdaalth Risk Assessment with the ODEQ, which oaetia range of remedial
alternatives for the most contaminated portiorhefGasco site. NW Natural continues to work with@DEQ to determine the
appropriate remedial action from among the altéraat Based upon the proposed actions in the giaft the Company estimates
its range of remaining liability, including the ¢asd investigation, from among feasible alternagivat between $1.3 million and $7
million.

Wacker site. NW Natural previously owned property adjacenthi® Gasco site that now is the location of a martufang plant
owned by Siltronic Corporation, formerly Wackertfihic Corporation (the Wacker site). In 2000, ®BEQ issued an order
requiring Wacker and NW Natural to determine theireaand extent of releases of hazardous substémb¥glamette River
sediments from the Wacker site. In 2004, consukaudies indicated that some benzene is presehéisoil at the Wacker site. The
ODEQ requested that NW Natural conduct furthesstegroundwater and indoor air quality. The woldpfor the implementation
of the benzene indoor air-sampling program wasamut by the ODEQ in November 2004. NW Natural rdedrexpenses in 2004
totaling $0.1 million for its estimated costs ofé@stigation and initial remediation at the Wackee.s

Portland Harbor . In 1998, the ODEQ and the U.S. Environmental &utidn Agency (EPA) completed a study of sediments
5.5-mile segment of the Willamette River (the Rortl Harbor) that includes the area adjacent t&texo site and the Wacker site.
In 2000, the EPA listed the Portland Harbor as pe8und site and notified the Company that it ogentially responsible party.
Subsequently, the EPA approved the Programmatik\Rtam, Field Sampling Plan and Quality Assuranageet Plan for the
Portland Harbor Remedial Investigation/Feasibiitydy. NW Natural’s share of the estimated budgebmplete the first phase of
the work is $1.0 million, which is expected to lempleted in 2007. The EPA has indicated that furstiedy in a second phase will
be required; however, the scope of the work todmepieted in a second phase has yet to be determined

In April 2004 the Company entered into an Admirattre Order on Consent (AOC) providing for earlyi@t removal of a body of
tar in the river sediments adjacent to the Gadeo Isi July 2004, the EPA approved an initial wplan for the early action remov
The Company continues to negotiate with the EPAndigg the method and timing of the removal of the
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body of tar. The Company currently estimates tieoneal cost to be in the range of $3.0 million toGillion. In addition, the
Company has agreed with the ODEQ to do additiormatkyif necessary, on the Gasco site in conjunatidh the EPA early action
remediation work.

During 2004, NW Natural accrued additional losstoayencies totaling $4.3 million for the above-diised study work and the
revised estimate of tar body remediation costs. N&ural’s liability is based on its best estimat@mbable costs, and if a specific
amount is no more or less likely than another arhuthe range of probable liability, then the Canp recognizes its liability at
the lower end of the range of probable liabilityrently available information is insufficient termine either the total amount of
liability, or the higher end of a range for NW Nadls estimated share of potential future remediatelated to the Portland Harbor
site. The Company expects to receive additionarinétion when the Remedial Investigation/Feasibiitudy report is completed.
A preliminary report is expected to be availableiniy 2005.

Portland Gas site . The City of Portland notified NW Natural thawiais planning a sewer improvement project that wawttide
excavation within the former site of a gas manufang plant (the Portland Gas site) that was owanedi operated by a predecessor
of the Company between 1860 and 1913. The prelimiassessment of this site performed by a conduitarthe EPA in 1987
indicated that it could be assumed that by-prothrstmay have been disposed of on site. The repadluded, however, that it is
likely that waste residues from the plant, if présan the site, were covered by deep fill duringstauction of the nearby seawall
bordering the Willamette River and probably hawbgized due to physical and chemical processeghélethe City of Portland n«
the ODEQ has notified NW Natural whether a furtin@estigation or potential remediation might beuiegd on the site in
connection with the sewer project, which has contadnAvailable information is insufficient to dateine either the total amount
of NW Natural’s liability or a probable range, ifig of potential liability.

Oregon Stedl Millssite. On Dec. 20, 2004, the Company was served witlird-party complaint by the Port of Portland (Pamta
Multnomah County Circuit Court cas@regon Steel Mills, Inc. v. The Port of Portlan@ihe Port alleges that in the 1940’s and
1950’s petroleum wastes generated by the Compangtsecessor, Portland Gas & Coke Company, andativeg third-party
defendants were disposed of in a waste oil disffasdity operated by the United States or Shawan$portation Company on
property then owned by the Port and now owned lBg@m Steel Mills. The Port's complaint seeks ctotibn for unspecified past
remedial action costs incurred by the Port regartlie former waste oil disposal facility as welleadeclaratory judgment allocati
liability for future remedial action costs. NW Nailidoes not believe there are facts sufficiertanstitute a claim against the
Company.

Corps of Engineers Notice of Noncompliance . On July 2, 2004, the U.S. Army Corps of Engind€mwsrps) issued to the Company
a Notice of Noncompliance (Notice) for dischargédrilling mud into three streams during drillingerations on the Company’s
South Mist Pipeline Extension (SMPE) project. Tha[s’ Notice claimed that the discharges violatezlscope of work in permits
for the drilling. The Company cooperated with thar@s in its investigation and worked closely witle {Corps and other state and
federal agencies to minimize impacts from the wrided discharges. The final disposition of thistematsulted in the payment ¢
nominal fine.
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Regulatory and I nsurance Recovery for Environmental Matters. In May 2003, the OPUC approved NW Natural’s resgdier
deferral of environmental costs associated witltifigesites, including the Gasco, Wacker, Portléfatbor and Portland Gas sites.
The authorization, which has been extended thréygh 2005, allows NW Natural to defer and seekonsgry of unreimbursed
environmental costs in a future general rate dasea cumulative basis through Dec. 31, 2004, the@amy paid out a total of $3.3
million relating to the named sites since the dffecdate of the deferral authorization. NW Natwwdl first seek to recover the
costs of investigation and remediation for whichnay be responsible with respect to the Gasco, ¥faélortland Harbor and
Portland Gas sites, if any, from insurance. If ¢hessts are not recovered from insurance, then Nl will seek OPUC
approval to recover them through future rates. &t.CB1, 2004, NW Natural had a receivable of $8lbam representing an
estimate of the environmental costs it expectgtover from insurance, consisting of $2.8 million ¢osts relating to the Gasco
site, $5.5 million for costs relating to the PantieHarbor site and $0.2 million relating to the @re Steel Mills site.

On Jan. 27, 2005, NW Natural filed a request with®PUC for authorization to defer costs associaitithe Oregon Steel Mills
site and to extend the deferral authority for ttteeonamed environmental sites through Jan. 265.200

The following table summarizes the insurance resddias and the accrued liabilities relating to emwinental matters at Dec. 31,
2004 and 2003.

Insurance Receivable Accrued Liability

(Millions) 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0: 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0:
Gasco site $ 28 $ 25 $ 1.3 $ 1t
Wacker site - - 0.1 -
Portland Harbor sit 5.5 1.2 34 0.6
Portland Gas sit - - - -
Oregon Steel Mills sit 0.2 - 0.2 -

Total $ 8.t $ 3.1 $ 5.0 $ 2.1

Legal Proceedings
Litigation

On October 16, 2003, Longview Fibre Company (Loegwifiled suit in Federal Courtl{ongview Fibre Company v. Enerfin
Resources Northwest Limited Partnership and Norgtwatural Gas CompanyJS District Court - Oregon District)) seeking a
declaratory judgment regarding the continuing exise of a certain oil and gas lease in the Misfiigibetween Longview and
Enerfin Resources Northwest Limited Partnershipe¢iin). NW Natural holds a gas storage lease framgview (the Cascade
Lease), which covers the same land as the Enedsel and which grants the right to produce nailand gas. Enerfin originally
filed crossclaims against NW Natural alleging tR&¥ Natural wrongly interfered with Enerfin’s attetsgo continue its oil and gas
lease with Longview; however, Enerfin agreed toniés those claims in a previous settlement with N&tural. In that settlement,
NW Natural subleased portions of the Cascade LigaBeerfin for the purpose of producing native dasSeptember 2004, NW
Natural and Enerfin filed claims and counterclasgginst Longview, and Longview filed claims and miguclaims against NW
Natural and Enerfin. The claims that Longview madainst NW Natural involved allegations of unpaigiaities under the Cascade
Lease.
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All parties to the Longview litigation entered irddSettlement Agreement, effective Jan. 11, 20@5&t of the settlement,
Longview granted NW Natural an easement for uggaducing oil and gas from the lands covered byGascade Lease. Other
than payments made in respect of the easementogaltly payments under the relevant leases aneasés$, which were not
material, no payments were made in connection thigh_ongview settlement. All claims were dismissedlan. 28, 2005 pursuant
to the Settlement Agreement.

On May 28, 2004, a lawsuit was filed against thenBany(Kerry Law, Arnold Zuehlke and Kenneth Cooper, ehdif of
themselves and all others similarly situated v.thwest Natural Gas Compaify.S. Dist. Ct. D. Or., Case No. CV-04-728-AS)) by
three individuals alleging violation of the Fairba Standards Act for failure to pay overtime. Bl was subsequently amended
to include state wage and hour claims. The pldingife or have been independent backhoe operatmrparformed services for the
Company under contract. In the lawsuit, the pléEstilaim that they, and others similarly situatsdould have been considered
“employees” of the Company instead of independentractors. The plaintiffs seek overtime and irdene amounts to be
determined, liquidated damages equal to the overéiwmard, civil penalties and attorneys fees antscd$ie plaintiffs sought to
certify this case as a collective action underRag Labor Standards Act; however, on Oct. 5, 2@U&intiffs’ motion for collective
action certification was denied. As a result o§thiling, the case is proceeding with the threeecuplaintiffs, and any others who
wish to join must do so individually. Although nther claims have been filed in this lawsuit, pldist counsel has indicated to the
court their intention to file additional claims &&® employee benefits allegedly due to plaintiffsaddition, the claims in the
lawsuit described below may be consolidated with ldwsuit. The Company intends to vigorously cehtke claims. There is
insufficient information at this point in the litigion to reasonably estimate the amount of lighilftany, from this claim.

On Feb. 18, 2005, a lawsuit was filed against thsmgany (Kasey Cooper, Kevin Cooper, C.G. Nick Courtneyn)shShooter, ke
Whittlesey and Roger Whittlesey v. Northwest Nat{weS. Dist. Ct. D. Or., Case No. CV-05-241-Kl)) &ix additional individual
independent backhoe operators who have perfornmreitss for the Company under contract. Like thenpitis in the claim
described above, these plaintiffs allege that #feyuld have been considered “employees” of the Gomprhey seek overtime
wages under the Fair Labor Standards Act and stt@remounts to be determined, liquidated damageal to the overtime award,
civil penalties and attorneys fees and costs. titiad, the plaintiffs allege that failure to cl#fgghem as employees constituted a
breach of contract under certain of the Companyipleyee benefit programs, agreements and planshvduinferred employment-
related compensation, rights and benefits. Thely anainspecified amount of damages for the valughadt they would have
received under these programs, agreements andiptheyg had been classified as employees. The @ommtends to vigorously
contest the claims. There is insufficient inforroatat this point in the litigation to reasonablyireate the amount of liability, if an
from this claim.

On Dec. 20, 2004, the Company was served withrd-flarty complaint by the Port of Portland (Pontai Multnomah County
Circuit Court caseQregon Steel Mills, Inc. v. The Port of Portlan@ihe Port alleges that in the 1940’s and 1950{sopeum wastes
generated by the Company'’s predecessor, Portlan&G&nke Company, and nine other third-party deéenisl were disposed of in
a waste oil disposal facility operated by the UshiBtates or Shaver Transportation Company on piptesn owned by the Port a
now owned by Oregon Steel
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Mills. The Port’s complaint seeks contribution torspecified past remedial action costs incurrethbyPort regarding the former
waste oil disposal facility as well as a declargjodgment allocating liability for future remediattion costs. NW Natural does not
believe there are facts sufficient to constitutdadm against the Company.

In connection with the construction of the SMPE, MAtural continues to negotiate with some land ow/negarding valuation of
easements and rights-of-way obtained pursuantrtdesanation proceedings. In some cases, compensdtide determined in
individual court proceedings that have been sclegtitiirough June 2005. The Company is unable tordite the likelihood of
unfavorable outcomes of these matters, but belithaishe aggregate amount of compensation ultijmpted will not be material
to the Company’s financial condition, results oéogtions or cash flows.

The Company is subject to other claims and litmyagrising in the ordinary course of business. @t the final outcome of any
these legal proceedings cannot be predicted withiogy, the Company does not expect that the algndisposition of these matt
will have a materially adverse effect on the Conypafinancial condition, results of operations ash flows.
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarter ended

Dollars
March 3: Sept. 3

(Thousands, except per share amounts) June 30 Dec. 31 Total

2004

Operating revenue $254,45( $109,65¢ $81,44: $262,05¢ $707,60:

Net operating revenut 112,03 52,62¢ 39,48: 104,21- 308,36(

Net income (loss 32,61: (71€) (8,285 26,96 50,57:

Basic earnings (loss) per shi 1.2¢ (0.03) (0.30 0.9¢ 1.87

Diluted earnings (loss) per she 1.2¢ (0.03) (0.30 0.97 1.8¢*

2003

Operating revenue $206,53¢ $117,48¢ $69,48: $217,74 $611,25¢

Net operating revenut 98,58¢ 58,54¢ 39,46¢ 91,46« 288,06¢

Net income (loss 26,40: 4,462 (6,54¢€) 21,66: 45,98

Basic earnings (loss) per shi 1.0¢ 0.17 (0.25) 0.84 1.7

Diluted earnings (loss) per she 1.01 0.17 (0.25) 0.8: 1.7¢
* Quarterly earnings (loss) per share are based thgoaverage number of common shares outstandirggdeach quarter. Because

average number of shares outstanding has changeatinquarter shown, the sum of quarterly earr(lings) per share may not equal

earnings per share for the year. Variations iniagmbetween quarterly periods are due primariltheoseasonal nature of the

Compan’s business
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D COLUMN E
Additions Deductions
Balance at —_— Balance
beginning Charged to Charged tc at end
of costs other Net of
period and expenses accounts write-offs period
Thousands (year ended December
2004
Reserves deducted in balance
sheet from assets to which they
apply:
Allowance for uncollectible
accounts $ 1,76¢ $ 3,31: $ 0 $ 2,641 $ 2,43¢
2003
Reserves deducted in balance
sheet from assets to which they
apply:
Allowance for uncollectible
accounts $ 1,81¢ $ 1,99( $ 0 $ 2,04z $ 1,76¢
2002
Reserves deducted in balance
sheet from assets to which they
apply:
Allowance for uncollectible
accounts $ 1,96: $ 2,87¢ $ 0 $ 3,02t $ 1,81¢F
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceslure

As of Dec. 31, 2004, the principal executive offieed principal financial officer of the Companyeaevaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosurgrots and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a)yHs@ 15d-15(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Acége8 upon that evaluation, the principal execudffieer and principal financial officer
of the Company have concluded that such disclosaméols and procedures are effective in timelytalg them to any material information
relating to the Company and its consolidated sudséd required to be included in the Company’srepfiled with or furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the ExghAnt.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Ré&pg

During 2004, the Company conducted an extensivataff analyze and assess the effectiveness ioté@sal controls over financial
reporting. The assessments were made by managemdgitthe supervision of the Company’s chief finahafficer. During the course of its
assessments, the Company identified areas of aiteomtrol that warranted improvement. As a reshs, Company made the significant
changes in its internal control over financial rgpgy during the fourth quarter, as summarized Wwelo

The Company implemented a software system to math@gaccounting for its fixed assets. The systaeriaces with the Company’s general
ledger, customer information system, payroll andstauction work management system and is usedi¢alate depreciation expense and
allowance for funds used during construction (AFJDB& the financial statements. The fixed assetesggmplementation improved internal
controls by providing:

. subsidiary records by work order or activity fotthatility and non-utility plant;
. documentation of the application of constructioernead to plant accounts;
. elimination of manual calculations and recordinglepreciation and AFUDC; and

. a roll-forward of the deferred tax balances asdediavith the book-tax basis differences for utjlitpn-utility and interstate
storage property as of Dec. 31, 20

The Company also implemented changes in intern@tais over financial reporting in the area of gapply. These changes consisted
primarily of:

. organizational changes to more clearly define apdusate front-, mid- and back-office responsil@gitfor the gas purchasing
functions;

. creation of a Gas Supply Strategy and Risk Managémelicies Committee to provide oversight of tharanys gas suppl
area;

. development of a physical gas commodity transastimiicy, including authorization limits, which quilpments the
Compan’s existing derivatives policy; ar

. development of front-, mid- and back-office procesu
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These changes were designed to ensure adequatatgepaf duties within the gas supply function.

Other than as described above, there has beeramgelin the Company’s internal control over finahogéporting that occurred during the
Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has nadieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelgadffect, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

The statements contained in Exhibit 31.1 and ExBibi2 should be considered in light of, and respgbther with, the information set forth in
this Item 9A.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

The Company filed a Form 8-K dated Feb. 11, 20@snting (i) the waiver of forfeiture provisions tife Non-Employee Directors Stock
Compensation Plan relating to Company stock hettieraccount of Melody C. Teppola, a director & @ompany who died on Dec. 6, 20
(i) an increase in director fees, including castainer and meeting fees; (iii) annual executiventive compensation structure; and (iv)
executive long-term incentive plan compensatioucstire.

On Feb. 23, 2005, the Organization and Executivaf@@msation Committee of the Board of Directors iheiteed compensation for executive
officers for 2005, including targets under the BExae Annual Incentive Plan and awards under theg-®@erm Incentive Plan. On Feb. 24,
2005, the Board of Directors approved compensdtipthe chief executive officer, including his amhincentive award for 2004, salary for
2005, the target under the Executive Annual Ineenfilan and an award under the Long-Term Incefftiga. For a summary of the
compensation for the Company’s named executivearf§i see Exhibit 10z (2) to this Form 10-K.

On Feb. 25, 2005, the Company announced that thedBif Directors elected Kenneth Thrasher to tharBoSince 2002, Mr. Thrasher has
served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officerai@li Corporation, a software solution provider fiosanagement of compliance in
employment practices and corporate governancer. #rjoining Compli, Mr. Thrasher served 19 yeargxecutive positions with Fred
Meyer, Inc., including serving as President ande€Rixecutive Officer from 1999 to 2001 and as ExieeuVice President and Chief
Administrative Officer from 1997 to 1999. Mr. Thiees serves on the board of directors of Friende®Children, the Oregon Mentoring
Initiative, the Portland Art Museum, the LeadersiRdtable and the Oregon Coast Aquarium. In 200ydseappointed by the Oregon
Governor as Chairperson of the Quality Educatiom@dssion, a position he continues to hold. He $9 @ co-chair of Portland State
University’s capital endowment campaign. Mr. Thirskarned a Bachelor of Science degree in Busissnistration from Oregon State
University.

Also on Feb. 25, 2005, the Company announced lileaBbard of Directors selected Richard L. Woolwprétired Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Regence Group, to servElaairman of the Board, effective March 1, 200pJaeing Richard G. Reiten who had
served as Chairman of the Board since 2000. MiteReavill continue to serve as a member of the Board

106



Table of Contents

PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRA?

Information concerning the Company’s Board of Dioegs, its Committees and the Audit Committee finahexpert contained in
the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for theyN2&, 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is heliabgrporated by reference.

Age at
Name Dec. 31, 200 Positions held during last five years

Mark S. Dodson 59 President and Chief Executive Officer (2003- Prgsident, Chief Operating Officer and
General Counsel (20002); Senior Vice President, Public Affairs and Gah€ounse
(199¢-01).

Michael S. McCoy 61 Executive Vice President, Customer and Utility Gytiens (2000- ); Senior Vice
President, Customer and Utility Operations (1-00).

David H. Anderson 43 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officédd@4- ); Chief Financial Officer,
TXU Gas Company (2004); Senior Vice President,ddpad Accounting Officer and
Controller (2003-2004); Vice President of InvesRmlations and Shareholder
Services, TXU Corp. (19-2003).

Gregg S. Kantor 47 Senior Vice President, Public and Regulatory A§4R2003- ); Vice President, Public
Affairs and Communications (19-02).

Beth A. Ugoretz 49 Senior Vice President and General Counsel (20052 ®&Xxecutive Vice President,
Kindercare Learning Centers, Inc. (1-00).

Lea Anne Doolittle 49 Vice President, Human Resources (2000- ); Direat Compensation (1993-2000),
PacifiCorp.

Stephen P. Fell 49 Treasurer and Controller (1S- ).

C. J. Rue 59 Secretary (19¢- ); Assistant Treasurer (1¢- ).

Richelle T. Luthel 36 Assistant Secretary (20- ); Associate, Stoel Rives, LLP (1¢-02).

Each executive officer serves successive annuaktgrresent terms end May 26, 2005. There aremibyfaelationships among the
Company’s executive officers.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for gll@yees and a Financial Code of Ethics that appdiegnior financial
employees, both of which are available on the Camisavebsite at www.nwnatural.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information concerning “Executive Compensatioaiitained in the Company’s definitive Proxy Stageirfor the May 26,
2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is hereby iporated by reference. Information related to Exgeudfficers as of Dec. 31, 2004 is
reflected in Part Ill, Item 10, above.
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ITEM 12.

SECURIT'OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMET

The following table sets forth information regamlicompensation plans under which equity securitiegke Company are
authorized for issuance as of Dec. 31, 2004 (see Alto the Consolidated Financial Statements):

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holdel

Long-Term Incentive Pla
(LTIP) (Target Award}

Restated Stock Option Pl
Employee Stock Purchase P

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holdel

Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan (EDCPY

Directors Deferred Compensation
Plan (DDCPY¥

Non-Employee Directors Stock
Compensation Plah

Total

(@)

Number of securitie

to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding option:
warrants and rights

64,00(
431,471
32,00¢

8,89:¢

88,12:

N/A

624,49(

(b)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding option

warrants and right

N/A
$ 28.3¢
$ 26.9(

N/A

N/A

N/A

(c) N
Number of securities
remaining available fi

future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected in
column (a))

436,00(
1,659,471
75,50¢

N/A

N/A

N/A

2,170,97

The information captioned “Beneficial Ownership@dmmon Stock by Directors and Executive Officermsiitined in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the May 2805 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorpeatdterein by reference.

1

2

3

Shares issued pursuant to the LTIPatantlude an exercise price, but are payable byGbmpany when the award criteria are satisfiethdfmaximum awards were paid
pursuant to the performance-based awards outsadiidec. 31, 2004, the number of shares shownlimm (a) would increase by 59,000 shares anduhgber of shares shown in
column (c) would decrease by 59,000 shares.
At the participant’s election, defermmounts may be credited to either a “cash accaurd’Company “stock account.” If deferred amowrtscredited to stock accounts, such
accounts are credited with a number of shares basélde purchase price of the Common Stock on éx¢ purchase date under the Company’s Dividend\Retment and Stock Purchase
Plan, and such accounts are credited with additsimres based on the deemed reinvestment of didgdé\t the election of the participant, deferrathibces in the stock accounts are
payable after termination of Board service or empient in a lump sum, in installments over a periotito exceed 10 years in the case of the DDCR5grears in the case of the EDCP,
or in a combination of lump sum and installmentse Tompany has contributed Common Stock to théeteusf the Umbrella Trust such that the Umbrellastholds the number of shares
of Common Stock equal to the number of shares w@dd all participants’ stock accounts. Effectdan. 1, 2005, the EDCP and DDCP were replacedépéierred Compensation Plan
for Directors and Executives.

The material features of this planme particularly described in Note 4 to the Coiusted Financial Statements included in this report
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTION¢

The information captioned “Certain Relationshipd &elated Transactions” in the Company’s definifirexy Statement for the
May 26, 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is bgiiacorporated by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICE
The information captioned “Selection of Registelgdiependent Public Accounting Firm” in the Compangéfinitive Proxy
Statement for the May 26, 2005 Annual Meeting odrgholders is hereby incorporated by reference.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(@) The following documents are filed as part of tiepart:

1. A list of all Financial Statements and Suppleme8tiedules is incorporated by reference to Ite

2. List of Exhibits filed:

Reference is made to the Exhibit Index commencimgage 111
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedeti@o duly authorized.

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

Date: March 1, 2005 By: /sl Mark S. Dodson

Mark S. Dodson, President
and Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe date indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/sl Mark S. Dodson

Principal Executive Officer and Direct March 1, 200¢
Mark S. Dodson, President and Chief Executive @f

/s/ David H. Anderson

Principal Financial Office March 1, 200¢
David H. Anderson
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
/sl Stephen P. Feltz
Principal Accounting Office March 1, 200¢
Stephen P. Feltz
Treasurer and Controlls
/sl Timothy P. Boyle
Director )
Timothy P. Boyle )
)
/sl Martha L. Byorum
Director )
Martha L. Byorumr )
)
/s/ John D. Carter
Director )
John D. Carte )
)
/sl C. Scott Gibson
Director )
C. Scott Gibsol )
)
/sl Tod R. Hamachek
Director )
Tod R. Hamache )
)
/sl Randall C. Papé
Director )  March 1, 200t
Randall C. Paé )
)
/sl Richard G. Reiten
Director )
Richard G. Reitel )
)
Director )
Kenneth Thrashe )
)
/sl Russell F. Tromley
Director )

Russell F. Tromle )



/s/ Richard L. Woolworth
Director

Richard L. Woolwortt
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Exhibit Numbe

* 3a.

*3b.

*4a.

*4d.

*Je.

*4f,

*4f.(1)

EXHIBIT INDEX
To
Annual Report on Form 10-K
For Fiscal Year Ended
Dec. 31, 2004

Document

Restated Articles of Incorporation, as filed anigetive June 24, 1988 and amended December
8, 1992, December 1, 1993 and May 27, 1994 (inaatpd herein by reference to Exhibit 3a. to
Form 1(-K for 1994, File No. -994).

Bylaws as amended July 22, 2004 (incorporated hénereference to Exhibit 3 to Form 10-Q
for quarter ended June 30, 2004, File N-15973).

Copy of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of J1ulL946, to Bankers Trust and R. G. Page
(to whom Stanley Burg is now successor), Trustiee®porated herein by reference to Exhibit
7(j) in File No. 2-6494); and copies of Suppleméindentures Nos. 1 through 14 to the
Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated respectivelpfdsine 1, 1949, March 1, 1954, April 1,
1956, February 1, 1959, July 1, 1961, January 84,1®arch 1, 1966, December 1, 1969, April
1, 1971, January 1, 1975, December 1, 1975, Jug81, June 1, 1985 and November 1, 1985
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4¢dfrile No. 33-1929); Supplemental Indenture
No. 15 to the Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dateof dsily 1, 1986 (filed as Exhibit 4(c) in Fi
No. 3:-24168); Supplemental Indentures Nos. 16, 17 anid 18 Mortgage and Deed of Trust,
dated, respectively, as of November 1, 1988, Octtbb&989 and July 1, 1990 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4(c) in File No. 83482); Supplemental Indenture No. 19 to the
Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of June 11 {iB8orporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4(c) in File No. 33-64014); and Suppleméimaenture No. 20 to the Mortgage and
Deed of Trust, dated as of June 1, 1993 (incorpdrhgrein by reference to Exhibit 4(c) in File
No. 3:-53795).

Copy of Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1991, betwee Company and Bankers Trust Compi
Trustee, relating to the Company’s Unsecured Medli@mm Notes (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4(e) in File No. -64014).

Officers’ Certificate dated June 12, 1991 creaftegies A of the Company’s Unsecured
Medium-Term Notes (incorporated herein by referedexhibit 4e. to Form 10-K for 1993,
File No. (-994).

Officers’ Certificate dated June 18, 1993 creafsagies B of the Company’s Unsecured
Medium-Term Notes (incorporated herein by referandéxhibit 4f. to Form 10-K for 1993,
File No. (-994).

Officers’ Certificate dated January 17, 2003 relgtio Series B of the Company’s Unsecured
Medium-Term Notes and supplementing the Officemtificate dated June 18, 1993
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4ft(l}-orm 1K for 2002, File No. -994).
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*49.

*4h.

*4i.

4,

*4K.
*4).
*10j.

*10j.(1)

*10j.(2)

*10j.(3)

*10j.(5)

*10j.(6)

Rights Agreement, dated as of February 27, 19%8yden the Company and Boatmen’s Trust
Company (American Stock Transfer & Trust Compamgcessor), which includes as Exhibit A thel
the form of a Right Certificate and as Exhibit Bitito the Summary of Rights to Purchase Common
Shares (incorporated herein by reference to ExhibitForm 8-A, dated February 27, 1996, File No. 0
994).

Amendment No. 1, dated October 5, 2001, to RiglgseAment, dated February 27, 1996, between the
Company and Boatmen’s Trust Company (American Stwaksfer & Trust Company, successor)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 torfF 10-Q for quarter ended September 30, 2001, File
No. C-994).

Form of Credit Agreement between Northwest Nat@as Company and each of J.P. Morgan Chase
Bank, U.S. Bank National Association, Bank of ArsarN.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, dated as of
October 1, 2004, including Form of Note (incorpethherein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K
dated October 7, 2004, File N¢-15973).

Distribution Agreement, dated September 28, 206¥ray the Company, Merrill Lynch, Pierce Fenner
& Smith Incorporated, UBS Securities LLC, J.P. MamgSecurities Inc. and Piper Jaffray & Co.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1. Féom ¢-K dated October 4, 2004, File Nc-15973).

Form of Secured Medium-Term Notes, Series B (ino@fed herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Form &K dated October 4, 2004, File Nc-15973).

Form of Unsecured Medium-Term Notes, Series B (ipomted herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
Form ¢-K dated October 4, 2004, File N¢-15973).

Transportation Agreement, dated June 29, 1990,dstvthe Company and Northwest Pipeline
Corporation (incorporated herein by reference thikik 10j. to Form 1-K for 1993, File No. -994).

Replacement Firm Transportation Agreement, datgd3ly 1991, between the Company and
Northwest Pipeline Corporation (incorporated hetgimeference to Exhibit 10j.(2) to Form-K for
1992, File No. -994).

Firm Transportation Service Agreement, dated Nowamild, 1993, between the Company and Pacific
Gas Transmission Company (incorporated herein feyerce to Exhibit 10j.(2) to Form 10for 1993
File No. (-994).

Service Agreement, dated June 17, 1993, betweethMest Pipeline Corporation and the Company
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10Qjt(8Form 1(-K for 1994, File No. -994).

Firm Transportation Service Agreement, dated Jind 294, between Pacific Gas Transmission
Company and the Company (incorporated herein ereate to Exhibit 10j.(5) to Form Xfor 1995,
File No. (-994).

Firm Service Agreement between the Company and &vast Energy Inc., dated as of April 1, 2003
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 16¢éom 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 2003, File
No. (-994).
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Executive Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Ré€gtatement) (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Form-K dated September 28, 2004, File N-15973).

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, effectigpt®@mber 1, 2004 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forn-K dated December 20, 2004, File N-15973).

Northwest Natural Gas Company Supplemental Trifgcttve January 1, 200!

Northwest Natural Gas Company Umbrella Trust faeblors, effective January 1, 1991, Restate
of December 1, 2001; Amendment No. 1 to UmbrellasTfor Directors, effective February 27, 2003;
and Amendment No. 2 to Umbrella Trust for Direct@f$ective February 24, 200

Northwest Natural Gas Company Umbrella Trust foe&xives, effective January 1, 1988, Restate
of January 1, 2001; Amendment No. 1 to UmbrellasTfar Executives, effective February 27, 2003;
and Amendment No. 2 to Umbrella Trust for Execugjffective February 24, 20C

Restated Stock Option Plan, as amended effectiwe28a2002 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(a) to Form 1-Q for quarter ended September 30, 2002, File -994).

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, effectivefaanuary 1, 1987, Restated as of January 1, 200
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@e-orm 1+-K for 2002, File No. -994).

Directors Deferred Compensation Plan, effectiveeynl981, restated as of February 26, 2004
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 16fForm 1(-K for 2003, File No. -994).

Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors and Exeesiteffective January 1, 2005 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to For-K dated November 17, 2004, File N-15973).

Form of Indemnity Agreement as entered into betwberCompany and each director and executive
officer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhilfig. to Form 1-K for 1988, File No. -994).
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Non-Employee Directors Stock Compensation Plan, asdeweffective January 1, 2005 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to For-K dated September 28, 2004, File N-15973).

Summary of waiver of forfeiture provisions of Nomployee Directors Stock Compensation Plan for a
deceased directc

Executive Annual Incentive Plan, effective Janubr2003 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi
10 k. to Form 1-K for 2002, File No. -994)

Summary of Compensation Arrangements for ChairnidheoBoard, March 1, 2003 — February 28,
2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit-3 to Form 1-K for 2002, File No. -994).

Form of amended and restated executive changeninot@everance agreement as entered into betweel
the Company and each executive officer (incorpdratrein by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to FormQo0-
for the quarter ended June 30, 2001, File M994).

Form of change in control letter agreement as edterto between the Company and each executive
officer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhilfi(a) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septembe
30, 2001, File No.-994).

Employment Agreement dated July 2, 1997, betweerCttmpany and an executive officer
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@¢a)-orm 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1997, File No. -994).

Amendment dated December 18, 1997 to employmeptaggnt dated July 2, 1997, between the
Company and an executive officer (incorporatedihdrg reference to Exhibit 10p.-1 to Form 10-K for
1997, File No. -994).

Amendment dated September 24, 1998 to employmeeaeagent dated July 2, 1997, as previously
amended, between the Company and an executiveofficcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10
(9) to Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, FileC-994).

Employment Agreement dated December 20, 2002, leettree Company and an executive officer
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit -3 to Form 1-K for 2002, File No. -994).

Employment agreement dated May 11, 1999, betwee&tmpany and an executive officer
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1Géom 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999, File
No. (-994).

Northwest Natural Gas Company L«-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restatedtieffetuly 26,
2001 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhib{c)to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2001, File No. -994).

Form of Restricted Stock Bonus Agreement as entetecdetween the Company and certain executive
officers (incorporated herein by reference to ErHib.3 to Form 8-K dated September 28, 2004, File
No. 1-15973).
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Retirement Agreement and Mutual Release of All @#adated June 25, 2004 entered into between a
former executive officer and the Company (incorpedaherein by reference to Exhibit 10 to Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, File 1-15973).

Amendment to Retirement Agreement and Mutual Relea#\ll Claims between a former executive
officer and the Company dated October 19, 200b(parated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, Filel-15973).

Summary of non-employee director compensationgttffe Jan. 1, 2005 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forn-K dated Feb. 11, 2005, File Nc-15973).

Summary of 2005 compensation for named executifrecos.

rnish the Commission, upguest, a copy of certain instruments definingtsgf holders of long-term
consolidated subsidsanibich authorize securities thereunder in amowhish do not exceed 10% of

the total assets of the Company.

*Incorporated herein by reference as indicated
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST

(a) This Agreement made this first day of Janu®§52 by and between Northwest Natural Gas Compidwey*Company”) and
Wachovia Bank, National Association (the “Trustee”)

(b) WHEREAS, the Company has adopted the nongedldieferred compensation plans listed in Append{@ha “Plans”).

(c) WHEREAS, the Company has incurred or expecisdor liability under the terms of such Plans wiéspect to the individuals
participating in such Plans;

(d) WHEREAS, the Company wishes to establish & {the “Trust”) and to contribute to the Trust asgbat shall be held therein,
subject to the claims of the Company’s creditorthimevent of the Company’s Insolvency, as herefindd, until paid to Plan participants
and their beneficiaries in such manner and at sowds as specified in the Plans.

(e) WHEREAS, it is the intention of the partiestttias Trust shall constitute an unfunded arranggraad shall not affect the status of
the Plans as unfunded plans maintained for thegserpf providing deferred compensation for a sejemtip of management or highly
compensated employees for purposes of Title |®@Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974;

() WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Companyn@ke contributions to the Trust to provide itseitfwa source of funds to assist it in
the meeting of its liabilities under the Plans;
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do hereby establisiTtiist and agree that the Trust shall be compriseld, and disposed of as follov
Section 1Establishment of Trust

(&) The Company hereby deposits with the Trustdrmust shares of Northwest Natural Gas Company comsiock, which shall
become the principal of the Trust to be held, adsténed and disposed of by the Trustee as provid#dds Trust Agreement.

(b) The Trust hereby established shall be irreviecab

(c) The Trust is intended to be a grantor trustybich the Company is the grantor, within the megrof subpart E, part I, subchapter J,
chapter 1, subtitle A of the Internal Revenue Cofd€986, as amended, and shall be construed aoglyd



(d) The principal of the Trust, and any earningsdion shall be held separate and apart from otineisfof the Company and shall be
used exclusively for the uses and purposes of [Paaticipants and general creditors as herein stt.fBlan participants and their beneficial
shall have no preferred claim on, or any benefiovahership interest in, any assets of the Trusy. #ghts created under the Plans and this
Trust document shall be mere unsecured contraggkas of Plan participants and their beneficiaagainst the Company. Any assets held by
the Trust will be subject to the claims of the Camyg's general creditors under federal and statanaie event of Insolvency, as defined in
Section 3(a) herein.

(e) The Company, in its sole discretion, may attamg, or from time to time, make additional dep®sif cash or other property in trust
with the Trustee to augment the principal to belhatiministered and disposed of by the Trustee@sded in this Trust Agreement. Neither
the Trustee nor any Plan participant or beneficiéngll have any right to compel such additionalaéps.

Section 2Payments to Plan Participants and Their Benefi&sari

(a) With respect to any benefit payments due ttiggpants and beneficiaries under the Plans, thmgamy may make such payments
and the Trustee shall, upon request of the Compihgr before or within 30 days after the paymeatedind upon receipt of evidence of such
payments satisfactory to the Trustee, reimburs€trapany from the Trust for such payments. Upordihection of the Company, the
Trustee shall pay benefits owed under a Plan.udhgpayments shall come from the applicable Subfassdefined in Section 5(a) hereof). If
the principal of a Subtrust, and any earnings therare not sufficient to make payments of benéfieccordance with the terms of the Plans,
the Company shall make the balance of each suahgrayas it falls due. The Trustee shall notify @@npany where principal and earnings
are not sufficient. When the Company makes paymerntarticipants and beneficiaries, the Companyl shake any required income tax
withholding and reporting, and shall pay amountdhheld to taxing authorities.

(b) Prior to a Change in Control (as defined int®acl3(d) hereof), the entitlement of a Plan g#wtint or his or her beneficiaries to
benefits under the Plans shall be determined b timapany or such party as it shall designate uthaePlans, and any claim for such beni
shall be considered and reviewed under the proesdgt out in the Plans.

(c) Upon a Change in Control, the Company shallvdeto the Trustee a schedule (the “Payment Sda8dhat indicates the amounts
payable in respect of each Plan participant (aa@dhher beneficiaries), that provides a formulatber instructions acceptable to the Trustee
for determining the amounts so payable, the formvhich such amount is to be paid (as provided fawv@ilable under the Plans), and the
time of commencement for payment of such amouriter Ahe Change in Control, the Trustee shall madgments upon application by the
Plan participants and their beneficiaries fromdpplicable Subtrust in accordance with such Payi@ehedule. The Trustee shall make
provision for the reporting and withholding of afegleral, state or local taxes that may be requodik withheld with respect to the payment
of benefits pursuant to the terms of the Planssinadl pay amounts withheld to the appropriate fgudinthorities or determine that such
amounts have been reported, withheld and paidéy th



Company. After the occurrence of a Change in Chrdrparticipant or beneficiary may apply for payref a Plan benefit by the Company
under the procedures for benefit claims provideth@Plan or may apply for payment by the Trustegcicordance with the Payment
Schedule.

Section 3Trustee Responsibility Regarding Payments to TBesteficiary when Company Is Insolvent.

(&) The Trustee shall cease payment of benefdao participants and their beneficiaries if thapany is Insolvent. The Company
shall be considered “Insolvent” for purposes of fhiust Agreement if:

(1) the Company is unable to pay its debts as lleepme due, or
(2) the Company is subject to a pending proceeding debtor under the United States Bankruptcy Code

(b) At all times during the continuance of this 3tuas provided in Section 1(d) hereof, the priatgnd income of the Trust shall be
subject to claims of general creditors of the Comypander federal and state law as set forth below.

(1) The Board of Directors and the Chief Executdfficer of the Company shall have the duty to infidhe Trustee in writing of
the Company’s Insolvency. If a person claiming éoabcreditor of the Company alleges in writinghte Trustee that the Company has
become Insolvent, the Trustee shall determine vemgtie Company is Insolvent and, pending such aét@tion, the Trustee shall
discontinue payment of benefits to Plan participamttheir beneficiaries.

(2) Unless the Trustee has actual knowledge o€thvapany’s Insolvency, or has received notice fraom@ompany or a person
claiming to be a creditor alleging that the Companinsolvent, the Trustee shall have no duty tpuire whether the Company is
Insolvent. The Trustee may in all events rely ochsevidence concerning the Company’s solvency aslradurnished to the Trustee
and that provides the Trustee with a reasonablis Barsmaking a determination concerning the Comyfmsolvency.

(3) If at any time the Trustee has determined tt@iCompany is Insolvent, the Trustee shall disnaetpayments to Plan
participants or their beneficiaries and shall hiblel assets of the Trust for the benefit of the Camgfs general creditors. Nothing in this
Trust Agreement shall in any way diminish any rigbt Plan participants or their beneficiaries tospe their rights as general creditors
of the Company with respect to benefits due undeiPlans or otherwise.

(4) The Trustee shall resume the payment of berigfiPlan participants or their beneficiaries inaxdance with Section 2 of the
Trust Agreement only after the Trustee has detezththat the Company is not Insolvent (or is no &rigsolvent).

(c) Provided that there are sufficient asset$dafTrustee discontinues the payment of benefita ttee Trust pursuant to Section 3(b)
hereof and subsequently resumes such payments,



the first payment following such discontinuancellsinglude the aggregate amount of all paymentstdu@lan participants or their
beneficiaries under the terms of the Plans foptiwéod of such discontinuance, less the aggregataiat of any payments made to Plan
participants or their beneficiaries by the Compamleu of the payments provided for hereundermiyiany such period of discontinuance.

Section 4Payments to Company.

(a) Except as provided in Sections 2(a), 3, anjl Wébeof, after the Trust has become irrevocahkeGompany shall have no right or
power to direct the Trustee to return to the Corgparto divert to others any of the Trust asseferdeeall benefits have been paid to Plan
participants and their beneficiaries pursuant &téims of the Plans and all fees and expenséssof tust have been paid.

(b) In the event any Subtrust holds Excess AstiesCompany may direct the Trustee to return paatleof the Excess Assets to the
Company. “Excess Assets” are assets of the Sulexaseding 125 percent of the present value dhalbenefits owed to participants and
beneficiaries under the Plan funded through thatr8st. For purposes of this 4(b), the presentevalubenefits owed to participants and
beneficiaries under a Plan with individual accoustfitall be the total value of those accounts. Tleegnt value of benefits owed to participants
and beneficiaries under a Plan without individuaaunts shall be calculated on the basis of assangptvith respect to interest, mortality,
and other factors selected by the actuarial firgaged by the Company from time to time to providkiations of the Plan for financial
reporting purposes. After a Change in Control,assumptions shall continue to be selected by thmadal firm engaged at the time of such
Change in Control, even though the Company engagkféerent actuarial firm for subsequent work.

Section 5Investment Authority.

(a) Contributions to the Trust shall be designdtgthe Company to one of the Subtrusts describg)in2), and (3) below. A
“Subtrust” shall be accounted for as a separatégmoof the Trust assets, and shall include easithgreon. Assets of different Subtrusts may
be commingled for investment as long as the vaélé for each Subtrust is accounted for. Assetsmédlganay not be transferred among
Subtrusts, except as follows. Assets in a Subfandienefits described in (3) shall be transfetged Subtrust for benefits described in (2) to
correspond to transfers by participants betweeestment alternatives under the Plans upon direétion the Company prior to a Change in
Control or by action of the Trustee without directiafter a Change in Control. The Subtrusts arbéshed to fund:

(1) Benefits owed under Plans that are do not radigidual accounts.
(2) Benefits payable in Company common stock uidans that have individual accounts.
(3) Benefits not described in (2) that are owedeurtlans that have individual accounts.

4



Upon a Change in Control, a new separate Subiougiaich category of benefit described in (1), 42 (3) shall be established for
participants who are not covered by the Planseatithe of the Change in Control and their benefiema The new Subtrust shall hold only
contributions designated to it by the Company andferred from a parallel new Subtrust under thigiSn 5(a), and earnings thereon.

(b) Prior to a Change in Control, the Company shalle the right, subject to this Section 5(b),iteat the Trustee with respect to
investments.

(1) The Company may at any time direct the Trusiemegregate all or a portion of any Subtrust $eparate investment accoun
accounts and may appoint one or more investmenageas and/or an investment committee establishedeb@€ompany to direct the
investment and reinvestment of each such investamadunt or accounts. In such event, the Compaaly rstify the Trustee of the
appointment of each such investment manager am/estment committee. No such investment managst Isé related, directly or
indirectly, to the Company, but members of the strent committee may be employees of the Company.

(2) Thereafter (until a Change in Control), the Stee shall make every sale or investment with @dpesuch investment account
as directed in writing by the investment managaneestment committee. It shall be the duty of Tihestee to act strictly in accordance

with each direction. The Trustee shall be undedunty to question any such direction of the investhmeanager or investment
committee, to review any securities or other prgpkeld in such investment account or accountsiaedylby it pursuant to such
directions or to make any recommendations to thestment managers or investment committee withexsp such securities or other
property.

(3) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee hwitt obtaining prior approval or direction fromiamestment manager or
investment committee, shall invest cash balanclkkhyeit from time to time in short term cash edlents including, but not limited to,

through the medium of any short term common, ctilecr commingled trust fund established and naan&d by the Trustee subject to
the instrument establishing such trust fund, Urga$ury Bills, commercial paper (including suchierof commercial paper as may be

available through the Trustee’s Trust Departmeamajtificates of deposit (including certificatestied by the Trustee in its separate
corporate capacity), and similar type securitigth & maturity not to exceed one year; and, furtteee, sell such short term investme
as may be necessary to carry out the instructibas smvestment manager or investment committeardigg more permanent type
investments and directed distributions.

(4) The Trustee shall neither be liable nor resfador any loss resulting to the Trust assetsdason of any sale or purchase of

an investment directed by an investment managivestment committee nor by reason of the failoreake any action with respect to
any investment which was acquired pursuant to api sirection in the absence of further directiohsuch investment manager or
investment committee.



(c) Following a Change in Control, the Trustee hale the sole and absolute discretion in the ig@ment of the Trust assets. In
investing the Trust assets, the Trustee shall densi

(1) the needs of the Plans;
(2) the need for matching of the Trust assets thighliabilities of the Plans; and
(3) the duty of the Trustee to act solely in thetheterests of the participants and their benafies.
(d) The Trustee shall have the right, in its sateidtion, to delegate its investment responsybititan investment manager who may be

an affiliate of the Trustee. In the event the Teesthall exercise this right, the Trustee shallaiamat all times responsible for the acts of an
investment manager. The Trustee shall have thé togburchase an insurance policy or an annuifynd the benefits of the Plans.

(e) The Company shall have the right at any time, faom time to time in its sole discretion, to stitute assets (other than securities
issued by the Trustee or the Company) of equahfaitket value for any asset held by the Trust. Tigi#t is exercisable by the Company in a
nonfiduciary capacity without the approval or cartsaf any person in a fiduciary capacity; providedwever, that, following a Change in
Control, no such substitution shall be permittetbss the Trustee determines that the fair marleegeof the substituted assets are equal.

Section 6Disposition of Income.
During the term of the Trust, all income receivgdite Trust, net of expenses and taxes, shall bienadlated and reinvested.

Section 7 Accounting by Trustee.

The Trustee shall keep accurate and detailed reairdll investments, receipts, disbursements adirather transactions required to be
made, including such specific records as shallgveeal upon in writing between the Company and tlust€e. Within 45 days following the
close of each calendar year and within 45 days #feeremoval or resignation of the Trustee, thasfee shall deliver to the Company a
written account of its administration of the Trdsiring such year or during the period from the elokthe last preceding year to the date of
such removal or resignation, setting forth all istweents, receipts, disbursements and other traosadiffected by it, including a description
of all securities and investments purchased antiwith the cost or net proceeds of such purchassales (accrued interest paid or receivi
being shown separately), and showing all cash,rgesuand other property held in the Trust atehd of such year or as of the date of such
removal or resignation, as the case may be.




Section 8 Responsibility of Trustee.

(a) The Trustee shall act with the care, skill,damce and diligence under the circumstances th@rajing that a prudent person acting
in like capacity and familiar with such matters Wwbuse in the conduct of an enterprise of a likerabter and with like aims, provided,
however, that the Trustee shall incur no liabitdyany person for any action taken pursuant todection, request or approval given by the
Company which is contemplated by, and in conformiityh, the terms of the Plans or this Trust andiven in writing by the Company. In the
event of a dispute between the Company and a gheaylrustee may apply to a court of competensgliction to resolve the dispute

(b) If the Trustee undertakes or defends any litigearising in connection with this Trust or tapect a participant’s or beneficiary’s
rights under the Plans, the Company agrees to inieine Trustee against the Trustee’s costs, regde expenses and liabilities (including,
without limitation, attorneys’ fees and expense$ating thereto and to be primarily liable for syayments. If the Company does not pay
such costs, expenses and liabilities in a reasprimbély manner, the Trustee may obtain paymenmhftioe Trust.

(c) Prior to a Change in Control, the Trustee mayscilt with legal counsel (who may also be coufmethe Company generally) with
respect to any of its duties or obligations hereunBollowing a Change in Control, the Trustee Istelbect independent legal counsel and |
consult with counsel or other persons with respeds duties and with respect to the rights otipgrants or their beneficiaries under the
Plans.

(d) The Trustee may hire agents, accountants, @esdnvestment advisors, financial consultantetber professionals to assist it in
performing any of its duties or obligations hereeindnd may rely on any determinations made by agelnts and information provided to it
by the Company.

(e) The Trustee shall have, without exclusionpalvers conferred on the Trustee by applicable lamgss expressly provided otherwise
herein, provided, however, that if an insurancecyads held as an asset of the Trust, the Trudte# bave no power prior to a Change in
Control to name a beneficiary of the policy othHeart the Trust, to assign the policy (as distinetrfrconversion of the policy to a different
form) other than to a successor Trustee, or to foamy person the proceeds of any borrowing agaireh policy.

(f) Notwithstanding any powers granted to the Teegbursuant to this Trust Agreement or to apple#dl, the Trustee shall not have
any power that could give this Trust the objectifearrying on a business and dividing the gaiesdfrom, within the meaning of section
301.7701-2 of the Procedure and Administrative Retgans promulgated pursuant to the Internal Reeddade.

Section 9Compensation and Expenses of Trustee.

The Trustee shall be reimbursed for all expensdsshall be paid a reasonable fee fixed by it fronetto time. No increase in the fee
shall be effective before 90 days after the Trustee




gives notice to the Company of the increase. Thai@my shall pay the Trustee’s fees and expensast Ho paid, the Trustee shall take
payment of the fees and expenses from the Trustsasghich shall be charged to the Subtrusts ipgntmn to the assets held in each. The
Company shall reimburse the Trust for any feeseapainses paid out of it.

Section 10Resignation and Removal of Trustee.

(a) Prior to a Change in Control, the Trustee nesygn at any time by written notice to the Companmlyich shall be effective 60 days
after receipt of such notice unless the Companytl@drustee agree otherwise. After a Change irtr@bithe Trustee may resign only after
the appointment of a successor Trustee.

(b) The Trustee may be removed by the Company aite§® notice or upon shorter notice accepted by thstee prior to a Change in
Control. After a Change in Control, the Trustee roaly be removed by the Company with written con$erm the number of participants
described in Section 12(a)(1).

(c) If the Trustee seeks to resign or is removéer a Change in Control, a successor Trustee thadifigs under Section 11(a) shall be
selected by one of the following:

(1) The Trustee;
(2) The Company, if written consent for the remawvak given by the number of participants describeéskection 12(a)(1); or
(3) Upon Trustee application, by a court of compejerisdiction.

(d) Upon resignation or removal of the Trustee apgointment of a successor Trustee, all assetsssitrequently be transferred to the
successor Trustee. The transfer shall be complgtaith 60 days after receipt of notice of resigoatiremoval or transfer, unless the
Company extends the time limit.

(e) If the Trustee resigns or is removed before@ngnge in Control, the Company shall appoint @esgor in accordance with Section
11 hereof, by the effective date of resignationemnoval. If no such appointment has been madeTiigtee may apply to a court of
competent jurisdiction for appointment of a sucoess for instructions. All expenses of the Trusiteeonnection with the proceeding shal
allowed as administrative expenses of the Trust.

Section 11 Appointment of Successor.

(a) Any third party, such as a bank trust departmewther party that may be granted corporatdg¢mipowers under state law and that
has total assets in excess of $50 million, mayppomted as a successor to replace the Trusteerapmation or removal. The appointment
shall be effective when accepted in writing by tiesv Trustee, who shall have all of the rights aodgrs of the former Trustee, including
ownership rights in the Trust assets. The formestee shall execute any instrument necessary somably requested by the Company or
successor Trustee to evidence the transfer.




(b) The successor trustee need not examine thedseaad acts of any prior Trustee and may retadispose of existing Trust assets,
subject to Sections 7 and 8 hereof. The successstek shall not be responsible for and the Comphalf indemnify and defend the
successor Trustee from any claim or liability résglfrom any action or inaction of any prior Trestor from any other past event, or any
condition existing at the time it becomes succe$sostee.

Section 12Amendment or Termination.

(a) This Trust Agreement may be amended by a writtstrument executed by the Trustee and the Coynipesiccordance with any of
the following:

(1) A written consent to the amendment is giverpasticipants who constitute a majority in numbeabthe participants in the
Plans and who are owed at least two-thirds of teegnt value of the accrued benefits under thesPlan

(2) The amendment will not have a material adveffect on the rights of any participant in the Rlan
(3) The amendment is necessary to comply with amy tegulation, or other legal requirement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such amendmeal snflict with the terms of the Plans or shalike the Trust revocable after it
become irrevocable in accordance with Section A¢gof.

(b) The Trust shall not terminate until the dateadrich Plan participants and their beneficiariesaw longer entitled to benefits
pursuant to the terms of the Plans. Upon terminagfdhe Trust, any assets remaining in the Truall e returned to the Company after all
fees and expenses of the Trust have been paid.

(c) Upon written approval of all participants arehbficiaries entitled to payment of benefits oweahf a Subtrust, the Company may
terminate that Subtrust prior to the time all bésefwed from the Subtrust have been paid andgbkets of that Subtrust shall be returned to
the Company.

Section 13Miscellaneous.

(a) Any provision of this Trust Agreement prohilditey law shall be ineffective to the extent of augh prohibition, without
invalidating the remaining provisions hereof.

(b) Benefits payable to Plan participants and theieficiaries under this Trust Agreement may moduiticipated, assigned (either at
or in equity), alienated, pledged, encumbered bjestied to attachment, garnishment, levy, execuirosther legal or equitable process.
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(c) This Trust Agreement shall be governed by astrued in accordance with the laws of Oregon.

(d) For purposes of this Trust, Change in Contnallsmean the occurrence of any of the followingres:
(1) The approval by the shareholders of the Commdny

(A) any consolidation, merger or plan of share exgje involving the Company (a “Merger”) as a resfilivhich the holders
of outstanding securities of the Company ordindraying the right to vote for the election of di@s (“Voting Securities”)
immediately prior to the Merger do not continuéntidd at least 50% of the combined voting powethef dutstanding Voting
Securities of the surviving corporation or a pam@rporation of the surviving corporation immedigatafter the Merger,
disregarding any Voting Securities issued to aaingtd by such holders in respect of securitieqgfather party to the Merger;

(B) any sale, lease, exchange or other transfamn@transaction or a series of related transagtiohall, or substantially all,
the assets of the Company; or

(C) the adoption of any plan or proposal for tlggiilation or dissolution of the Company;

(2) At any time during a period of two consecutyears, individuals who at the beginning of suchiqueconstituted the Board
(“Incumbent Directors”) shall cease for any reagpnonstitute at least a majority thereof; provideowever, that the term “Incumbent
Director” shall also include each new director tdelacduring such two-year period whose nominatioalection was approved by two-
thirds of the Incumbent Directors then in office; o

(3) Any Person (as hereinafter defined) shall, essalt of a tender or exchange offer, open markethases or privately
negotiated purchases from anyone other than thep@oyn have become the beneficial owner (withintteaning of Rule 13d-3 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchafigi)), directly or indirectly, of Voting Securities repesging 20 percent or more
the combined voting power of the then outstandingng Securities. “Person” shall mean and includy iadividual, corporation,
partnership, group, association or other “persan,5uch term is used in Section 14(d) of the Exghdct, other than the Company or
any employee benefit plan(s) sponsored by the Cagpa

10



Section 14Effective Date.
The effective date of this Trust Agreement shalldpuary 1, 2005.

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Mark S. Dodson By: /s/ John N. Smith IlI
Its: President and Chief Executive Offic Its: Senior Vice Presidel
Date Signed: February 24, 20 Date Signed: March 1, 20(
APPENDIX A

List of Plans covered by Northwest Natural Gas CanypSupplemental Trust as of January 1, 2005:
Northwest Natural Gas Company Deferred Compens&tan for Directors and Executives
Northwest Natural Gas Company Supplemental ExeeRistirement Plan
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
UMBRELLA TRUST ™FOR DIRECTORS
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1991

RESTATED AS OF DECEMBER 1, 2001

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

One Pacific Squar

220 N.W. 2nc

Portland, Oregon 972( Compan

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.
301 North Main Stree
Winstor-Salem, North Carolina 271-3099 Trustet

The Company has adopted the following plans (tHari'$?) for the benefit of directors of the Compamd its affiliates:

Northwest Natural Gas Directors Deferred Compeosd®lan (“DDCP”)
Bylaws Article 1ll, Section 5 on Directors RetirentBenefits (“Retirement Bylaw”)

The Plans are administered by an administrativencittee (the “Committee”) appointed by the Compdhthe Plans are administered by
more than one (1) Committee at any time, refereirctss Trust Agreement to the Committee whictatelto a particular Plan shall refer to
the Committee which administers that Plan, anthafreference does not relate to a particular Rlaal) refer to all of such Committees. The
purpose of this trust is to give Plan participagresater security by placing assets in trust forargg to pay benefits or, if the Company
becomes insolvent, to pay creditors. The trugttisnded to be a grantor trust, the income of wiidhxable to the Company. No contribution
to or income of the trust is to be taxable to Riarticipants until benefits are distributed to them

The Company and the original trustee of this tassablished this trust effective as of January9®1lpursuant to a Trust Agreement
dated as of that date. The Company and the Trhstedy restate this trust effective as of Decemb&001 on the following terms:

ARTICLE |

Effective Date; Duration

1.01 Effective Date
This trust shall be effective January 1, 1991. frhst year shall coincide with the Company’s fisgadr, which is the calendar year.
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1.02 Duration

1.02-1 This trust shall continue in effect untlithle assets of the trust fund are exhausted thrdigiribution of benefits to
participants, payment to general creditors in treneof insolvency, payment of fees and expenséiseoTrustee, and return of
remaining funding of a Subtrust pursuant to 1.02-2.

1.02-2 Except as provided in 1.03, the trust dhalirrevocable with respect to amounts contribtibeiti for a Plan until all benefit
rights covered by the Subtrust for that Plan atisfé&ad. The Trustee shall then return to the Comypeny assets remaining in the
Subtrust for that Plan.

1.023 If the existence of this trust is held to be ERFunding or Tax Funding by a federal court andesge from that holding a
no longer timely or have been exhausted, this shiall terminate. The Board of Directors of the @amy (the “Board”) may also
terminate this trust if it determines, based ompinion of legal counsel which is satisfactoryhe fTrustee, that either (i) judicial
authority or the opinion of the U.S. Departmentabor, Treasury Department or Internal Revenuei8erfas expressed in proposed or
final regulations, advisory opinions or rulings,similar administrative announcements) creategifgtant risk that the trust will be
held to be ERISA Funding or Tax Funding, or (ii) ISR or the Internal Revenue Code (the “Cod&fjuires the trust to be amended
way that creates a significant risk that the toatitbe held to be ERISA Funding or Tax Fundingddailure to so amend the trust could
subject the Company to material penalties. Upoh sietermination, the assets of each Subtrust rénggafter payment of the Trustee’
fees and expenses shall be distributed as follows:

(a) Such assets shall be transferred to a newastgblished by the Company which is not deeméx tBRISA Funding or
Tax Funding, but which is similar in all other resps to this trust, if the Company determines ithiatpossible to establish such a
trust.

(b) If the Company determines that it is not pdgsib establish the trust in (a) above, then tlse@sshall be distributed to
the Company if the Written Consent of Participaatsdefined in 1.02-6, is obtained for such distidn.

(c) If the Company determines that it is not pdgsib establish the trust in (a) above and thet@friConsent of Participants
is not obtained to distribute the assets to the [@2om, then the assets shall be allocated in prigpoid the accrued and vested
benefits of the participants and distributed tarttie lump sums. Any assets remaining shall beitisgted to the Company.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee ktistribute funds to a participant to the extdrdtta federal court has held
that the interest of the participant in this trigsihcludible for federal income tax purposes ia gross income of the participant
prior to actual payment of Plan benefits to theaipgant and appeals from that holding are no lorigeely or have been
exhausted. This provision shall also apply to asydficiary of a participant.
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1.02-4 This trust is “ERISA Funding” if it preverasiy of the Plans from meeting the “unfunded” ciite of the exceptions to
various requirements of Title | of the EmployeeiRehent Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) folaps that are unfunded and
maintained primarily for the purpose of providingfeired compensation for a select group of managearéhighly compensated
employees.

1.02-5 This trust is “Tax Funding” if it causes ih&erest of a participant in this trust to be umible for federal income tax
purposes in the gross income of the participamirfpd actual payment of Plan benefits to the pigdiat.

1.02-6 “Written Consent of Participants” means,tfag purposes of this trust, consent in writingolyticipants who (i) are a
majority in number and (ii) have at least sixty-ahd two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) in value of tieeraed benefits of all participants in
the Plans which are subject to this trust on thie dasuch consent.

1.03_Revocability

1.03-1 This trust shall become irrevocable uponigheance by the Internal Revenue Service of afwiletter ruling establishing
that its existence and ownership of assets doawtecthe benefit rights of participants under tlh@d$to be taxable currently. If such a
ruling is denied or if the Internal Revenue Sendeelines to issue such a ruling, the Company reagke the trust and take possession
of all assets held by the Trustee for the trust.

1.03-2 Notwithstanding the provisions of 1.03-larify of the events described in 2.01-4 has occuthedCompany may declare
the trust to be irrevocable.

1.04 Change in Control

1.04-1 On a Change in Control described in 1.0é@ trust assets shall be held for participants hdmb benefit rights under the
Plans before the Change in Control occurred. 1{Gbepany makes contributions for benefits owedew participants under a Plan
following a Change in Control, such contributiomslany insurance contracts or other assets purdhetiethem shall be held in a new
Subtrust separate from the existing Subtrust fevipus participants. The existing Subtrust shaliec@ll the benefits provided by the
Plan for a previous participant, including benediterued after the Change in Control.

1.04-2 A “Change in Control” means the occurreniceny of the following events:
(a) The approval by the shareholders of the CompémayCorporate Transaction;

(b) At any time during a period of two consecutyears, individuals who at the beginning of suchiqaeconstituted the
board of directors of the Company (“Incumbent Dioeg”) shall cease for any reason to constituteast a majority thereof;
provided, however, that the term “Incumbent Dirgtgtall also include each new director electedrdusuch two-year period
whose nomination or election was approved by tvia¢hof the Incumbent Directors then in office; or
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(c) Any person (as such term is used in Sectiod)ldf(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Aatther than the
Company or any employee benefit plan sponsoretidfCbmpany) shall, as a result of a tender or exgshaffer, open market
purchases or privately negotiated purchases fromranother than the Company, have become the lsalafivner (within the
meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Act), directlyratirectly, of securities of the Company ordinatigving the right to vote for the
election of directors (“Voting Securities”) represiag twenty percent (20%) or more of the combimeting power of the then
outstanding Voting Securities.

1.04-3 “Corporate Transaction” means any of thiofahg:

(a) any consolidation, merger or plan of share argle involving the Company (a “Mergeit) which the Company is not t
continuing or surviving corporation or pursuantoich shares of Common Stock would be converteul¢ash, securities or other
property, other than a Merger involving shares omthon Stock in which the holders of shares of Com&tmck immediately
prior to the Merger have the same proportionateayahip of common stock of the surviving corporatimmediately after the
Merger;

(b) any sale, lease, exchange or other transf@m@ntransaction or a series of related transagitiofhall, or substantially all,
the assets of the Company; or

(c) the adoption of any plan or proposal for tlygiililation or dissolution of the Company.
ARTICLE Il
Trust Fund

2.01 Contributions

2.01-1 The Company shall contribute to the trushsamounts as the Committee shall reasonably dec&lpecessary to provide
for all benefits payable under the Plans in caslagh Benefits”), including amounts to purchaserisarance contracts and to pay
premiums and loan interest payments, all as destiib2.02-1. The time of payment of such contidng shall be decided by the
Committee, except as provided in 2.01-3.

2.01-2 If a participant in the DDCP elects under BEDCP to defer shares of common stock of the Comf&ommon Stock”)
awarded to the participant under the Company’s Bomployee Directors Stock Compensation Plan (theDSEP”), promptly after the
deferral election becomes irrevocable the Admiatstrof the NEDSCP shall cause the Common Stocjesuto such irrevocable
deferral to be transferred to the Trustee as aibaomibn to this trust. The Common Stock so contiéal shall nevertheless remain suk
to forfeiture under the terms of the NEDSCP priovésting under the NEDSCP. If a participant inEi2CP elects under the DDCP to
defer Fees (as defined in the DDCP) into the pgpgit’'s Stock Account (as defined in the DDCP), @ahgount of such Fees deferred to
the participant’s Stock Account shall be contrilouby the Company to the trust at the time that eegpaid to other directors who do
not elect to defer the payment of such Fees. Aa as@racticable after January 1, 1998, the Comphaly contribute to the trust a
number of shares of Common Stock



equal to the number of shares of Common Stock ter@dd the Retirement Benefit Accounts (as definettie DDCP) of all Directors
under the DDCP.

2.01-3 The Company shall, upon the occurrence pobéthe events described in 2.01-4 (“Triggeringekt’) and annually
thereafter if the Triggering Event results in a @g&in Control, contribute to the trust the sunthef following:

(a) The present value of the remaining premiumsthednterest on any policy loan on insurance @mtsr held in the trust.

(b) The amount by which the present value of alCBenefits payable under the Plans exceeds the wélall trust assets
other than those required under 2.02-2 or 2.02&tmvested in Common Stock or Acquiror Stock.lEparticipant’s Cash
Benefit for purposes of calculating present vahalde the highest Cash Benefit the participantiddiave under the Plan within
the twenty-four (24) months following the TriggegiEvent, assuming that no changes are made irattieipants level of incom
or deferral, that service on the Board continuedvienty-four (24) months at the same rate of camspgon, and that the
participant receives any benefit enhancement peavit the Plans upon a Change in Control. The &mér contracts shall be
valued at cash surrender value, and other ass#ig tifust shall be valued at their fair marketieal

(c) A reasonable estimate provided by the Trustéts éees due over the remaining duration of thistt

Any contribution to the trust under 2.01-3 due fbrggering Event shall be returned to the Compang (1) year after delivery of
such contribution to the Trustee unless a Chan@oimtrol shall have occurred during such one (&r yeriod, if the Company requests
such return within forty-five (45) days after sumte (1) year period. If no such request is madkiwihe forty-five (45) day period,
then, subject to 2.03-1, the contribution shalldme a permanent part of the trust fund. The ongda) period shall start over again in
the event of and upon the date of any subsequeenta Change in Control. A “Potential Change ion@ol” shall include the events
described in 2.01-4(a) or (b).

2.01-4 The events referred to in 2.01-3 shall idelthe following:

(a) The Company becomes aware that preliminanefinitive copies of a proxy statement and informatstatement or oth
information have been filed with the Securities &xthange Commission pursuant to Rule 14a-6, R4de5] or Rule 14f-1 under
the Act relating to a Potential Change in Contfahe Company.

(b) The delivery to the Company pursuant to Rulé-324inder the Act of a Tender Offer Statement irgdgtio Voting
Securities of the Company.

(c) The termination of any of the Plans by the Campor any amendment to any of the Plans which eveeduce the
accrued benefits currently provided for under ahguzh Plans.
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(d) Failure by the Company to contribute, withirtgi(60) days of receipt of a written notice fronetTrustee, the full
amount of any insufficiency in trust assets thattpuired to pay any benefit that is payable updirection from the Committee
pursuant to 3.02-2.

2.01-5 The calculations required under 230dhall be based on the actuarial assumption®gétih the attached Exhibit A, whic
prior to a Change in Control, may be revised byGbenmittee from time to time. For purposes of 2304}, the discount rate shall be
same as the rate applied to determine the preaars of all Cash Benefits payable under the Plans.

2.01-6 The Trustee shall accept the contributioaderby the Company and shall hold them as a tuuast for the payment of
benefits under the Plans. The Trustee shall noégonsible for determining the required amourttasitributions or for collecting any
contribution not voluntarily paid. Contributions ynbe in cash or in kind.

2.02 Investments

2.02-1 Except as provided in 2.02-2 or 2.02-3 tthst fund may be invested in insurance contrd@serftracts”). Such Contracts
may be purchased by the Company and transferréggk tdrustee as in-kind contributions or may be pased by the Trustee with the
proceeds of cash contributions. The purchase aldihigoof such Contracts shall be an investmentotiée by the Company, pursuant to
2.02-5. The Company'’s contributions to the trustiishclude sufficient cash to make projected pramipayments on such Contracts
and payments of any interest due on loans secyréltblcash value of such Contracts. The Trustek Isdnee the power to exercise all
rights, privileges, options and elections grantgaibpermitted under any Contract or under thesrolethe insurance company
(“Insurer”). Prior to the occurrence of any of #éaents referred to in 2.01-4, the exercise by thest€e of any incidents of ownership
under any Contract shall be subject to the diraatiothe Committee.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to thet@ry, neither the Company nor the Trustee shalidble for the refusal of
any Insurer to issue or change any Contract orr@otst or to take any other action requested by thstee; nor for the form,
genuineness, validity, sufficiency or effect of @gntract or Contracts held in the trust; nor far &ct of any person or persons that |
render any such Contract or Contracts null and;vaid for failure of any Insurer to pay the procgeedlany such Contract or Contracts
as and when the same shall become due and paypabligr any delay in payment resulting from anyvismn contained in any such
Contract or Contracts; nor for the fact that foy apason whatsoever (other than its own negligenedlliful misconduct) any Contract
or Contracts shall lapse or otherwise become uectitile.

2.02-2 To the extent that contributions of Commawck are made to this trust under 2.01-2, the fiusd shall continue to be
invested in such shares of Common Stock. Any caslributions made to this trust under 2.01-2 sbalinvested by the Trustee in
Common Stock by purchasing Common Stock under tragany’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchéese (the “DRSPP”) on
the next Investment Date (as defined in the DRSRIPYlividends received on Common Stock held in tihest under this 2.02-2 shall be
reinvested in



Common Stock pursuant to the DRSPP. The purchasbading of Common Stock under this 2.D2hall be an investment directed
the Company, pursuant to 2.02-5.

2.02-3 Notwithstanding 2.02-2, following a Corp@diransaction, the trust fund shall no longer lvested in Common Stock.
Except as provided below, if Common Stock is cotedpr exchanged in the Corporate Transaction iolevbr in part for common
stock of the acquiring company (“Acquiror StockBhen (a) the trust fund shall continue to be ineesih such shares of Acquiror Stock,
(b) any cash contributions thereafter made totthist under 2.01-2 shall be invested by the Trustéequiror Stock by purchasing
Acquiror Stock in the public market as soon as ficable, with related brokerage commissions paithieyCompany, and (c) the
purchase and holding of Acquiror Stock under thi223 shall be an investment directed by the Compaursuant to 2.02-5. If a
participant elects pursuant to Paragraph 3(g)(ithe DDCP to transfer the amount credited in thdipipant’s Stock Account and
Retirement Benefit Account to the participan€ash Account, then the Trustee shall sell thebmurof shares of Acquiror Stock equa
the number of shares then credited to the partitip&tock Account and Retirement Benefit Accoumthe public market as soon as
practicable following the effectiveness of suctctn, with related brokerage commissions paidigy@ompany.

2.02-4 If the Trustee is required to invest caghtrdioutions by purchasing Acquiror Stock in the feimarket or is required to sell
Acquiror Stock in the public market, the followipgovisions shall apply:

(a) Purchases and sales of Acquiror Stock shathdde on the date on which the Trustee receives tihenCompany in good
order all information and documentation necessamcturately effect such purchases and sales(thrgicase of purchases, the
subsequent date on which the Trustee has receiwem aransfer of the funds necessary to make pucbhases). Purchases and
sales of Acquiror Stock shall be made on the oparket on such day unless the following applies:

(i) The Trustee is unable to determine the numbshares required to be purchased or sold on saghod

(i) If the Trustee is unable to purchase or d&dl total number of shares required to be purchasedld on such day
as a result of market conditions; or

(iii) If the Trustee is prohibited by the Securitiand Exchange Commission, the New York Stock Exgbaor any
other regulatory body from purchasing or selling anall of the shares required to be purchasesblal on such day.

(b) In the event of the occurrence of the circumsts described in (i), (ii) or (iii) above, the $tee shall purchase or sell
such shares as soon as possible thereafter aridistexmine the price of such purchases or salbs the average purchase or sale
price of all such shares purchased or sold. Thetéeumay follow written directions from the Compaoyleviate from the above
purchase procedures.



2.02-5 Except as otherwise required by 2.02-2 @2-3, the Trustee shall invest the trust fund in adance with written directior
by the Committee. The Trustee shall act only agdaministrative agent in carrying out the directegestment transactions and shall not
be responsible for the investment decision. Ifraaled transaction violates the duty to diverdifymaintain liquidity or to meet any
other investment standard under this trust or apple law, the entire responsibility shall restuite Company. The Trustee shall be
fully protected in acting upon or complying withyainvestment objectives, guidelines, restrictionslioections provided in accordance
with this paragraph.

2.02-6 If the Trustee does not receive instructiomis the Committee for the investment of part boéthe trust fund, the Trustee
shall invest it in securities or other propertyactordance with applicable law. Permissible investt® shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

(a) Preferred or common stocks, notes, debenthogsls or other securities.

(b) Mutual funds, money market funds, commerciglgrasavings and loan accounts, certificates obsiepnd savings
accounts, including deposits bearing a reasonaldeof interest in the savings department of thestbe.

(c) Real estate or mortgages.

2.02-7 The Company shall be responsible for fitupgropriate registration forms and all other repogtjuired under Federal or
state securities laws with respect to the ownershithis trust of Common Stock, including, withdmtitation, any reports required
under Section 13 or 16 of the Act, and shall imraty notify the Trustee in writing of any requirent to stop purchases of Common
Stock pending the filing of any report. The Compahgll be responsible for the registration of atanfnterests required under Federal
or state securities laws.

2.03 Recapture of Excess Assets

2.0341 In the event any Subtrust shall hold Excess As#la¢ Committee, at its option, may direct thestea to return part or all
such Excess Assets to the Company.

2.03-2 “Excess Assets” are (a) assets of any Ssthftother than those required under 2.02-2 or 3.62be invested in Common
Stock or Acquiror Stock) exceeding one hundred tyime percent (125%) of the present value of @esh Benefits due participants in
such Subtrust, (b) shares of Common Stock reqliye2i02-2 to be held in any Subtrust in excessi@eftumber of shares of Common
Stock then credited to the Stock Accounts and Beitnt Benefit Accounts of all participants under BDCP, and (c) shares of
Acquiror Stock required by 2.02-3 to be held in &uptrust in excess of the number of shares of hogStock then credited to the
Stock Accounts and Retirement Benefit Accountsligbarticipants under the DDCP.

2.03-3 The calculation required by 2.03-2 shalbheed on the terms of the Plans and the actuasahgptions set forth in Exhibit
A. Before a Change in Control, the




calculations shall be made by an actuary selectetidbCompany. After a Change in Control, the dakions shall be made by an
actuary selected by the Trustee, provided the Cdteeninay select the actuary with the Written CohséPRarticipants.

2.04 Subtrusts

2.04-1 The Trustee shall establish a Subtrustdohélan to which it shall credit contributions foat Plan. The account shall
reflect an undivided interest in assets of thettiwsd and shall not require any segregation ofigaar assets, except that an insurance
contract covering benefits of a particular Planidteheld in the Subtrust for that Plan and Comr8tock or Acquiror Stock covering
benefits of a particular Plan shall be held in$ubtrust for that Plan.

2.04-2 The Trustee shall allocate investment egeand losses of the trust fund among the Subtiugt®portion to their
balances, except that changes in the value ofsamance contract shall be allocated to the Subkousthich it is held and changes in
value of, and dividends paid on, Common Stock aqukmr Stock shall be allocated to the Subtrustifbich it is held. Payments to
general creditors during Insolvency Administratiorder 5.02 shall be charged against the Subtmigioportion to their balances,
except that the payment of benefits to a Plan@pént as a general creditor shall be charged agtiia Subtrust for that Plan.

2.05 Substitution of Other Property

2.05-1 The Company shall have the power to reaeqart or all of the trust fund (other than fundeds required under 2.02-2 or
2.02-3 to be invested in Common Stock or Acquinmc®) at any time, by substituting for it other pesty of equivalent value. Such
power is exercisable in a nonfiduciary capacity.

2.05-2 The value of any insurance contracts reaeduinder 2.05-1 shall be the present value oféuytuojected cash flow of
benefits payable under the Contract. The projectiall include death benefits based on reasonabttality assumptions. The value of
all other assets in the trust fund shall be ar tta# market value. Values shall be determinedHgyTrustee.

2.06 Administrative Powers of Trustee

2.06-1 Subiject in all respects to applicable piiowis of this Trust Agreement and the Plans, thestBreishall have the rights,
powers and privileges of an absolute owner whefirdgaith property of the trust, including (witholitniting the generality of the
foregoing) the powers listed below:

(&) To sell, convey, transfer, exchange, partitiease, and otherwise dispose of any of the asféte trust at any time held
by the Trustee under this Trust Agreement;

(b) To exercise any option, conversion privilegepscription right given the Trustee as the ovai@mny security held in
the trust; to vote any corporate stock,




including Common Stock or Acquiror Stock, eithepirson or by proxy, with or without power of sutgion; to consent to or
oppose any reorganization, consolidation, mergadjustment of financial structure, sale, leasetloer disposition of the assets
any corporation or other organization, the seasitif which may be an asset of the trust; andke aay action in connection
therewith and receive and retain any securitiesltiag therefrom;

(c) To deposit any security with any protective@srganization committee, and to delegate to soaimaittee such power
and authority with respect thereto as the Trustag deem proper, and to agree to pay out of thé $uch portion of the expenses
and compensation of such committee as the Trustés,discretion, shall deem appropriate;

(d) To cause any property of the trust to be issheltl or registered in the name of the Trusteeustee, or in the name of
one (1) or more of its nominees, or one (1) or nmmmainees of any system for the central handlingegfrities, or in such form
that title will pass by delivery, provided that tfecords of the Trustee shall in all events indi¢he true ownership of such

property;
(e) To renew or extend the time of payment of apijgation due or to become due;

(f) To commence or defend lawsuits or legal or adstiative proceedings; to compromise, arbitrateattle claims, debts or
damages in favor of or against the trust; to deloreaccept, in either total or partial satisfastaf any indebtedness or other
obligation, any property; to continue to hold fack period of time as the Trustee may deem apmi@pany property so received;
and to pay all costs and reasonable attorneys'ifieesnnection therewith out of the assets of thstt

(g) To grant options to purchase or to acquireanito purchase any real property;
(h) To foreclose any obligation by judicial procaegor otherwise;

() To manage any real property in the trust inghme manner as if the Trustee were the absoluterawereof, including
the power to lease the same for such term or teiithin or beyond the existence of the trust andnugpach conditions, including
(but not by way of limitation) agreements for theghase or disposal of buildings thereon and opttorthe tenant to renew such
lease from time to time, or to purchase such ptypas the Trustee may deem proper;

(j) To borrow money from any person in such amoumt®n such terms and for such purposes as théeérun its
discretion, may deem appropriate; and in connechierewith, to execute promissory notes, mortgagegher obligations and to
pledge or mortgage any trust assets as securitlytcalend money on a secured or unsecured baaisytperson other than a party
in interest;

(k) To appoint one (1) or more persons or entdigsncillary trustee or suhistee for the purpose of investing in and hol
title to real or personal property
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or any interest therein located outside the Statéooth Carolina; provided that any such ancillaystee or sub-trustee shall act

with such power, authority, discretion, duties, &muctions of the Trustee as shall be specifiethéinstrument establishing such
ancillary or sub-trust, including (without limitati) the power to receive, hold and manage propeay},or personal, or undivided
interests therein; and the Trustee may pay thenadde expenses and compensation of such andiiistees or sub-trustees out
of the trust;

() To deposit any securities held in the trustwatsecurities depository;

(m) To hold such part of the assets of the trustwested for such limited periods of time as maybeessary for purposes
orderly account administration or pending requul@édctions, without liability for payment of intese

(n) To determine how all receipts and disbursemsimadl be credited, charged or apportioned as lmtweome and
principal, and the decision of the Trustee shallil@ and not subject to question by any partioipar beneficiary of the trust; and

(0) Generally to do all acts, whether or not exgiyeauthorized, which the Trustee may deem necgssatesirable for the
orderly administration or protection of the trushd.

2.06-2 The Trustee may engage one (1) or more erdignt attorneys, accountants, actuaries, appsaisether experts (the
“Experts”) for any purpose, including the deterntioma of Excess Assets. The determination of theetspshall be final and binding on
the Company, the Trustee, and all of the partidipanless within thirty (30) days after receivindetermination deemed by any
participant to be adverse, any participant inigageit in a court of competent jurisdiction seekéipgpropriate relief. The Trustee shall
have no duty to oversee or independently evalltel¢termination of the Experts. The Trustee dl@mhluthorized to pay the fees and
expenses of any Experts out of the assets of tlsefund.

2.06-3 The Company shall from time to time pay tafteferences in this Trust Agreement to the paymetaxes shall include
interest and applicable penalties) of any andiati&whatsoever which at any time are lawfully é&elvor assessed upon or become
payable in respect of the trust fund, the incomargr property forming a part thereof, or any sdguransaction pertaining thereto. To
the extent that any taxes levied or assessed tyeanust fund are not paid by the Company or céedelsy the Company pursuant to the
last sentence of this paragraph, the Trustee ghglsuch taxes out of the trust fund, and the Compphall upon demand by the Trustee
deposit into the trust fund an amount equal toatin@unt paid from the trust fund to satisfy suchli@bility. If requested by the
Company, the Trustee shall, at the Company’s expermitest the validity of such taxes in any mamieemed appropriate by the
Company or its counsel, but only if it has receiaadndemnity bond or other security satisfactorit to pay any expenses of such
contest. Alternatively, the Company may itself esttthe validity of any such taxes, but any suattest shall not affect the Company’s
obligation to reimburse the trust fund for taxe&lgeom the trust fund.
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2.06-4 In the event a participant’s beneficiaryigieation results in a participant or the participmspouse being deemed to have
made a “generation-skipping transfer” as define8eation 2611 of the Code, then to the extentttie@participant or participant’s
“executor,” as said term is defined in the Codetlierspouse of the participant or said spousetatsty executor in the case of a
generation-skipping transfer deemed to have beeate g a participant’s spouse), have not previoussd the total generatiakipping
transfer exemption that is available under Sei@8il of the Code to such transferor, such unusehption shall be allocated in the
manner prescribed by Section 2632 of the Code péxbat (a) any generation-skipping transfer résglirom said beneficiary
designation shall be excluded from the allocatand (b) the method of allocation under Section 2684l be reversed so that such
unused portion of said transferor's exemption sbhalapplied first to trusts or trust equivalentsvbich transferor is the deemed
transferor and from which taxable distributionsucand, second, to direct skips occurring at saidsferor’'s death. Any portion of said
transferor’s total generation-skipping transfermagéon not used pursuant to the provisions of tlewipus sentence shall be allocated to
the transfer resulting from the beneficiary destmpmathat gives rise to the generation-skippingsfar hereunder.

Notwithstanding any provisions in the Plans or ffrigst Agreement to the contrary, the Company aedlrustee may withhold
any benefits payable to a beneficiary as a re$uhlteodeath of the participant or any other benaficuntil such time as (a) the Compe
or Trustee is able to determine whether a generatkipping transfer tax, as defined in Chapter flhe Code, or any substitute
provision therefor, is payable by the Company arsiee; and (b) the Company or Trustee has detedniirreamount of generation-
skipping transfer tax that is due, including ingghereon. If any such tax is payable, the Commariyrustee shall reduce the benefits
otherwise payable hereunder to such beneficiath&ymount necessary to provide said beneficiatly asbenefit equal to the amounts
that would have been payable if the original beadfad been calculated on the basis of a presarg aaithe time of the generation
skipping transfer equal to the then present vafubeooriginally contemplated benefit less an amagqual to the generation-skipping
transfer tax and any interest thereon that is dayaba result of the death in question. The Comparrustee may also withhold from
distribution by further reduction of the then ne¢gent value of benefits calculated in accordaritietive terms of the previous sentence
such amounts as the Company or Trustee feels asenably necessary to pay additional generatigupsky transfer tax and interest
thereon from amounts initially calculated to be .diey amounts so withheld shall be payable as smathere is a final determination of
the applicable generatiagkipping tax and interest thereon. No interestldi@payable by the Company or Trustee to any licagf for
the period of time that is required from the ddtdeath to the time when the aforementioned geiverakipping transfer tax
determinations are made and the amount of berpsfitable to a beneficiary can be fully determined.

ARTICLE Il
Administration

3.01 Committee

3.01-1 The Committee is the plan administratotttier Plans and has general responsibility to in&trfie Plans and determine the
rights of participants and beneficiaries.
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3.01-2 The Trustee shall be given the names ardmspa signatures of the Chairman, Secretary andbaesrof the Committee.
The Trustee shall accept and rely upon the nam@signatures until notified of change. Instructiemshe Trustee shall be signed for
the Committee by the Chairman or such other peasahe Committee may designate.

3.02 Payment of Benefits

3.02-1 The Trustee shall pay benefits to partidipamnd beneficiaries on behalf of the Company iisfsetion of its obligations
under the Plans. Benefit payments from a Subthadt be made in full until the assets of the Sutitare exhausted. Payments due on
the date the Subtrust is exhausted shall be coyegrerhta. The Company’s obligation shall not betied to the trust fund and a
participant shall have a claim against the Comgangny payment not made by the Trustee.

3.02-2 The Trustee shall make payments in accoedaith the written direction from the Committee.eThrustee shall make any
required income tax withholding and shall pay antewvithheld to taxing authorities on the Comparbesalf or determine that such
amounts have been paid by the Company.

3.02-3 A participant’s entitlement to benefits unttee Plans shall be determined by the Committes. @aim for such benefits
shall be considered and reviewed under the clanomsegures set out in the Plans.

3.02-4 The Trustee shall use the assets of thedrasy Subtrust to make benefit payments or gthgments in the following
order of priority:

(a) Common Stock shall be used to pay any bermefiggired under the Plans to be paid in Common SaockAcquiror Stoc
shall be use to pay any benefits required undePtaes to be paid in Acquiror Stock;

(b) All assets of the trust or Subtrust other t@amtracts with Insurers, in such order as the Cdtemimay request;

(c) Cash contributions from the Company; and then@any hereby agrees to make cash contributiorteettrist to enable
the Trustee to make all benefit payments and gthgments when due, unless the Company makes syntepts directly,
whenever the Trustee advises the Company thasstetsaof the trust or Subtrust, other than Corgnaith Insurers, are
insufficient to make such payments; and

(d) Contracts with Insurers held in the trust obtust; and in using any such Contracts, the Teuskall first borrow the
cash surrender value of each such Contract, prowgéadorder of Contracts from the Contracts whietve been in force for the
longest times (and in alphabetical order basedenast name of the insured for Contracts placddrite on the same date) to the
Contracts which have most recently been placedricef and thereafter the Trustee shall surrendatr&cts in the same order of
priority as set forth above.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee maythseassets of the trust or any Subtrust in anyrattder of priority directed by
the Committee with the Written Consent of Partioigaaffected thereby.

3.03 Records

The Trustee shall keep complete records on theftrad open to inspection by the Company and then@ittee at all reasonable
times. In addition to accountings required beldve, Trustee shall furnish to the Company and Coremiiny information requested
about the trust fund.

3.04 Accountings

3.04-1 The Trustee shall furnish the Committee wittomplete statement of accounts annually witixity $60) days after the end
of the trust year showing assets and liabilities imeome and expense for the year of each Subfrbstform and content of the account
shall be sufficient for the Company to include amputing its taxable income and credits the incategluctions and credits against tax
that are attributable to the trust fund.

3.04-2 The Committee may object to an accountirthinisixty (60) days after it is furnished and rieguhat it be settled by audit
by a qualified, independent certified public acaamt The auditor shall be chosen by the Trustem fa list of at least five (5) such
accountants furnished by the Committee at the tireeaudit is requested. Either the Committee ofTtlustee may require that the
account be settled by a court of competent jurigaticin lieu of or in conjunction with the audill expenses of any audit or court
proceedings, including reasonable attorneys’ felesl| be allowed as administrative expenses ofrtis.

3.04-3 If the Committee does not object to an anting within the time provided, the account shalldettled for the period
covered by it.

3.044 When an account is settled, it shall be final bimdling on all parties, including all participarisd persons claiming throt
them.
3.05 Expenses and Fees

3.0541 The Trustee shall be reimbursed for all expensésshall be paid a reasonable fee fixed by it fliome to time. No increas
in the fee shall be effective before sixty (60) slajter the Trustee gives notice to the Comparti@increase. The Trustee shall notify
the Committee periodically of expenses and fees.

3.05-2 The Company shall pay administrative feesxpenses. If not so paid, the fees and expens#idstpaid from the trust
fund. The Company shall reimburse the trust fundafty fees and expenses paid out of it.
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ARTICLE IV
Liability
4.01 Indemnity.

The Company shall indemnify and defend the Trubtaa any claim, loss, liability or expense arisfingm any action or inaction
in administration of this trust based on directosrinformation from the Committee, absent willfulstonduct or bad faith.

4.02 Bonding
The Trustee need not give any bond or other sgdaritperformance of its duties under this trust.
ARTICLE V
Insolvency

5.01 Determination of Insolvency
5.01-1 The Company is “Insolvent” for purposesha$ trust if:
(a) The Company is unable to pay its debts as¢baye due; or
(b) The Company is the subject of a pending prooeeas a debtor under the Bankruptcy Code.

5.01-2 The Chief Executive Officer and the Boardakctors of the Company shall promptly give netto the Trustee upon
becoming Insolvent. If the Trustee receives suditamr receives from any other person claiminbea creditor of the Company a
written allegation that the Company is Insolvehg Trustee shall independently determine whethehr Bisolvency exists. The expen
of such determination shall be allowed as admialiste expenses of the trust.

5.01-3 The Trustee shall continue making payments the trust fund to participants under the Plahae it is determining the
existence of insolvency. Such payments shall ceaddhe Trustee shall commence “Insolvency Adnmaiitn” under 5.02 upon the
earlier of:

(a) A determination by the Trustee that the Comparngsolvent; or

(b) Thirty (30) days after the notice or allegatafrinsolvency is received under 5.01-2, unlessTthestee has determined
that the Company is not Insolvent since receigumh notice or allegation.

15



5.01-4 The Trustee shall have no obligation to $tigate the financial condition of the Company pt@receiving a notice or
allegation of insolvency under 5.01-2.
5.02 Insolvency Administration

5.02-1 During Insolvency Administration, the Trusthall hold the trust fund for the benefit of emeral creditors of the
Company and make payments only in accordance wi+3. The Trustee shall continue the investmemt®frust fund in accordance
with 2.02.

5.02-2 The Trustee shall make payments out ofrtiet fund in one (1) or more of the following ways:

(a) To general creditors in accordance with ingtoms from a court, or a person appointed by atctaving jurisdiction
over the Company’s condition of insolvency;

(b) To Plan participants and beneficiaries in adaace with such instructions; or
(c) In payment of its own fees or expenses.
5.02-3 The Trustee shall be a secured creditor avjghiority claim to the trust fund with respectitbown fees and expenses.

5.03 Termination of Insolvency Administration
5.03-1 Insolvency Administration shall terminateantthe Trustee determines that the Company:
(a) Is not Insolvent, in response to a notice @galtion of insolvency under 5.01-2; or
(b) Has ceased to be Insolvent.

5.03-2 Upon termination of Insolvency Administrationder 5.03-1, the trust fund shall continue ttnélel for the benefit of the
participants in the Plans. Benefit payments duenduhe period of Insolvency Administration sha#l inade as soon as practicable,
together with interest from the due dates at tievfing rates:

(a) For the DDCP, the rate credited on the paditijs account under the DDCP.

(b) For the Retirement Bylaw, a rate equal to tierest rate fixed by the Pension Benefit Guar&@ugporation for valuing
immediate annuities in the preceding month for teated single employer plans.
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5.04 CreditorsClaims During Solvency

5.04-1 During periods of Solvency, the Trusteeldiald the trust fund exclusively to pay benefitsldees and expenses until all
have been paid. Creditors of the Company shalbagiaid during Solvency from the trust fund, whicly not be seized by or subjec
to the claims of such creditors in any way.

5.04-2 A period of “Solvency” is any period not evgd by 5.02.

ARTICLE VI

Successor Trustees

6.01 Resignation and Removal

6.01-1 The Trustee may resign at any time by naticee Committee, which shall be effective in gi¢@0) days unless the
Committee and the Trustee agree otherwise.

6.01-2 The Trustee may be removed by the Comnuittesixty (60) days’ notice or shorter notice acedpty the Trustee.

6.01-3 When resignation or removal is effective, thestee shall begin transfer of assets to the sucac&ssstee immediately. Tt
transfer shall be completed within sixty (60) daysless the Committee extends the time limit.

6.01-4 If the Trustee resigns or is removed, them@dtee shall appoint a successor by the effectate of resignation or removal
under 6.01-1 or 6.01-2. If no such appointmentlieeen made, the Trustee may apply to a court of etanpjurisdiction for
appointment of a successor or for instructions.eXppenses of the Trustee in connection with thegeding shall be allowed as
administrative expenses of the trust.

6.02_Appointment of Successor

6.02-1 The Committee may appoint any bank or tasipany that has total assets in excess of $5omids a successor to replace
the Trustee upon resignation or removal. The appant shall be effective when accepted in writigghe new Trustee, who shall he
all of the rights and powers of the former Trusteduding ownership rights in the trust assets. fidimer Trustee shall execute any
instrument necessary or reasonably requested b@dhenittee or the successor Trustee to evidenceahsfer.

6.02-2 The successor Trustee need not examinetbeds and acts of any prior Trustee and may retailispose of existing trust
assets, subject to Article Il. The successor Teust®ll not be responsible for and the Company stt@mnify and defend the succes
Trustee from any claim or liability because of atyion or inaction of any prior Trustee or any otpast event, any existing conditior
any existing assets.
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6.03_Accountings; Continuit.

6.03-1 A Trustee who resigns or is removed shall sulbrfiihal accounting to the Committee as soon astipedate. The accountir
shall be received and settled as provided in 304efgular accountings.

6.03-2 No resignation or removal of the Trusteel@nge in identity of the Trustee for any reasail glause a termination of the
Plans or this trust.

ARTICLE VII

General Provisions

7.01 Interests Not Assignahle

7.01-1 The interest of a participant in the trustd may not be assigned, seized by legal progessférred or subjected to the
claims of the participant’s creditors in any way.

7.01-2 The Company may not create a security isténethe trust fund in favor of any of its cred&oThe Trustee shall not make
payments from the trust fund of any amounts toitwezlof the Company who are not Plan participagsept as provided in 5.02.

7.01-3 The participants shall have no intereshéassets of the trust fund beyond the right teivecpayment of Plan benefits and
reimbursement of expenses from such assets subjtwt instructions for Insolvency Administraticeferred to in 5.02-2. During
Insolvency Administration the participants’ rightstrust assets shall not be superior to thosepfther general creditor of the
Company.

7.02 Amendment

The Company and the Trustee may amend this trastyatime by a written instrument executed by haatties and with the
Written Consent of Participants. Notwithstanding tbregoing, any amendment may be made by writjeeeanent of the Company and
the Trustee without the Written Consent of Par#aiis if such amendment will not have a materiakasky effect on the rights of any
Participant hereunder or is necessary to compliy sty laws, regulations or other legal requirements

7.03 Applicable Law
This trust shall be construed according to the lain@regon except as preempted by federal law.

7.04 Agreement Binding on All Parties

This agreement shall be binding upon the heirsqreal representatives, successors and assignyg ahdrall present and future
parties. The term successors as used herein iaatespthe Company shall include any corporatetieobusiness entity which shall,
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whether by merger, consolidation, purchase or otiser, acquire all or substantially all of the besia and assets of the Company, and
successors of any such corporation or other busimetity.

7.05 Notices and Directions

Any notice or direction under this trust shall heniriting and shall be effective when actually detied or, if mailed, when
deposited postpaid as first-class mail. Mail taaetypshall be directed to the address stated étthst or to such other address as either
party may specify by notice to the other party.ibkg to the Committee shall be sent to the adaregse Company.

7.06 No Implied Duties.
The duties of the Trustee shall be those statéluisnTrust, and no other duties shall be implied.

Company: NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

By: /s/ R. G. Reitel
Its: Chairman and CE!(
Executed: December 21, 20

Trustee: WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Beverley H. Wooi
Its: Senior Vice Presidet
Executed: December 26, 20
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EXHIBIT A
Assumptions and Methodology for
Calculation Required Under 2.01-3 and 2.03

The liability will be calculated using two (2)fférent assumptions as to when the director teateis service on the Board and receives a
change of control benefi

a) As of the date of the Triggering Eve

b) Twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Triggeringii assuming future compensation continues aentitevels

The benefit liability will be the greater of thaliilities calculated in accordance with a) anddmve.

Calculations will be based upon the most valuaptéaal form of payment available to the particip:

The benefit liability is equal to the preseniiuesof benefits discounted to the trigger datéhatimmediate annuity interest rate for
termination of single employer plans establishedh@gyPension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (PBGE€xé&dculations made on the date

of the Triggering Even

No mortality is assumed prior to the commencemébeaefits. Future mortality is assumed to occurdnordance with the 1983 Gro
Annuity Table Male rates after the commencemeeofefits.

Where left undefined by 1. through 4. above, caltoihs will be performed in accordance with gergratcepted actuarial principle

For the purposes of projecting deferral acctafdinces, the interest crediting rate on all DD@BHCAccounts is assumed to remain at
the last such PBGC established rate prior to the aofathe Triggering Even



NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
UMBRELLA TRUST ™FOR DIRECTORS
AMENDMENT NO. 1

This Amendment No. 1 to the Northwest Natural Gamy@any Umbrella Trust for Directors, effective January 1, 1991 and restas
of December 1, 2001 (the “Trust”), is effectivecd$-ebruary 27, 2003 and has been executed assdftth day of February, 2003.

The Trust is hereby amended as follows:

FIRST: Section 1.02-1 is amended to read as follows

1.02-1 This trust shall continue in effect untllthle assets of the trust fund are exhausted thrdigjribution of benefits to
participants, reimbursement of benefits paid byGbenpany pursuant to Section 3.02-5, payment temggiereditors in the event of
insolvency, payment of fees and expenses of thstd&euand return of remaining funding of a Subtpussuant to 1.02-2.

SECOND: Section 3.02-1 is amended to read as fstlow

3.02-1 Except as provided in 3.02-5, the Trustedl play benefits to participants and beneficiaaesehalf of the Company in
satisfaction of its obligations under the Plansa&it payments from a Subtrust shall be made ihufioliil the assets of the Subtrust are
exhausted. Payments due on the date the Subtmidtasisted shall be covered pro rata. The Compajigation shall not be limited
the trust fund and a participant shall have a clagrainst the Company for any payment not made dy thstee.

THIRD: Section 3.02-5 is added to read as follows:

3.02-5 With respect to any benefit payments dygatticipants and beneficiaries under the PlansCramittee may direct by
notice in advance to the Trustee that the Comphalf make such payments and that the Trustee stpalh receipt of evidence of such
payments satisfactory to the Trustee, reimburs€trapany for such payments from the applicable regbtin such cases, the
Company shall make any required income tax withinglénd reporting, and shall pay amounts withhelthking authorities.

THIRD: Except as provided herein, all other Trusiyisions shall remain in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thigAdment No. 1 to be executed as of the date fiittiew above.
NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

By: /s/ Mark S. Dodso
President and CE!

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Beverley H. Woor
Senior Vice Presidel




NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
UMBRELLA TRUST ™FOR DIRECTORS
AMENDMENT NO. 2

This Amendment No. 2 to the Northwest Natural Gamy@any Umbrella Trust for Directors, effective January 1, 1991 and restas
of December 1, 2001 (the “Trust”), is effectivecd$-ebruary 24, 2005 and has been executed assdf4h day of February, 2005.

The Trust is hereby amended as follows:

FIRST: Section 2.01-1 is amended to read as follows

2.01-1 The Company shall contribute to the trushsamounts as the Committee shall reasonably dec&leecessary to provide
for all benefits payable under the Plans in ca§tagh Benefits”). The time of payment of such cdniions shall be decided by the
Committee, except as provided in 2.01-3.

SECOND: The first paragraph of Section 2.02-1 igaded to read as follows:

2.02-1 Except as provided in 2.02-2 or 2.02-3 tthst fund may be invested in insurance contrd@serftracts”). Such Contracts
may be purchased by the Company and transferréggk tdrustee as in-kind contributions or may be pased by the Trustee with the
proceeds of cash contributions. The purchase aliihigoof such Contracts shall be an investmentotie by the Company, pursuant to 2.02-
5. The Trustee shall have the power to exerciseghits, privileges, options and elections grariigar permitted under any Contract or under
the rules of the insurance company (“Insurer”)oPtd the occurrence of any of the events refetwdd 2.01-4, the exercise by the Trustee of
any incidents of ownership under any Contract dmakubject to the direction of the Committee.

THIRD: Paragraph 3 of Exhibit A is amended to readollows:

3. The benefit liability is equal to the preseniueaof benefits discounted to the trigger datdatApplicable Interest Rate
determined under Code Sec. 417(e)(3) and the régusahereunder. The Applicable Interest Ratelsfetletermined on each December 31
and shall apply to all calculations in the nexecalar year.

FOURTH: Paragraph 4 of Exhibit A is amended to raadollows:

4. No mortality is assumed prior to the commencdroébenefits. Future mortality is assumed to odnwaccordance with the

mortality table used for purposes of Code Sec.&){3), as set forth in Rev. Rul. 2001-62 (2001-B.®32) and subsequent rulings.
FIFTH: Paragraph 6 of Exhibit A is amended to raadollows:

6. For the purposes of projecting deferral acctafdinces, the interest crediting rate on all DD@BHCAccounts is assumed to
remain at the Applicable Interest Rate determingdiu 3. above



SIXTH: Except as provided herein, all other Trusiyisions shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thigAgment No. 2 to be executed as of the date fiiisiew above.

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
One Pacific Squar

220 N.W. 2nc

Portland, Oregon 972(

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.
301 North Main Stree
Winstor-Salem, North Carolina 271-3099

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

By: /s/ Mark S. Dodson

President and CE!
WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Beverley H. Wood

Senior Vice Presider
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NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
UMBRELLA TRUST ™FOR EXECUTIVES
Effective January 1, 1988
Restated as of January 1, 2001

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

One Pacific Squar

220 N.W. 2nc

Portland, Oregon 972( Compan

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.
301 North Main Stree
Winstor-Salem, North Carolina 271-3099 Trustet

The Company has adopted the following plans (tHari'$?) for the benefit of eligible executive empéag of the Company and its
affiliates:

Northwest Natural Gas Executive Deferred Compeosdtian (“EDCP”)
Northwest Natural Gas Executive Supplemental Regr Income Plan (“ESRIP”)

The Plans are administered by an administrativenciti®e (the “Committee”) appointed by the Compadhthe Plans are administered by
more than one Committee at any time, referencéssnirust Agreement to the Committee which retata particular Plan shall refer to the
Committee which administers that Plan, and, ifriference does not relate to a particular Plarl s#far to all of such Committees. The
purpose of this trust is to give Plan participagresater security by placing assets in trust forardg to pay benefits or, if the Company
becomes insolvent, to pay creditors. The trusttisnded to be a grantor trust, the income of whidhxable to the Company. No contribution
to or income of the trust is to be taxable to Riarticipants until benefits are distributed to them

The Company and the original trustee of this tassablished this trust effective as of January988lpursuant to a Trust Agreement
dated as of that date. The Company and the Trastedy restate this trust effective as of Janua®0@1 on the following terms:

ARTICLE |

Effective Date; Duration

1.01 Effective Date

This trust shall be effective January 1, 1988. frhst year shall coincide with the Company'’s fisgadr, which is the calendar
year.



1.02 Duration

1.02-1 This trust shall continue in effect untlithle assets of the trust fund are exhausted thrdigiribution of benefits to
participants, payment to general creditors in treneof insolvency, payment of fees and expenséiseoTrustee, and return of
remaining funding of a Subtrust pursuant to 1.02-2.

1.02-2 Except as provided in 1.03, the trust dhalirrevocable with respect to amounts contribtibeiti for a Plan until all benefit
rights covered by the Subtrust for that Plan atisfé&ad. The Trustee shall then return to the Comypeny assets remaining in the
Subtrust for that Plan.

1.023 If the existence of this trust is held to be ERFunding or Tax Funding by a federal court andesge from that holding a
no longer timely or have been exhausted, this shiall terminate. The Board of Directors of the @amy (the “Board”) may also
terminate this trust if it determines, based ompinion of legal counsel which is satisfactoryhe fTrustee, that either (i) judicial
authority or the opinion of the U.S. Departmentabor, Treasury Department or Internal Revenuei8erfas expressed in proposed or
final regulations, advisory opinions or rulings,similar administrative announcements) creategifgtant risk that the trust will be
held to be ERISA Funding or Tax Funding, or (ii) ISR or the Internal Revenue Code (the “Cod&fjuires the trust to be amended
way that creates a significant risk that the toatitbe held to be ERISA Funding or Tax Fundingddailure to so amend the trust could
subject the Company to material penalties. Upoh sietermination, the assets of each Subtrust rénggafter payment of the Trustee’
fees and expenses shall be distributed as follows:

(a) Such assets shall be transferred to a newastgblished by the Company which is not deeméx tBRISA Funding or
Tax Funding, but which is similar in all other resps to this trust, if the Company determines ithiatpossible to establish such a
trust.

(b) If the Company determines that it is not pdgsib establish the trust in (a) above, then tlse@sshall be distributed to
the Company if the Written Consent of Participaatsdefined in 1.02-6, is obtained for such distidn.

(c) If the Company determines that it is not pdgsib establish the trust in (a) above and thet@friConsent of Participants
is not obtained to distribute the assets to the [@2om, then the assets shall be allocated in prigpoid the accrued and vested
benefits of the participants and distributed tarttie lump sums. Any assets remaining shall beitisgted to the Company.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee ktistribute funds to a participant to the extdrdtta federal court has held
that the interest of the participant in this trigsihcludible for federal income tax purposes ia gross income of the participant
prior to actual payment of Plan benefits to theaipgant and appeals from that holding are no lorigeely or have been
exhausted. This provision shall also apply to asydficiary of a participant.
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1.02-4 This trust is “ERISA Funding” if it preverasiy of the Plans from meeting the “unfunded” ciite of the exceptions to
various requirements of Title | of the EmployeeiRehent Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) folaps that are unfunded and
maintained primarily for the purpose of providingfeired compensation for a select group of managearéhighly compensated
employees.

1.02-5 This trust is “Tax Funding” if it causes ih&erest of a participant in this trust to be umible for federal income tax
purposes in the gross income of the participamirfpd actual payment of Plan benefits to the pigdiat.

1.02-6 “Written Consent of Participants” means,tfag purposes of this trust, consent in writingolyticipants who (i) are a
majority in number and (ii) have at least sixty-ahd two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) in value of tieeraed benefits of all participants in
the Plans which are subject to this trust on thie dasuch consent.

1.03_Revocability

1.03-1 This trust shall become irrevocable uponigheance by the Internal Revenue Service of afwiletter ruling establishing
that its existence and ownership of assets doawtecthe benefit rights of participants under tlh@d$to be taxable currently. If such a
ruling is denied or if the Internal Revenue Sendeelines to issue such a ruling, the Company reagke the trust and take possession
of all assets held by the Trustee for the trust.

1.03-2 Notwithstanding the provisions of 1.03-larify of the events described in 2.01-4 has occuthedCompany may declare
the trust to be irrevocable.

1.04 Change in Control

1.04-1 On a Change in Control described in 1.0é@ trust assets shall be held for participants hdmb benefit rights under the
Plans before the Change in Control occurred. 1{Gbepany makes contributions for benefits owedew participants under a Plan
following a Change in Control, such contributiomslany insurance contracts or other assets purdhetiethem shall be held in a new
Subtrust separate from the existing Subtrust fevipus participants. The existing Subtrust shaliec@ll the benefits provided by the
Plan for a previous participant, including benediterued after the Change in Control.

1.04-2 A “Change in Control” means the occurreniceny of the following events:
(a) The approval by the shareholders of the CompémayCorporate Transaction;

(b) At any time during a period of two consecutyears, individuals who at the beginning of suchiqaeconstituted the
board of directors of the Company (“Incumbent Dioeg”) shall cease for any reason to constituteast a majority thereof;
provided, however, that the term “Incumbent Dirgtgtall also include each new director electedrdusuch two-year period
whose nomination or election was approved by tvia¢hof the Incumbent Directors then in office; or
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(c) Any person (as such term is used in Sectiod)ldf(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Aatther than the
Company or any employee benefit plan sponsoretidfCbmpany) shall, as a result of a tender or exgshaffer, open market
purchases or privately negotiated purchases fromranother than the Company, have become the lsalafivner (within the
meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Act), directlyratirectly, of securities of the Company ordinatigving the right to vote for the
election of directors (“Voting Securities”) represiag twenty percent (20%) or more of the combimeting power of the then
outstanding Voting Securities.

1.04-3 “Corporate Transaction” means any of thiofahg:

(a) any consolidation, merger or plan of share argle involving the Company (a “Mergeit) which the Company is not t
continuing or surviving corporation or pursuantoich shares of Common Stock would be converteul¢ash, securities or other
property, other than a Merger involving shares omthon Stock in which the holders of shares of Com&tmck immediately
prior to the Merger have the same proportionateayahip of common stock of the surviving corporatimmediately after the
Merger;

(b) any sale, lease, exchange or other transf@m@ntransaction or a series of related transagitiofhall, or substantially all,
the assets of the Company; or

(c) the adoption of any plan or proposal for tlygiililation or dissolution of the Company.
ARTICLE Il
Trust Fund

2.01 Contributions

2.01-1 The Company shall contribute to the trushsamounts as the Committee shall reasonably dec&lpecessary to provide
for all benefits payable under the Plans in caslagh Benefits”), including amounts to purchaserisarance contracts and to pay
premiums and loan interest payments, all as destiib2.02-1. The time of payment of such contidng shall be decided by the
Committee, except as provided in 2.01-3.

2.01-2 If, pursuant to an election by a particigarthe EDCP, shares of common stock of the Comga®gmmon Stock”)
awarded to the participant under the Company’s Lbegn Incentive Plan are deferred under the ED@Pthe participant’s Stock
Account (as defined in the EDCP), the Company dg@lse the Common Stock subject to such deferiz toansferred to the Trustee
as a contribution to this trust. If, pursuant toedection by a participant in the EDCP, Cash Corsptan, Cash LTIP Compensation or
Matching Contributions (all as defined in the ED@R) deferred under the EDCP into the participa®ttek Account (as defined in the
EDCP), the amount of such Cash Compensation, Cah Compensation and/or Matching Contributions defito the participant’s
Stock Account shall be contributed by the Companthé trust as soon as practicable after the traesuch amount is credited under
the EDCP to the participant’s Stock Account.



2.01-3 The Company shall, upon the occurrence pbéthe events described in 2.01-4 (“TriggeringeBt/) and annually
thereafter if the Triggering Event results in a @g&in Control, contribute to the trust the sunthef following:

(&) The present value of the remaining premiumstheadnterest on any policy loan on insurance @mtérheld in the trust.

(b) The amount by which the present value of alCBenefits payable under the Plans exceeds the wélall trust assets
other than those required under 2.02-2 or 2.02#8:tmvested in Common Stock or Acquiror Stock.tEparticipant’s Cash
Benefit for purposes of calculating present vah&lde the highest Cash Benefit the participantiddvave under the Plan within
the 24 months following the Triggering Event, assgrhat no changes are made in the participaavellof income or deferral,
that employment continues for 24 months at the sateeof compensation, and that the participargives any benefit
enhancement provided by the Plans upon a Chan@eritrol. The insurance contracts shall be valuazhsh surrender value, and
other assets of the trust shall be valued at fagimarket value.

(c) A reasonable estimate provided by the Trustéts éees due over the remaining duration of thistt

Any contribution to the trust under 2.01-3 due friggering Event shall be returned to the Compamg year after delivery of
such contribution to the Trustee unless a Chan@omtrol shall have occurred during such one-yeaiop, if the Company requests
such return within forty-five days after such oresyperiod. If no such request is made within treyffive day period, then, subject to
2.03-1, the contribution shall become a permanarttgf the trust fund. The one-year period shalttstver again in the event of and
upon the date of any subsequent Potential ChanGentrol. A “Potential Change in Control” shall inde the events described in 2.01-
4(a) or (b).

2.01-4 The events referred to in 2.01-3 shall idelthe following:

(a) The Company becomes aware that preliminanefinitive copies of a proxy statement and informatstatement or oth
information have been filed with the Securities &xthange Commission pursuant to Rule 14a-6, R4de5] or Rule 14f-1 under
the Act relating to a Potential Change in Contfahe Company.

(b) The delivery to the Company pursuant to Rulé-324inder the Act of a Tender Offer Statement irgdgtio Voting
Securities of the Company.

(c) The termination of any of the Plans by the Campor any amendment to any of the Plans which dvoeduce the
accrued benefits currently provided for under ahguzh Plans.

(d) Failure by the Company to contribute, withindiys of receipt of a written notice from the Tagstthe full amount of
any insufficiency in trust assets that is requi@g@ay any benefit that is payable upon a diredliom the Committee pursuant to
3.02-2.



2.01-5 The calculations required under 230dhall be based on the actuarial assumption®gatih the attached Exhibit A, whic
prior to a Change in Control, may be revised byGbenmittee from time to time. For purposes of 2304}, the discount rate shall be
same as the rate applied to determine the preaéurd of all Cash Benefits payable under the Plans.

2.01-6 The Trustee shall accept the contributioaderby the Company and shall hold them as a tuast for the payment of
benefits under the Plans. The Trustee shall noégmonsible for determining the required amourdosttributions or for collecting any
contribution not voluntarily paid. Contributions ynbe in cash or in kind.

2.02 Investments

2.02-1 Except as provided in 2.02-2 or 2.02-3 tthst fund may be invested in insurance contrd@sttracts”). Such Contracts
may be purchased by the Company and transferrda torustee as in-kind contributions or may be pased by the Trustee with the
proceeds of cash contributions. The purchase akllihigoof such Contracts shall be an investmentotiée by the Company, pursuant to
2.02-5. The Company'’s contributions to the trustlishclude sufficient cash to make projected pramipayments on such Contracts
and payments of any interest due on loans secyréltblcash value of such Contracts. The Trusteke lsdnee the power to exercise all
rights, privileges, options and elections granteaibpermitted under any Contract or under thesrolethe insurance company
(“Insurer”). Prior to the occurrence of any of #aents referred to in 2.01-4, the exercise by thust€e of any incidents of ownership
under any Contract shall be subject to the diraatiothe Committee.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to thet@ry, neither the Company nor the Trustee shalldble for the refusal of
any Insurer to issue or change any Contract orr@otst or to take any other action requested byl thstee; nor for the form,
genuineness, validity, sufficiency or effect of dbgntract or Contracts held in the trust; nor fa &ct of any person or persons that |
render any such Contract or Contracts null and;vaid for failure of any Insurer to pay the proceedlany such Contract or Contracts
as and when the same shall become due and payabligr any delay in payment resulting from anyyismn contained in any such
Contract or Contracts; nor for the fact that foy asason whatsoever (other than its own negligenedliful misconduct) any Contract
or Contracts shall lapse or otherwise become uectitle.

2.02-2 To the extent that contributions of Commawck are made to this trust under 2.01-2, the fiusd shall continue to be
invested in such shares of Common Stock. Any caslributions made to this trust under 2.01-2 sbalinvested by the Trustee in
Common Stock by purchasing Common Stock in theipubirket as soon as practicable, with related énadee commissions paid by
the Company All dividends received on Common Stock held in st under this 2.02-2 shall be reinvested in Cemi@tock
pursuant to the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment@todk Purchase Plan. The purchase and holdingwin@n Stock under this
2.02-2 shall be an investment directed by the Camppaursuant to 2.02-5.
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2.02-3 Notwithstanding 2.02-2, following a Corp@diransaction, the trust fund shall no longer lvested in Common Stock.
Except as provided below, if Common Stock is coteor exchanged in the Corporate Transaction iolevbr in part for common
stock of the acquiring company (“Acquiror Stockthen (a) the trust fund shall continue to be inedsih such shares of Acquiror Stock,
(b) any cash contributions thereafter made totthist under 2.01-2 shall be invested by the Trustéequiror Stock by purchasing
Acquiror Stock in the public market as soon asfxable, with related brokerage commissions paitheyCompany, and (c) the
purchase and holding of Acquiror Stock under thi223 shall be an investment directed by the Compaursuant to 2.02-5. If a
participant elects pursuant to Section 4.5(d) efEHDCP to transfer the amount credited in the gpetnt’'s Stock Account to the
participants Cash Account, then the Trustee shall sell thebraurf shares of Acquiror Stock equal to the nundfeshares then credit
to the participant’s Stock Account, in the publianket as soon as practicable following the effestess of such election, with related
brokerage commissions paid by the Company.

2.02-4 If the Trustee is required to invest casttrdoutions by purchasing Common Stock or AcquiBtmck in the public market
or is required to sell Acquiror Stock in the pubtti@rket, the following provisions shall apply:

(a) Purchases and sales of Common Stock shall be prathe date on which the Trustee receives fhenCbmpany in goa
order all information and documentation necessamcturately effect such purchases and salem(theicase of purchases, the
subsequent date on which the Trustee has receiwem aransfer of the funds necessary to make pucbhases). Purchases and
sales of Common Stock or Acquiror Stock shall belenan the open market on such day unless the fitpapplies:

() The Trustee is unable to determine the numibshares required to be purchased or sold on saghad

(ii) If the Trustee is unable to purchase or d&dl total number of shares required to be purchasedld on such day
as a result of market conditions; or

(iii) If the Trustee is prohibited by the Securitiand Exchange Commission, the New York Stock Exgbaor any
other regulatory body from purchasing or selling anall of the shares required to be purchasesblal on such day.

(b) In the event of the occurrence of the circumsts described in (i), (i) or (iii) above, the $tee shall purchase or sell
such shares as soon as possible thereafter aridisteamine the price of such purchases or salbs the average purchase or sale
price of all such shares purchased or sold. Thet&eumay follow written directions from the Compaoyleviate from the above
purchase procedures.

2.02-5 Except as otherwise required by 2.02-2 @2-3, the Trustee shall invest the trust fund in adance with written directior
by the Committee. The Trustee shall act only agdaministrative agent in carrying out the directegestment transactions and shall not
be responsible for the investment decision. Ifraaled transaction violates the duty to
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diversify, to maintain liquidity or to meet any ethinvestment standard under this trust or applécktw, the entire responsibility shall
rest upon the Company. The Trustee shall be fuliygeted in acting upon or complying with any invesnt objectives, guidelines,
restrictions or directions provided in accordand this paragraph.

2.02-6 If the Trustee does not receive instructfoms the Committee for the investment of part bothe trust fund, the Trustee
shall invest it in securities or other propertyactordance with applicable law. Permissible investt® shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

(a) Preferred or common stocks, notes, debenthoesis or other securities.

(b) Mutual funds, money market funds, commerciglgrasavings and loan accounts, certificates obsiepnd savings
accounts, including deposits bearing a reasonaléeof interest in the savings department of thestee.

(c) Real estate or mortgages.

2.02-7 The Company shall be responsible for fitupgropriate registration forms and all other repoetjuired under Federal or
state securities laws with respect to the ownershithis trust of Common Stock, including, withdimitation, any reports required
under Section 13 or 16 of the Act, and shall imraty notify the Trustee in writing of any requirent to stop purchases of Common
Stock pending the filing of any report. The Compahgll be responsible for the registration of atanRnterests required under Federal
or state securities laws.

2.03 Recapture of Excess Assets

2.0341 In the event any Subtrust shall hold Excess Assieeé Committee, at its option, may direct thesTesa to return part or all
such Excess Assets to the Company.

2.03-2 “Excess Assets” are (a) assets of any Ssthfiother than those required under 2.02-2 or 3.62be invested in Common
Stock or Acquiror Stock) exceeding one hundred tyéime percent (125%) of the present value of@ash Benefits due participants in
such Subtrust, (b) shares of Common Stock requiye2i02-2 to be held in any Subtrust in excessiefrtumber of shares of Common
Stock then credited to the Stock Accounts of attipgants under the EDCP, and (c) shares of Aagustock required by 2.02-3 to be
held in any Subtrust in excess of the number ofeshaf Acquiror Stock then credited to the Stockdéunts of all participants under the
EDCP.

2.03-3 The calculation required by 2.03-2 shalbhsed on the terms of the Plans and the actuasahgptions set forth in Exhibit
A. Before a Change in Control, the calculationdldheamade by an actuary selected by the Compafigr A Change in Control, the
calculations shall be made by an actuary selegtatldTrustee, provided the Committee may selecatiiuary with the Written
Consent of Participants.




2.04 Subtrusts

2.04-1 The Trustee shall establish a Subtrustdohélan to which it shall credit contributions foat Plan. The account shall
reflect an undivided interest in assets of thettiwsd and shall not require any segregation ofigaar assets, except that an insurance
contract covering benefits of a particular Planidieheld in the Subtrust for that Plan and Comr8tock or Acquiror Stock covering
benefits of a particular Plan shall be held in$ubtrust for that Plan.

2.04-2 The Trustee shall allocate investment egeand losses of the trust fund among the Subtiugt®portion to their
balances, except that changes in the value ofamance contract shall be allocated to the Subkpusthich it is held and changes in
value of, and dividends paid on, Common Stock aqukmr Stock shall be allocated to the Subtrustifbich it is held. Payments to
general creditors during Insolvency Administratiorder 5.02 shall be charged against the Subtmigtoportion to their balances,
except that the payment of benefits to a Plan@pént as a general creditor shall be charged agtiia Subtrust for that Plan.

2.05 Substitution of Other Property

2.05-1 The Company shall have the power to reaeqart or all of the trust fund (other than fundeds required under 2.02-2 or
2.02-3 to be invested in Common Stock or Acquinmc®) at any time, by substituting for it other pesty of equivalent value. Such
power is exercisable in a nonfiduciary capacity.

2.05-2 The value of any insurance contracts reaeduinder 2.05-1 shall be the present value oféuytuojected cash flow of
benefits payable under the Contract. The projectiall include death benefits based on reasonabttality assumptions. The value of
all other assets in the trust fund shall be at ttaéi market value. Values shall be determinedhgyTrustee.

2.06 Administrative Powers of Trustee

2.06-1 Subiject in all respects to applicable piiowis of this Trust Agreement and the Plans, thestBreishall have the rights,
powers and privileges of an absolute owner whefirdgaith property of the trust, including (witholitniting the generality of the
foregoing) the powers listed below:

(a) To sell, convey, transfer, exchange, partitiease, and otherwise dispose of any of the asfétg trust at any time held
by the Trustee under this Trust Agreement;

(b) To exercise any option, conversion privilegespscription right given the Trustee as the ovai@mny security held in
the trust; to vote any corporate stock, includirapttnon Stock or Acquiror Stock, either in persotvpiproxy, with or without
power of substitution; to consent to or oppose r@wyganization, consolidation, merger, readjustnoéfinancial structure, sale,
lease or other disposition of the assets of angaration or other
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organization, the securities of which may be artagkthe trust; and to take any action in conmectherewith and receive and
retain any securities resulting therefrom;

(c) To deposit any security with any protective@rrganization committee, and to delegate to soainaittee such power
and authority with respect thereto as the Trustag deem proper, and to agree to pay out of thé such portion of the expenses
and compensation of such committee as the Trustés,discretion, shall deem appropriate;

(d) To cause any property of the trust to be issheltl or registered in the name of the Trusteeussee, or in the name of
one or more of its nominees, or one or more nonsimé@ny system for the central handling of semgitor in such form that title
will pass by delivery, provided that the recordshaf Trustee shall in all events indicate the twmership of such property;

(e) To renew or extend the time of payment of doljgation due or to become due;

(f) To commence or defend lawsuits or legal or adstiative proceedings; to compromise, arbitrateattle claims, debts or
damages in favor of or against the trust; to deloreaccept, in either total or partial satisfactaf any indebtedness or other
obligation, any property; to continue to hold fach period of time as the Trustee may deem ap@@pany property so received;
and to pay all costs and reasonable attorneys'ifeesnnection therewith out of the assets of thstf

(g) To grant options to purchase or to acquireangito purchase any real property;
(h) To foreclose any obligation by judicial proceegor otherwise;

(i) To manage any real property in the trust inghme manner as if the Trustee were the absoluteraereof, including
the power to lease the same for such term or tesithin or beyond the existence of the trust andrupach conditions, including
(but not by way of limitation) agreements for theghase or disposal of buildings thereon and opttorthe tenant to renew such
lease from time to time, or to purchase such ptgpas the Trustee may deem proper;

()) To borrow money from any person in such amoump®n such terms and for such purposes as thée€tun its
discretion, may deem appropriate; and in connecdhierewith, to execute promissory notes, mortgagegher obligations and to
pledge or mortgage any trust assets as securitiytcalend money on a secured or unsecured baaisytperson other than a party
in interest;

(k) To appoint one or more persons or entitiesnadllary trustee or sub-trustee for the purposaeésting in and holding
title to real or personal property or any intetéstrein located outside the State of North Cargplimavided that any such ancillary
trustee or sub-trustee shall act with such powehaity, discretion, duties, and functions of freistee as shall be specified in the
instrument establishing such ancillary or sub-trimtiuding
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(without limitation) the power to receive, hold aménage property, real or personal, or undividéer@sts therein; and the Trus
may pay the reasonable expenses and compensasokiofincillary trustees or sub-trustees out ofrtst;

() To deposit any securities held in the trustwatsecurities depository;

(m) To hold such part of the assets of the trustwested for such limited periods of time as maybeessary for purposes
orderly account administration or pending requilé@dctions, without liability for payment of intesie

(n) To determine how all receipts and disbursemsimadl be credited, charged or apportioned as letweome and
principal, and the decision of the Trustee shallil@ and not subject to question by any partioipar beneficiary of the trust; and

(o) Generally to do all acts, whether or not exglseauthorized, which the Trustee may deem necgssatesirable for the
orderly administration or protection of the trushd.

2.06-2 The Trustee may engage one or more indepeatterneys, accountants, actuaries, appraisesther experts (the
“Experts”) for any purpose, including the deterntioa of Excess Assets. The determination of theeftgpshall be final and binding on
the Company, the Trustee, and all of the partidgpanless within 30 days after receiving a deteatidim deemed by any participant to
be adverse, any participant initiates suit in arcoficompetent jurisdiction seeking appropriatéefeThe Trustee shall have no duty to
oversee or independently evaluate the determinafitine Experts. The Trustee shall be authorizgehtothe fees and expenses of any
Experts out of the assets of the trust fund.

2.06-3 The Company shall from time to time pay safteferences in this Trust Agreement to the paymoktaxes shall include
interest and applicable penalties) of any andiati&whatsoever which at any time are lawfully éslvor assessed upon or become
payable in respect of the trust fund, the incomargr property forming a part thereof, or any seguransaction pertaining thereto. To
the extent that any taxes levied or assessed tyeanust fund are not paid by the Company or céedelsy the Company pursuant to the
last sentence of this paragraph, the Trustee phglsuch taxes out of the trust fund, and the Comphall upon demand by the Trustee
deposit into the trust fund an amount equal tcatin@unt paid from the trust fund to satisfy suchli@bility. If requested by the
Company, the Trustee shall, at the Company’s expamsitest the validity of such taxes in any mamieemed appropriate by the
Company or its counsel, but only if it has receiaadndemnity bond or other security satisfactorit to pay any expenses of such
contest. Alternatively, the Company may itself estithe validity of any such taxes, but any sucitest shall not affect the Company’s
obligation to reimburse the trust fund for taxe&lgeom the trust fund.

2.06-4 In the event a participant’s beneficiaryigieation results in a participant or the particifmspouse being deemed to have
made a “generation-skipping transfer” as define8eaation 2611 of the Code, then to the extentttieparticipant or
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participant’s “executor,” as said term is definadtie Code (or the spouse of the participant @ spouse’s statutory executor in the
case of a generation-skipping transfer deemedue haen made by a participant’s spouse), haversotqusly used the total
generation-skipping transfer exemption that is labée under Section 2631 of the Code to such tesinsfsuch unused exemption shall
be allocated in the manner prescribed by Secti@2 26 the Code, except that (a) any generationgskiptransfer resulting from said
beneficiary designation shall be excluded fromahecation; and (b) the method of allocation un8ection 2632 shall be reversed so
that such unused portion of said transferor’s exemshall be applied first to trusts or trust eqlénts of which transferor is the
deemed transferor and from which taxable distramgioccur and, second, to direct skips occurrirggit transferor’s death. Any

portion of said transferor’s total generation-skigptransfer exemption not used pursuant to theigians of the previous sentence shall
be allocated to the transfer resulting from thedfierary designation that gives rise to the genenaskipping transfer hereunder.

Notwithstanding any provisions in the Plans or fhigst Agreement to the contrary, the Company aedltrustee may withhold
any benefits payable to a beneficiary as a re$thlteodeath of the participant or any other benaficuntil such time as (a) the Compse
or Trustee is able to determine whether a generalkipping transfer tax, as defined in Chapter flhe Code, or any substitute
provision therefor, is payable by the Company arsiee; and (b) the Company or Trustee has detedniirreamount of generation-
skipping transfer tax that is due, including ingtrimnereon. If any such tax is payable, the Commarfyrustee shall reduce the benefits
otherwise payable hereunder to such beneficiath&ymount necessary to provide said beneficiatly asbenefit equal to the amounts
that would have been payable if the original beadfad been calculated on the basis of a prestrd aaithe time of the generation-
skipping transfer equal to the then present vafubeoriginally contemplated benefit less an anmtagual to the generation-skipping
transfer tax and any interest thereon that is deyaba result of the death in question. The Comparrustee may also withhold from
distribution by further reduction of the then ne¢gent value of benefits calculated in accordaritietive terms of the previous sentence
such amounts as the Company or Trustee feels asenably necessary to pay additional generatigupsky transfer tax and interest
thereon from amounts initially calculated to be.diey amounts so withheld shall be payable as smahere is a final determination of
the applicable generatiagkipping tax and interest thereon. No interestldi@payable by the Company or Trustee to any licasf for
the period of time that is required from the ddtdeath to the time when the aforementioned geiverakipping transfer tax
determinations are made and the amount of bempefitable to a beneficiary can be fully determined.

ARTICLE IlI
Administration

3.01_ Committee

3.01-1 The Committee is the plan administratottiier Plans and has general responsibility to ingtriee Plans and determine the
rights of participants and beneficiaries.
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3.01-2 The Trustee shall be given the names ardmspa signatures of the Chairman, Secretary andbaesrof the Committee.
The Trustee shall accept and rely upon the nam@signatures until notified of change. Instructiemshe Trustee shall be signed for
the Committee by the Chairman or such other peasahe Committee may designate.

3.02 Payment of Benefits

3.02-1 The Trustee shall pay benefits to partidipamnd beneficiaries on behalf of the Company iisfsetion of its obligations
under the Plans. Benefit payments from a Subthadt be made in full until the assets of the Sutitare exhausted. Payments due on
the date the Subtrust is exhausted shall be coyegrerhta. The Company’s obligation shall not betied to the trust fund and a
participant shall have a claim against the Comgangny payment not made by the Trustee.

3.02-2 The Trustee shall make payments in accoedait written direction from the Committee. Thau$tee shall make any
required income tax withholding and shall pay antewvithheld to taxing authorities on the Comparbesalf or determine that such
amounts have been paid by the Company.

3.02-3 A participant’s entitlement to benefits unttee Plans shall be determined by the Committes. @aim for such benefits
shall be considered and reviewed under the clanomsegures set out in the Plans.

3.02-4 The Trustee shall use the assets of thedrasy Subtrust to make benefit payments or gthgments in the following
order of priority:

(a) Common Stock shall be used to pay any bermefiggired under the Plans to be paid in Common SaockAcquiror Stoc
shall be use to pay any benefits required undePtaes to be paid in Acquiror Stock;

(b) All assets of the trust or Subtrust other t@amtracts with Insurers, in such order as the Cdtemimay request;

(c) Cash contributions from the Company; and then@any hereby agrees to make cash contributiorteettrist to enable
the Trustee to make all benefit payments and gthgments when due, unless the Company makes syntepts directly,
whenever the Trustee advises the Company thasstetsaof the trust or Subtrust, other than Corgnaith Insurers, are
insufficient to make such payments; and

(d) Contracts with Insurers held in the trust obtust; and in using any such Contracts, the Teuskall first borrow the
cash surrender value of each such Contract, prowgéadorder of Contracts from the Contracts whietve been in force for the
longest times (and in alphabetical order basedenast name of the insured for Contracts placddrite on the same date) to the
Contracts which have most recently been placedricef and thereafter the Trustee shall surrendatr&cts in the same order of
priority as set forth above.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee maythseassets of the trust or any Subtrust in anyrattder of priority directed by
the Committee with the Written Consent of Partioigaaffected thereby.

3.03 Records

The Trustee shall keep complete records on theftrad open to inspection by the Company and then@ittee at all reasonable
times. In addition to accountings required beldve, Trustee shall furnish to the Company and Coremiiny information requested
about the trust fund.

3.04 Accountings

3.04-1 The Trustee shall furnish the Committee wittomplete statement of accounts annually witRid#®ys after the end of the
trust year showing assets and liabilities and inre@md expense for the year of each Subtrust. Thedod content of the account shall
be sufficient for the Company to include in compgtits taxable income and credits the income, d@shue and credits against tax that
are attributable to the trust fund.

3.04-2 The Committee may object to an accountirntgivi60 days after it is furnished and require fhae settled by audit by a
qualified, independent certified public accountarte auditor shall be chosen by the Trustee frdist af at least five such accountants
furnished by the Committee at the time the audit@giested. Either the Committee or the Trusteenaguire that the account be settled
by a court of competent jurisdiction, in lieu ofinrconjunction with the audit. All expenses of audit or court proceedings, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, shall be allowed asrasinative expenses of the trust.

3.04-3 If the Committee does not object to an anting within the time provided, the account shalldettled for the period
covered by it.

3.044 When an account is settled, it shall be final bimdling on all parties, including all participarisd persons claiming throt
them.
3.05 Expenses and Fees

3.0541 The Trustee shall be reimbursed for all expensésshall be paid a reasonable fee fixed by it fliome to time. No increas
in the fee shall be effective before 60 days dfterTrustee gives notice to the Company of thecimge. The Trustee shall notify the
Committee periodically of expenses and fees.

3.05-2 The Company shall pay administrative feesxpenses. If not so paid, the fees and expens#idstpaid from the trust
fund. The Company shall reimburse the trust fundafty fees and expenses paid out of it.
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ARTICLE IV
Liability
4.01 Indemnity

The Company shall indemnify and defend the Trubtaa any claim, loss, liability or expense arisfingm any action or inaction
in administration of this trust based on directiwrinformation from the Committee, absent willfuistonduct or bad faith.

4.02 Bonding
The Trustee need not give any bond or other sgdaritperformance of its duties under this trust.
ARTICLE V
Insolvency

5.01 Determination of Insolvency
5.01-1 The Company is “Insolvent” for purposesha$ trust if:
(a) The Company is unable to pay its debts as¢baye due; or
(b) The Company is the subject of a pending prooeeas a debtor under the Bankruptcy Code.

5.01-2 The Chief Executive Officer and the Boardakctors of the Company shall promptly give netto the Trustee upon
becoming Insolvent. If the Trustee receives suditamr receives from any other person claiminbda creditor of the Company a
written allegation that the Company is Insolvehg Trustee shall independently determine whethehr Bisolvency exists. The expen
of such determination shall be allowed as admialiste expenses of the trust.

5.01-3 The Trustee shall continue making payments the trust fund to participants under the Plahge it is determining the
existence of insolvency. Such payments shall ceaddhe Trustee shall commence “Insolvency Adnmaiitn” under 5.02 upon the
earlier of:

(a) A determination by the Trustee that the Compangsolvent; or

(b) 30 days after the notice or allegation of ingoky is received under 5.01-2, unless the Trusdsedetermined that the
Company is not Insolvent since receipt of suchosotir allegation.
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5.01-4 The Trustee shall have no obligation to $tigate the financial condition of the Company pt@receiving a notice or
allegation of insolvency under 5.01-2.
5.02 Insolvency Administration

5.02-1 During Insolvency Administration, the Trusthall hold the trust fund for the benefit of emeral creditors of the
Company and make payments only in accordance wi+3. The Trustee shall continue the investmemt®frust fund in accordance
with 2.02.

5.02-2 The Trustee shall make payments out ofrtiet fund in one or more of the following ways:

(a) To general creditors in accordance with ingtoms from a court, or a person appointed by atctaving jurisdiction
over the Company’s condition of insolvency;

(b) To Plan participants and beneficiaries in adaace with such instructions; or
(c) In payment of its own fees or expenses.
5.02-3 The Trustee shall be a secured creditor avjghiority claim to the trust fund with respectitbown fees and expenses.

5.03 Termination of Insolvency Administration
5.03-1 Insolvency Administration shall terminateantthe Trustee determines that the Company:
(a) Is not Insolvent, in response to a notice @galtion of insolvency under 5.01-2; or
(b) Has ceased to be Insolvent.

5.03-2 Upon termination of Insolvency Administrationder 5.03-1, the trust fund shall continue ttnélel for the benefit of the
participants in the Plans. Benefit payments duenduhe period of Insolvency Administration sha#l inade as soon as practicable,
together with interest from the due dates at tievfing rates:

(a) For the EDCP, the rate credited on the paditig account under the EDCP.

(b) For the ESRIP, a rate equal to the interestfigaéd by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporatasrvaluing immediate
annuities in the preceding month for terminatedlsirmployer plans.
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5.04 CreditorsClaims During Solvency

5.04-1 During periods of Solvency, the Trusteeldiald the trust fund exclusively to pay benefitsldees and expenses until all
have been paid. Creditors of the Company shalbagiaid during Solvency from the trust fund, whicly not be seized by or subjec
to the claims of such creditors in any way.

5.04-2 A period of “Solvency” is any period not evgd by 5.02.

ARTICLE VI

Successor Trustees

6.01 Resignation and Removal

6.01-1 The Trustee may resign at any time by natidee Committee, which shall be effective in @yslunless the Committee
and the Trustee agree otherwise.

6.01-2 The Trustee may be removed by the Comnitte®0 days’ notice or shorter notice accepted byTitustee.

6.01-3 When resignation or removal is effective, thestee shall begin transfer of assets to the sucac&ssstee immediately. Tt
transfer shall be completed within 60 days, unteesCommittee extends the time limit.

6.01-4 If the Trustee resigns or is removed, them@dtee shall appoint a successor by the effectate of resignation or removal
under 6.01-1 or 6.01-2. If no such appointmentlieeen made, the Trustee may apply to a court of etanpjurisdiction for
appointment of a successor or for instructions.eXppenses of the Trustee in connection with thegeding shall be allowed as
administrative expenses of the trust.

6.02_Appointment of Successor

6.02-1 The Committee may appoint any bank or tasipany that has total assets in excess of $5omids a successor to replace
the Trustee upon resignation or removal. The appant shall be effective when accepted in writigghe new Trustee, who shall he
all of the rights and powers of the former Trusteduding ownership rights in the trust assets. fidimer Trustee shall execute any
instrument necessary or reasonably requested b@dhenittee or the successor Trustee to evidenceahsfer.

6.02-2 The successor Trustee need not examinetbeds and acts of any prior Trustee and may retailispose of existing trust
assets, subject to Article Il. The successor Teust®ll not be responsible for and the Company stt@mnify and defend the succes
Trustee from any claim or liability because of atyion or inaction of any prior Trustee or any otpast event, any existing conditior
any existing assets.
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6.03_Accountings; Continuity

6.03-1 A Trustee who resigns or is removed shall sulbrfiihal accounting to the Committee as soon astipedate. The accountir
shall be received and settled as provided in 304efgular accountings.

6.03-2 No resignation or removal of the Trusteel@nge in identity of the Trustee for any reasail glause a termination of the
Plans or this trust.

ARTICLE VII

General Provisions

7.01 Interests Not Assignable

7.01-1 The interest of a participant in the trustd may not be assigned, seized by legal progessférred or subjected to the
claims of the participant’s creditors in any way.

7.01-2 The Company may not create a security isténethe trust fund in favor of any of its cred&oThe Trustee shall not make
payments from the trust fund of any amounts toitwezlof the Company who are not Plan participagsept as provided in 5.02.

7.01-3 The participants shall have no intereshéassets of the trust fund beyond the right teivecpayment of Plan benefits and
reimbursement of expenses from such assets subjtwt instructions for Insolvency Administraticeferred to in 5.02-2. During
Insolvency Administration the participants’ rightstrust assets shall not be superior to thosepfther general creditor of the
Company.

7.02 Amendment

The Company and the Trustee may amend this trastyatime by a written instrument executed by haatties and with the
Written Consent of Participants. Notwithstanding tbregoing, any amendment may be made by writjeeeanent of the Company and
the Trustee without the Written Consent of Par#aiis if such amendment will not have a materiakasky effect on the rights of any
Participant hereunder or is necessary to compliy sty laws, regulations or other legal requirements

7.03 Applicable Law
This trust shall be construed according to the lain@regon except as preempted by federal law.

7.04 Agreement Binding on All Parties

This agreement shall be binding upon the heirsqreal representatives, successors and assignyg ahdrall present and future
parties. The term successors as used herein iaatespthe Company shall include any corporatetieobusiness entity which shall,
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whether by merger, consolidation, purchase or otiser, acquire all or substantially all of the besia and assets of the Company, and
successors of any such corporation or other busimetity.

7.05 Notices and Directions

Any notice or direction under this trust shall heniriting and shall be effective when actually detied or, if mailed, when
deposited postpaid as first-class mail. Mail taaetypshall be directed to the address stated étthst or to such other address as either
party may specify by notice to the other party.ibkg to the Committee shall be sent to the adaregse Company.

7.06 No Implied Duties
The duties of the Trustee shall be those statéluisnTrust, and no other duties shall be implied.

Company: NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

By: /s/ Richard G. Reite
Its: Chairman and C.E.C
Executed: September 21, 2(

Trustee: WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Joe O. Lony
Its: Senior Vice President/Group Execut
Executed: September 26, 2(
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EXHIBIT A
Assumptions and Methodology for
Calculation Required Under 2.01-3 and 2.03

The liability will be calculated using two (2)fférent assumptions as to when the employee teataiemployment and receives a
change of control benefi

a) As of the date of the Triggering Eve

b) Twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Triggeringii assuming future compensation continues aentitevels

The benefit liability will be the greater of the liakiés calculated in accordance with a) and b) ab

Calculations will be based upon the most valuaptéaal form of payment available to the particip:

The benefit liability is equal to the preseniiuesof benefits discounted to the trigger datéhatimmediate annuity interest rate for
termination of single employer plans establishedh@gyPension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (PBGE€xé&dculations made on the date

of the Triggering Even

No mortality is assumed prior to the commencemébeaefits. Future mortality is assumed to occurdnordance with the 1983 Gro
Annuity Table Male rates after the commencemeeofefits.

Where left undefined by 1. through 4. above, caltoihs will be performed in accordance with gergratcepted actuarial principle

For the purposes of projecting deferral acctatdnces, the interest crediting rate on all ED@BhCAccounts is assumed to remain at
the last such PBGC established rate prior to the aofathe Triggering Even



NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
UMBRELLA TRUST ™FOR EXECUTIVES
AMENDMENT NO. 1

This Amendment No. 1 to the Northwest Natural Gamy@any Umbrella Trust for Executives, effective January 1, 1988 and tedta
as of January 1, 2001 (the “Trust”), is effectigech February 27, 2003 and has been executedthis &7th day of February, 2003.

The Trust is hereby amended as follows:

FIRST: Section 1.02-1 is amended to read as follows

1.02-1 This trust shall continue in effect untllthle assets of the trust fund are exhausted thrdigjribution of benefits to
participants, reimbursement of benefits paid byGbenpany pursuant to Section 3.02-5, payment temggiereditors in the event of
insolvency, payment of fees and expenses of thstd&euand return of remaining funding of a Subtpussuant to 1.02-2.

SECOND: Section 3.02-1 is amended to read as fstlow

3.02-1 Except as provided in 3.02-5, the Trustedl play benefits to participants and beneficiaaesehalf of the Company in
satisfaction of its obligations under the Plansa&it payments from a Subtrust shall be made ihufioliil the assets of the Subtrust are
exhausted. Payments due on the date the Subtmidtasisted shall be covered pro rata. The Compajigation shall not be limited
the trust fund and a participant shall have a clagrainst the Company for any payment not made dy thstee.

THIRD: Section 3.02-5 is added to read as follows:

3.02-5 With respect to any benefit payments dygatticipants and beneficiaries under the PlansCramittee may direct by
notice in advance to the Trustee that the Comphalf make such payments and that the Trustee stpalh receipt of evidence of such
payments satisfactory to the Trustee, reimburs€trapany for such payments from the applicable regbtin such cases, the
Company shall make any required income tax withinglénd reporting, and shall pay amounts withhelthking authorities.

THIRD: Except as provided herein, all other Trusiyisions shall remain in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thigAdment No. 1 to be executed as of the date fiittiew above.
NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

By: /s/ Mark S. Dodso
President and CE!

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Beverley H. Woor
Senior Vice Presidel




NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
UMBRELLA TRUST ™FOR EXECUTIVES
AMENDMENT NO. 2

This Amendment No. 2 to the Northwest Natural Gamy@any Umbrella Trust for Executives, effective January 1, 1988 and tedta
as of January 1, 2001 (the “Trust"), is effectigech February 24, 2005 and has been executedths @4t day of February, 2005.

The Trust is hereby amended as follows:

FIRST: Section 2.01-1 is amended to read as follows

2.01-1 The Company shall contribute to the trushsamounts as the Committee shall reasonably dec&leecessary to provide
for all benefits payable under the Plans in ca§tagh Benefits”). The time of payment of such cdniions shall be decided by the
Committee, except as provided in 2.01-3.

SECOND: The first paragraph of Section 2.02-1 igaded to read as follows:

2.02-1 Except as provided in 2.02-2 or 2.02-3 tthst fund may be invested in insurance contrd@serftracts”). Such Contracts
may be purchased by the Company and transferréggk tdrustee as in-kind contributions or may be pased by the Trustee with the
proceeds of cash contributions. The purchase aliihigoof such Contracts shall be an investmentotie by the Company, pursuant to 2.02-
5. The Trustee shall have the power to exerciseghits, privileges, options and elections grariigar permitted under any Contract or under
the rules of the insurance company (“Insurer”)oPtd the occurrence of any of the events refetwdd 2.01-4, the exercise by the Trustee of
any incidents of ownership under any Contract dmakubject to the direction of the Committee.

THIRD: Paragraph 3 of Exhibit A is amended to readollows:

3. The benefit liability is equal to the preseniueaof benefits discounted to the trigger datdatApplicable Interest Rate
determined under Code Sec. 417(e)(3) and the régusahereunder. The Applicable Interest Ratelsfetletermined on each December 31
and shall apply to all calculations in the nexecalar year.

FOURTH: Paragraph 4 of Exhibit A is amended to raadollows:

4. No mortality is assumed prior to the commencdroébenefits. Future mortality is assumed to odnwaccordance with the

mortality table used for purposes of Code Sec.&){3), as set forth in Rev. Rul. 2001-62 (2001-B.®32) and subsequent rulings.
FIFTH: Paragraph 6 of Exhibit A is amended to raadollows:

6. For the purposes of projecting deferral acctafdinces, the interest crediting rate on all ED@BhCAccounts is assumed to
remain at the Applicable Interest Rate determingdiu 3. above



SIXTH: Except as provided herein, all other Trusiyisions shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thigAgment No. 2 to be executed as of the date fiiisiew above.

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

By: /s/ Mark S. Dodson

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Beverley H. Wood

President and CE!

Senior Vice Presider

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

Waiver of Forfeiture Provisions of Nelemployee Directors Stock Compensation Plan for Bsed Director

Exhibit 10i-1

On December 16, 2004, the Board of Directors wafeefiture provisions of the Company’s Non-EmpleyRirectors Stock Compensation
Plan (“NEDSCP"with respect to approximately 2,808 unvested shaff@€mpany stock held in the account of MelodyT€ppola, a directc
of the Company who died on December 6, 2004.

Participant

Mark S. Dodsor
David H. Andersont
Michael S. McCoy

Beth A. Ugoret2
Gregg S. Kanto
Lea Anne Doolittle

David A. WebeP

Notes:

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY

SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

2005

Title

President & Chief Executive Offic

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Offic
Executive Vice President, Customer & Utility
Operations

Senior Vice President & General Coun

Senior Vice President Public & Regulatory Affa
Vice President Human Resour(

Director Information Services and Chief Information
Officer

* Salaries effective March 1, 20l

1 D. H. Anderson became CFO on Sept. 30, 2004. Hegveaged 5,000 restricted shares which vest 20%¢q®arover 5 years
commencing on Oct. 1, 2005. He received a $40,0@-on bonus in January 20C
2 Resigned Jan. 3, 2005.

3 Not an officer. Maximum incentive is 200% of Targ

2004 CEO Annual Incentive

Incentive Target

Target

Exhibit 10z(2)

Long Term
Incentive
Performance

Annual Salary* Award % Target Award Share Grant
$

$ 500,00( 50% $ 250,00( 10,00¢(
$ 265,00( 40% $ 106,00( 5,00(C
260,00( 40% $ 104,00( 5,00(C
NA NA NA NA

$ 170,00( 35% $ 59,50( 3,00(¢
$ 168,00( 30% $ 50,40( 2,00¢
$ 186,00( 25% $ 46,50( 2,00C

Mr. Dodson received an annual incentive award &0$200 for performance in 2004.

Annual Executive Incentive Compensation

Incentive compensation for executives for 2005 bdélldetermined according to the terms of the Exeedtnnual Incentive Plan,
effective Jan. 1, 2003, as previously filed asmnitet to the Company’s 2002 Form 10-K. The Comparfyxecutive Annual Incentive Plan
intended to advance the interests of the Compad



its shareholders by means of an incentive cashdpragram, which will motivate key executives thiage previously established annual
performance goals. The payment of awards undePthis is contingent upon meeting predeterminedriddal and Company performance
goals. At the beginning of each year, weightedgrerince goals are established. At year-end, pediocmis measured against these goals.
The results are considered by the Committee irrchééng the amounts to be awarded, if any.

The amounts of the awards are based on a formulahweflects an allocation between Company andvitddal performance criteria.
The allocation depends upon each executive’s plditnfluence corporate performance. Dependingypasition, performance and the other
factors considered by the Committee, an executivesarn from 25% to 50% of base salary if the pilesd Company and individual
performance goals are met, or up to 37.5% to 75%aeé salary if these goals are exceeded.

Individual performance is measured consideringathlievement of individual performance goals (50-B0@) achievement of budget
goals (15-25%), (3) values and behaviors ratingpd®rs (12.5%) and (4) achievement of developmesiisgas determined by the Chief
Executive Officer (12.5%).

Company performance goals established for 2005s&mton strengthening the Company'’s financial pmsitind increasing shareholder
value. These goals included the achievement ofiél)ncome in an amount which the Committee detechwould demonstrate above
average performance; and (2) several operatinggeklted to customer satisfaction improvementketashare, profitability, capital cost
management and productivity in serving customersoimbination, these goals measure the Companyfgrpeance in terms of its overall
profitability, customer satisfaction, market shahe reduction of costs and the achievement oftgredficiency. In determining the awards,
the Committee accords 50% of the weight to netrime@and 50% to the combined group of operating gd&ls payment of any award for
2005 is conditioned upon the Company’s 2005 neirime exceeding a percentage of the target desigimasetvance by the Committee and
being sufficient to cover the payment of all divids.

Long-Term Incentive Plan Compensation

Long-term incentive compensation for certain exisestfor 2005 will be determined according to therts of the Long-Term Incentive
Plan, effective July 26, 2001, as previously fiteedan exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for thartgr ended June 30, 2001.

The Long-Term Incentive Plan authorizes the Congmitb grant annual awards payable in Company sbaded on the Company’s
financial performance over three-year performarnyes. If the performance-based measures are ahiparticipants will also receive
dividend equivalent cash payments equal to the eumbshares of common stock received on the apaydut multiplied by the aggregate
cash dividends paid per share by the Company dtimgerformance period. Awards granted by the Citt@enin 2003 were based on a
three-year performance cycle covering the perid@B22005. The performance measure used to deteimiaative awards for this cycles is
the Compan’s average return on equity during the period cavbesethe award in relation to [-established targeted objectiv



In 2004 and 2005, awards granted by the Commitigleded a Company performance measure based dshat@holder return relative
to a peer group, with a minimum return of 6% peanffler a cycle (75%) and performance milestonestiked to the Company’s core and non-
core strategic plans (25%). At the end of the gyttie Committee will determine the Company’s apild achieve the established criteria and
assign a factor to each component ranging betw#ear@l 200%. As a general guideline, if the Compahjieves the targets as stated, the
component factor would be 100%.

EXHIBIT 11

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
Statement Re: Computation of Per Share Earnings
(Thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

12 Months Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net income $50,57: $45,98: $43,79:
Redeemable preferred and preference stock dividsqdrement: — 294 2,28(
Earnings applicable to common st basic 50,57: 45,68¢ 41,51
Debenture interest less ta 20C 257 28t
Earnings applicable to common st diluted $50,77: $45,94¢ $41,79;
Average common shares outstanc- basic 27,01¢ 25,74, 25,43
Stock options 40 28 59
Convertible debenture 227 292 324
Average common shares outstanc- diluted 27,28: 26,06 25,81«
Earnings per share of common st basic $ 187 $ 177 $ 1.6:
Earnings per share of common st diluted $ 18 $ 1.7¢ $ 1.62

For the years ended Dec. 31, 2004, 2003 and 2@0d28@0 shares, 77,500 shares and 84,000 shanesctigsly, representing the number of
stock options the exercise prices for which weeatgr than the average market prices for such years excluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings per share because the effect miadilative.

EXHIBIT 12
NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
January 1, 2000 - December 31, 2004
(Thousands, except ratio of earnings to fixed chsyg
(Unaudited)
Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Fixed Charges, as Define
Interest on Lon-Term Debt $ 33,77¢ $ 33,25¢ $ 32,26¢ $ 30,22« $ 29,987
Other Interes 2,18¢ 2,04¢ 1,62( 3,772 3,62¢
Amortization of Debt Discount and Exper 778 69€ 79¢ 76€ 73t
Interest Portion of Renta 1,48¢ 1,622 1,57¢ 1,572 1,62¢
Total Fixed Charges, as defin $ 38,22: $ 37,62« $ 36,26. $ 36,33t $ 35,97¢
Earnings, as Definet
Net Income $ 50,577 $ 45,98: $ 43,79 $ 50,187 $ 50,22/
Taxes on Incom 26,5317 23,34( 23,44 27,55 26,82¢
Fixed Charges, as abo 38,22: 37,62¢ 36,26. 36,33¢ 35,97¢
Total Earnings, as define $115,32! $106,94° $103,49° $114,07¢ $113,03:
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg 3.02 2.84 2.8t 3.14 3.14

EXHIBIT 23



Consent of Independent Accountants

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8s6317, 333-46430, 333-55002, 333-
70218, 333-100885 and 333-120955, and Post-Effeétimendment No. 1 to Registration Statement Nd62¢8) and in the Registration
Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 33-53795 and 333-1126@ Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Regigsiratatement Nos. 33-1304, 33-
20384, and 333-68184) of Northwest Natural Gas Gompf our report dated February 28, 2005 relatintgpe consolidated financial
statements, financial statement schedule, managenassessment of the effectiveness of internalrobaver financial reporting and the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L

Portland, Orego
March 1, 200t
EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Mark S. Dodson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Northwest Natural Gas Compar

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatormny untrue statement of a material fact or enittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aaraf,for, the periods presentec
this report;

4.  The company'’s other certifying officer(s) anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Hd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and ha\

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the company, including its consokdasubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over faialhreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the compamlsclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusiot
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the camgsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regis®dourth fiscal quarter in the case of an anmagbrt) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the compar’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) andlalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors #me audit committee of the company’s board of doesc(or persons performing
the equivalent functions

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affecté¢benpany’s ability to record, process, summarizg r@port financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 1, 2005
/sl Mark S. Dodson

Mark S. Dodsor
President and Chief Executive Offic
EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, David H. Anderson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Northwest Natural Gas Compar

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatormny untrue statement of a material fact or eonittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all



material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aarud,for, the periods presentec
this report;

The company’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and hay

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the company, including its consokdhsubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;
Evaluated the effectiveness of the compailsclosure controls and procedures and preséntbis report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

Disclosed in this report any change in the camgfsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registsdnourth fiscal quarter in the case of an anmagbrt) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesff, the compar’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The company’s other certifying officer(s) analve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiiernal control over
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors #meg audit committee of the company’s board of doesc(or persons performing
the equivalent functions

a.

b.

All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affecté¢benpany’s ability to record, process, summarizg r@port financial
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 1, 2005

/s/ David H. Anderson

David H. Andersor
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

EXHIBIT 32.1

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY
Certificate Pursuant to Section 906
of Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

Each of the undersigned, MARK S. DODSON, the Pediéind Chief Executive Officer, and DAVID H. ANDBRN, the Senior Vice

President, and Chief Financial Officer, of NORTHWESATURAL GAS COMPANY (the Company), DOES HEREBY GEIFY that:

1.

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K forykar ended December 31, 2004 (the Report) fultypdes with the requirements
of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac984, as amended; a

Information contained in the Report fairly pretse in all material respects, the financial canditand results of operation of the
Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned haseathis instrument to be executed thidday of March 2005.

/sl Mark S. Dodson

President an
Chief Executive Office

/s/ David H. Anderson

Senior Vice Presidel
and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to NorthwestitdhGas Company and will be retained
by Northwest Natural Gas Company and furnishetéoSecurities and Exchange Commission or its atadh request.

End of Filing
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